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AFFIDAVIT CLINTON OELLERMAN

AFFIDAVIT CLINTON OELLERMANN

I, the undersigned

Clinton QOellermann

do hereby make oath and state:

| am an adult male residing in the Pretoria East, Gauteng.

| was a Project Manager employed by the Special Investigating Unit (“SIU”) over the
period 2005 to 2012. [ was the lead investigator in the investigations conducted by
the SIU into allegations of infer alia, serious malpractices or maladministration, fraud
and corruption in connection with the administration of the Department of Correctional
Services (“the Department”). The investigation was in terms of Proclamation 66, dated
8 August 2002, Proclamation R59 dated 19 November 2004 and extended by
Proclamation R44, dated 28 November 2007. The investigations culminated in a
report reflecting the findings by the SIU in respect of the following contracts / tenders

awarded by the Department:

2.1 Kitchens tender: HK2/2004: awarded to Bosasa Operations (Pty) Ltd on

20 July 2004.

2.2 Access control tender: HK2/2005: awarded to Sondolo IT (Pty) Ltd on
11 April 2005.

2.3 Fencing tender. HK24/2005: awarded to Phezulu Fencing (Pty) Ltd on

29 November 2005.
2.4 Television tender: HK25/2005: awarded to Sondolo IT (Pty) Ltd on

03 March 2006.
Py
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| have been provided a copy of a report by the SIU (“SIU report’) into the
aforementioned contracts, which was provided to the Commission of Inquiry into
State Capture (‘the Commission”) by the SIU. The copy is attached hereto as
Annexure “CO 1”. | confirm that this report was submitted to the Department in
approximately mid to late 2009. This was in terms of sections 4(1)(d) and 5(7) of the
Special Investigating and Special Tribunals Act 74 of 1996 (“SIU Act”). Attached to
the report is an affidavit dated 24 February 2010, which | subsequently deposed to
and wherein | stated that “/ can confirm that | am familiar with the nature and content
of the evidence contained in the report and that it is a true reflection of the evidence

procured.”

| have accessed the documentation provided to the Commission and note the
SIU report that was attached to the affidavit of Mr Angelo Agrizzi (“Mr Agrizzi®) as
Annexure J, pages AA-278 to AA-344. | confirm that this is the same report which
| compiled and which was submitted to the Department. | do however note that the
following pages are missing from the version attached to the affidavit of Mr Agrizzi:

4.1 The cover page of the report;

4.2 Page “x” of the report which contains a ‘Distribution List'; and

4.3 Pages 49 to 75 of the report.

Page “x” of the SIU report reflects that the report was distributed to five recipients as

follows:
51 The Minister of Correctional Services, the Honourable Nosiviwe
Mapisa-Ngakula;

5.2  Acting National Commissioner of Correctional Services, Ms J Schreiner; g

53 Head of the Special Investigating Unit (S1U), Mr W Hofmeyr;
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5.4  SIU Programme Manager, Adv S Jacobs;

5.5 SiU Archive.

Page X" also contains a ‘CONFIDENTIALITY CLAUSE’ at the bottom of the page,
which states: “The contents of this report are strictly confidential and may not be
disclosed, in whole or in part, to any person or authority other than the addressees
listed above, without the prior written consent of the Head of the SIU. Failure to
adhere to this confidentiality clause will result in prosecution.”

6.1

| am not aware as to how the report came to be in the possession of Mr Agrizzi or

other members of the public. However, | can confirm that:

6.1.1 The report was not disseminated by the SIU to any other entity or individual
other than the five listed above;

6.1.2 Regulation 4 of the Special Investigating Units and Special Tribunals,
issued in terms of section 11 of the SIU Act and published in Government
Gazette No. 25024, dated 14 March 2003 ("the SIU Regulations”), obliges
SIU members to keep information confidential; and

6.1.3 Regulation 4 of the SIU Regulations and Regulation 6 of the SIU
Regulations makes it an offence to breach the requirement for

confidentiality, as prescribed by Regulation 4.
6.2

| can state that within a day or two of delivering the report to the Department, |
received a telephone call from a journalist who informed me that a copy of the SIU

report was in possession of Bosasa.

7
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The SIU report set out the identified irregularities in respect of the aforementioned
contracts as well as payments and other gratification for the benefit of Mr Linda Mti
(“Mr Mti") and Mr Patrick Gillingham (“Mr Gillingham”). As a result, in late November
2008, the SIU submitted the report to the National Prosecuting Authority (“NPA”) in
accordance with section 4(1)(d) and 4(2) of the SIU Act, which states that;

“Functions of Special Investigating Unit:
(1) The functions of a Special Investigating Unit are ...

(d) to refer evidence regarding or which points to the commission of an offence to

the relevant prosecuting authority; ...

(2) A Special Investigating Unit must, as soon as practicable & after it has obtained
evidence referred to in subsection (1)(d), inform the refevant prosecuting authority
thereof, whereupon such evidence must be dealt with in the manner which best

serves the interests of the public.”
8

Whilst conducting the investigation at the SIU, an application was made by certain
implicated parties to restrain the SIU from performing certain functions. In response |
submitted an affidavit, a copy of which is attached hereto as Annexure “CO 2”. The
attached copy has writing on by unknown person(s), however it is the only copy
available to me at the moment. My affidavit, which was signed on 10 March 2009,
stipulates the details of the case as follows: CASE NO: 11088/09: In the matter

between:

BOSASA OPERATIONS (PTY)LTD First Applicant

AGRIZZI, ANGELO Second Applicant

VAN TONDER, ANDRIES Third Applicant

VORSTER, FRANS HENDRIK STEYN Fourth Applicant

WATSON, GAVIN JOSEPH Fifth Applicant

And &

THE SPECIAL INVESTIGATING UNIT
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8.1

My affidavit sets out the gist of the application as follows: “The applicants seek an
interdict restraining the SIU from performing its functions and / or proceeding with its
investigation of the first applicant pursuant fo the respondents powers as provided
for in the SIU Act and the various proclamations, including, but not limited to
proceeding with the envisaged Interrogation of the second to fifth applicants...”

8.2

The implications of the civil proceedings are described under paragraph 4 of the SIU
report under the headings “LIMITATIONS”, which states: “Bosasa has sought by way
of application proceedings in the North Gauteng Division of the High Court of South
Africa, fo interdict the SIU from investigating the full scope of Bosasa's activities
regarding the awarding of the four tenders to it by the DCS. As a resulf of the
application, the SIU gave an undertaking not to interrogate material witnesses
pending the finalisation of action proceedings for a final order. The SIU has
accordingly not interrogated various Bosasa officials, its auditors and other
witnesses, who could impart material information regarding issues relating to the
investigation. The investigation has accordingly not been as intensive as the SIU
would have wanted, and accordingly, any lacunae that exist in the investigation, will
be addressed upon the resolution of the litigation between the SiU and Bosasa.”

| have been provided with a draft charge sheet which | am informed reflects the basis
of the current charges against certain accused related to this matter, who were
charged in February 2019. The draft charge sheet, a copy of which is attached per
Annexure “CO3”, reflects the details of the accused as follows:

LINDA MORRIS MTI ACCUSED 1
PATRICK O'CONNELL GILLINGHAM ACCUSED 2
ANGELO AGRIZZI ACCUSED 3
ANDRIES JOHANNES JACOBUS VAN TONDER ACCUSED 4
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AFRICAN GLOBAL OPERATIONS

(formerly known as BOSASA OPERATIONS (PTY) LTD) ACCUSED 5

SONDOLO IT (PTY) LTD ACCUSED 6

PHEZULU FENCING (PTY) LTD ACCUSED 7.
10

In respect of the draft charge sheet, | can comment on the charges in so far as they

relate to the SIU report, as follows:

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

Count 1 —6: Contraventions of the Public Finance Management Act, 1 of 1999.
This is only in respect of accused 1, Mr Mti. The charges relate to the
irregularities in contracts HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005
which were detailed in the 2009 SIU report.

Count 7 and 8: Prevention and Combatting of Corrupt Activities Act, 12 of
2004. The charges relate to payments and gratification to accused 1, Mr Mti,
for flight-tickets, car rental services and accommodation as well as cash
payments, over the period May 2004 to July 2015. These aspecis were not
dealt with in the 2009 SIU report.

Count 9 and 10: Prevention and Combatting of Corrupt Activities Act, 12 of
2004. The charges relate to payments and gratification to accused 2,
Mr Gillingham, over the period April 2004 and April 2007. The majority of these
payments were identified and referred to in the 2009 SIU report.

Count 11: Money Laundering: Prevention of Organised Crime Act, 121 of
1998. The charges are in respect of accused 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7. They relate to
contracts HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005 and the payment
of R196 959.97 for a motor vehicle for the benefit of Accused 1, between the
period April 2004 and September 2004. This information was detailed in
paragraph 2.1 of the 2009 SIU report.

Count 12: Money Laundering: Prevention of Organised Crime Act, 121 of
1998. The charges are in respect of accused 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7. They relate to
contracts HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005 and the payment

CO-006

W



CO-007

AFFIDAVIT CLINTON OELLERMAN

of R155 000.00 for a motor vehicle for the benefit of Accused 1, between the
period April 2004 and October 2004. This information was detailed in
paragraph 9.1 of the 2009 SIU report.

10.6 Count 13: Money Laundering: Prevention of Organised Crime Act, 121 of
1998. The charges are in respect of accused 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7. They relate to
contracts HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005 and the payment
of R62 796.00 for travel expenses relating to a European trip undertaken by
Accused 2 and Theresa Gillingham. This information was not detailed in the

2009 SIU report.

10.7 Count 14: Money Laundering: Prevention of Organised Crime Act, 121 of
1998. The charges are in respect of accused 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7. They relate to
contracts HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005 and the
payments for the benefit of Accused 2. Certain of this information was detailed
in paragraph 2.1 of the 2009 SIU report.

10.8 Count 15: Money Laundering: Prevention of Organised Crime Act, 121 of
1998. The charges are in respect of accused 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7. They relate to
contracts HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005 and the payment
of R180 000.00 for a vehicle for the benefit of Accused 2. This information was
detailed in the 2009 SIU report. This information was detailed in paragraph 9.1
the 2009 SIU report.

| note that in the main the charges outlined above are based on the SIU report
completed in 2009. If asked why charges were only brought ten years later [ wouid
comment that there were indeed procedural issues that needed to be overcome.

However, apart from these, the delay is incomprehensible.
11

I have been provided with access to additional documents attached to the affidavit of
Mr Agrizzi submitted to the Commission. These are documents from the NPA, mostly
communications between the Commercial Crimes Unit (“CCU") and the National
Director of Public Prosecutions (“NDPP”). | refer to these documents as they were g

iy
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annexed to the affidavit of Mr Agrizzi. | will indicate how they relate to the SIU

investigation as follows:

11.1 Memorandum dated 04 February 2010, from Advocate Glynnis Breytenbach to
the NDPP, Advocate Simelane (Annexure Q3; pages AA-388 to AA-392),

which states:

11.2

11.1.1

11.1.2

711.1.3

11.1.4

11.1.6

11.1.6

“The so-called Bosasa matter was received in this office directly from
the SIU during late November 2009 ...

It is essential fo meef with the Acting Commissioner, since she would
be the apposite person to depose to an affidavit to form the "founding”
affidavit on which to base the investigation....

the case docket cannot be registered without the affidavit of the

“complainant®....

The SIU has not supplied the source documents relating to their

report ...

It is essential to understand whether the documents so obtained by
the SIU are admissible and can be used in the criminal investigation..

An issue that needs to be addressed on an urgent basis is the
position of Mr Linda Mti, who is one of the two main suspects, and
who currently holds the position of Head of Security: 2010 World Cup
and the impact that this investigation, once it gains momentum (and
attracts the attention of the media), might have. Some gquidance in
this regard would be greatly appreciated ...

The response from Advocate Simelane to Advocate Breytenbach dated
08 February 2009 (Annexure Q4; pages AA-393 to AA-395) stated that:

11.2.1

11.2.2

11.2.3

You and your team ... must withdraw from the case until | am advised

that a case is registered with the police ...

I would have hoped that by now the SIU itself would provide the
required affidavit since they have the locus standi to investigate...

1 note the point that you make regarding Mr Mti. It is mischievous in
the least. Firstly there is no police docket or investigation underway.
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Secondly, on by your own admission, there is still an assessment to
be made on the value of the information available. How therefore you
can start speculating and making suggestions regarding any person,

is beyond belief,...”

11.3 With regards to the above | can state that:

11.3.1  The SIU is not obligated to provide an affidavit and register a criminal
case as they refer matters to the NPA in accordance with Section
4(1)(d) and 4(2) of the SIU Act, which states that:

(d) to refer evidence regarding or which points to the commission of

an offence 'fo the relevant prosecuting authority;

(2) A Special Investigating Unit must, as soon as practicable & after
it has obtained evidence referred to in subsection (1)(d), inform the

relevant prosecuting authority...

11.4 The minutes of a SPECIAL EXTENDED MINIISTERIAL MEETING dated
09 March 2010 (Annexure Q5; pages AA-396 to AA-399) reflect that the
attendees were “Minister JT Radebe, Minister NN Mapisa-Nqgakula,
Adv M Simelane” and the secretariat as “Mr T Tlali & Ms J Lepinka”. The
minutes reflect that Advocate Simelane gave a presentation of the report
whereafter the following was recorded:

11.4.1  Challenges of the report was outlined; ie the unconstitionality of the
report in that the evidence as contained in the said report was

conlaminated...

11.4.2 The SIU report cannot hold any water in any court and that any
presiding officer will not proceed with the report at hand...

11.4.3 The SIU investigation was not in line with the proper administration
of justice, “without fear, favour and / prejudice” incorrect sections of
their mandate was used {o find evidence, statements were not done

accordingly to the prescripts.

11.4.4  Political vendetta/agenda identified.

§
Y
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11.4.5 Manipulation of the public identified in that the report was discussed
in Parliament prior to same being handed over fo the relevant Exec

Authority...

11.4.6 Media coverage over the report prior to having heard or confirmed
any criminality by the mentioned senior officials of DCS. ..

11.4.7 A predetermined element was identified as well as the race of both
the investigators (SAPS) (SiIU) and prosecutors (NPA)...

11.5 In this regard | can state that:

11.5.1 |1 am not aware of the unconstitutionality of the report, nor any political
vendstta or any of the other issues raised which would prevent a

successful prosecution.

11.6 Memorandum from Advocate M de Kock to the NDPP, Advocate Simelane,
dated 17 November 2010 (Annexure Q6; pages AA-400 to AA-404), states:

11.6.1 It would thus appear as if the SIU received information from various
(and sometimes unreliable) sources and made use of the information
either without verifying the facts or failing to point out anomalies to

those reading the report...

11.6.2 The SiU report would appear fo have been drafted in a careless and
almost casual fashion. The lack of accuracy and precision with the
drafting of the report will give ample opportunity to those seeking to
fault...

11.7 Inthis regard | can state that:

11.7.1  Although | do not agree with the aforementioned statements, | will not
elaborate on this other than to state that this document in the hands
of a suspect or accused would be extremely harmful to the
prosecution. It must also be noted that the SIU report was not a final
report prepared for the purposes of a criminal prosecution. This work
would have to be done under the auspices of the NPA. &

10 @
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11.8 An undated document from Advocate de Kock (Annexure Q8; pages AA-417
to AA-443) which states that:

11.8.1

11.8.2

11.8.3

11.8.4

The Eversheds letter dated 15 November 2009 and addressed fo the
State Attorney Cape Town allege that a copy of the SIU report was
furnished fo Bosasa Operations (Pty) Ltd by Mr. Gillingham's

attomeys...

Neither Mr. Gillingham nor his atforneys could legally receive
disclosure of the report unless they received the "prior written consent
of the Head of the SIU.”

It is my respectful submission that Bosasa Operations is in
possession of an unauthorised copy of the SIU report. The mere fact
that they (may have) received a copy of the report from an attorney
does not in any way legalize their possession of the document. ..

The SIU report clearly prohibits that unauthorised distribution and/ or
possession thereof. The confidentiality clause inserfed in the
report clearly states that disclosure of the contents amounts fo

a criminal offence...”

11.9 Memorandum dated 26 November 2012 from Advocate M de Kock to the
Acting Head SCCU (Annexure Q12; pages AA-477 to AA-480), which states:

11.9.1

11.9.2

The SIU pointed out that they did not conduct a comprehensive
financial investigation into the benefits allegedly received by
Commissioner Mti because of various limitations experienced during

their investigation.

The investigation of the matter is not yet completed and a charge
sheet has not been drafted. Almost 200 statements have been
obtained since the start of the investigation. We are still of the view
that the investigation will take another six (6) months to complete.”

11.10 Memorandum dated 30 April 2013 from Advocate M de Kock to Advocate
Mwrebi, Special Director of Public Prosecutions (Annexure Q13; pages
AA-481 to AA-484), which states:

CO-011

{
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11.10.1 | am busy working on a draft charge sheet in respect of Paftrick

O'Connell Gillingham ...

11.10.2 The investigation against Gillingham has not yet been finalised and

we still await the forensic audit report...

11.10.3 Thus far | am of the opinion that it will be possible to enrol the matter
during the second half of 2013 as indicated before....

11.10.4 It would theoretically be possible to enrol the case against BOSASA
or the individuals mentioned in paragraph 1.3.1 above within six (6)
months from this date. It is very difficult to give an accurate estimate
on future events but | foresee the prosecution of both BOSASA and
Mti within the next eighteen (18) months...”

12

| am able to tell the Commission as much as | can recall of the work of the SIU in
investigating the Bosasa matter and compiling the SIU report. | will do so in evidence.

13

| know and understand the contents of this statement.
| have no objection to taking the prescribed Oath.

| consider the prescribed Oath to be binding on my conscience.

SIGNED AT:P Cehessd  ON THIS 31st DAY OF MARCH 2019.

CLINTON OELLERMANN

| certify that this statement was noted down by me and that the deponent has
acknowledged that he knows and understands the_contents of this statement. This

= (
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statement was sworn to before me and the deponents’ signature placed thereon in

C
my presence at Johannesburg on a4 "ApA 3LO19 at [§. T

ﬁ“}ﬁéﬂf @

COMMISSIONER QF CATHS
(Full names)

>

(Physical address)

.......................................

(Designation) (Office)

13
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AFFIDAVIT
I, the undersigned
CLINTON OELLERMANN
)
do hereby make an oath and state:
1.
- I am an adult male currently employed as a Manager at the Special investigating Unit
{SIU) in Pretoria, My work address is located at Rentmeester Park, 74 Watsrmeyer
Street, Meyerspark, Pretoria.
2.
| am duly authorised by the Head of the SIU and by virtue of fny position as a
Manager to depose to this affidavit, the contents of which are both true and correct
! and are within my personal knowledge and belief, save where otherwise stated or the

contrary appears from the context hereof.

3.

The Special Investigating Unit was established in terms of the Special Investigating
Units and Special Tribunals Act, Act 74 of 1996 (hereinafter referred to as the SIU
Act), to investigate, infer alia, serious malpractices or maladministration, fraud and
corruption in connection with the administration of State institutions and pubiic

money.

Page 1 0of 4
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4.

The Special Investigating Unit is further mandated in terms of Proclamation R44,
dated 28 November 2007 (hereinafter referred to as the Proclamation), to
investigate, in respect of the Department of Correctional Services (hereinafter
referred to as the Department) “...aﬁy -

(a}  serious maladministration in connection with the affairs of the Department;
(b)  improper or uniawful conduct by officers and/or employees of the Department;
-{c)  unlawiful appropriation or expenditure of public money or property;

(d)  unlawful, irregular or unapproved acquisitive act, transaction, measure or
\ ) practice having a bearing upon State properly;

(e) intentional or negligent loss of public money or damage to public property;

(H offence referred to in Part 1 to 4, or section 17, 20 or 21 {in so far as it relales
to the aforementioned offences) of Chapter 2 of the Prevention and
Combating of Corrupt Aclivities Act, 2004, and which offences were committed
in connection with the affairs of the Department; or

()  unlawful or improper conduct by any person, which has caused or may cause
serious harm to the interests of the public or any category thereot”

That has taken place between 1 January 2000 and 28 bNovember 2007. (A copy of
the said proclamation is annexed hereto, marked “ Annexure A”.)

The relevant provision in the Schedule to the Proclamation, for the purpose of this

affidavit, is:

“1. The procurement of goods and services by or on behalf of the Department
without compliance with the Department’s -

(a)  policies, procedures, prescripts, directives, guidelines or standing
instructions (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “prescripts'); and

(b)  procurement and provisioning systems or supply chain management
systems prescribed by applicable legisiation, g

~Pageﬂ2 of4 ‘ e %4
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in a manner that was not fair, competitive, transparent, equitable and/or cost;
effective and payments made in respect thereof...".

6.

During 2007, the SIU, in pursuance of proclamation R.44, undertook to conduct an
audit of a number of high value contracts awarded by the Department to the Bosasa
Group of companies during the period 4 Aprit 2004 to 29 March 2007.

7.

bl The said audit was later extended to include the investigation of allegations that
senior DCS officials colluded with the certain individuals from the Bosasa group of
companies and were involved in improprieties in the awarding of the tenders in
question. | was the iead investigator in this investigation.

During the course of the investigation the investigation team gathered evidence
pursuant to the SIU fulfilling its mandate. This evidence, is recorded in a report which
was submitted to the Department of Correctional Services in terms of sections 4(1)(d)
and 5(7) of the Special investigating and Special Tribunals Act 74 of 1996 — The

) investigation into allegations of irregularities in the procurement of services by the
Department of Cormrectional Services in re: Tenders HK2/2004, HK2/20085,
HK24/2005, HK25/2005,

8.

| can confirm that [ am familiar with the nature and content of the evidence contained
in the report and that it is a true reflection of the evidence procured.

10.

The above SIU report contains findings and recommendations, which | am advised
by Council are both fair and reasonable.

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0003 @



IReport in terms of sections 2(1)(d) and 5(7) of
the Special Investigating Units and Special'
Tribunals Act 74 of 1996 — The investigation
into allegations of irregularities in the
prbcurement-of services by'the Department of
Correctional Services in re: Tenders HK2/2004,
e  HK2/2005, HK24/2005, HK25/2005

POISED TO STRIKE
against corvuption

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0004 : . @
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Special Investigating Unit (SIU) functions within the statutory framewark set out in the
Special investigating Units and Special Tribunals Act 74 of 1996 (the Act). The SIU may only
investigate matters referred to it for investigation by the President in terms of section 2(1) of
the Act. The SIU’s intervention in this investigation is authorised by presidential proclamation
R44 of 2007 gazetted on 28 November 2007 (the Proclamation).

In 2008, various allegations surfaced in the media relating to the allegecily irregular awarding
of contracts by the Department of Correctional Services (DCS) to Bosasa Operations (Pty)
Lid (Bosasa) and its affiliated companies.

Later in 2006, the Public Service Commission {PSC) and the Office of the Auditor General
(OAG) referred specific allegations relating to contracts awarded to Bosasa to the SIU for
. investigation. Some of the more serious allegations are that;

e Anirregular relétionship existed between Bosasa or merribers of the Bosasa Group of
Companies and two DCS officials, namely, the former Commissioner of Correctional
Services, Mr L Mti (Commissioner Mti) and the DCS Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Mr P Gillingham {Gillingham)

+ Cornmissioner Mti and Gillingham may have unduly received benefits as a result of
the award of some of the coniracts awarded by DCS to Bosasa and its affiliates

. « Two tenders, namely, the kitchens tender ar;d the access control te_nder. were
irregularly extended

s Bosasa and its sffiliates were responsible for drafting the bid specifications for these
tenders.

Shortly after the publication of the proclamation, the SIU commenced with the investigation of
the contracts awarded to Bosasa and its affiliates, namely, the kitchens, access control,
fencing and television contracts. '

The purpose of this report is to refer in terms of section 4(1)(d) of the Act, the evidence
gathered by the SIU relative to the abovementioned contracts which, in its view, points to the
commission of an offence by Bosasa and its affiliates and the persons mentioned in this -
report, to the Acting National Director of Public Prosecutions (NDPP) and further, to advise
tﬁe DCS in terms of saction 5(7) of the Act, that the evidence gathered by the SIU justifies
the institution of legal proceedings by it against Bosasa and its affiliates and the persons

C

mentioned in this report.

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0005 @
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Findings in respect of the kitchens tender: HK2/2004 -
This contract was awarded to Bosasa on 20 July 2004.

The evidence gathereq by the SiU, shows that there were clear deviations from the National
Treasury Supply Chain Management: A Guide for Accounting Officers/Authorities (SCM:
Guide for Accountfng_ Officers)', more particularly, in that the end user departments were
not included in the bid process. There was aiso no proper financial planning for this tender in
that there was no feasibility study nor needs analysis conducted.

The evidence clearly shows that Gillingham, outside the course of his normal duties, played
an-integral role from the outset in the procurement process and was irregularly instrumental
in developing the tender specifications.

. On the evidence of a whistieblower, a former employee of Bosasa (the witness), Bosasa
Irregularly participated in drafting the specifications for this tender. On the evidence of the
witness, the specifications were drafted in such a manner that the security aspects of the
tender provided Bosasa with a clear advantage over other bidders.

During the course of a search and seizure operation conducted at Gillingham's residence, a
document containing the bid evaluation criteria and guidelines for evaluating the kiichens
tender was found in the form of elecironic data. Mr 4 Malan (Malan) the SiU cyber forensic
expert, determined that this document originated from the computer of Mr A Agrizzi (Agrizzi),
Bosasa's Chief Executive Officer/Managing Director. According to Malan, the document was -
fast saved by Agrizzi on 28 June 2004. The evidence shows that this was on the same day
that the DCS commenced with its screening of the bids received in respect of the kitchens
tender. Whilst, Malan could not determine the date of first creation of the document on

. Agrizzi's computer, the evidence raises two concerns: first, whether Agrizzi (and as such
Bosasa) was in possession of the document at the lime that Bosasa's tender was submitted
for the kitchens tender, and second, whether Bosasa was a party to the drafting of the
evaluation criteria and guidelines for evaluating the tender. Obviously, if this were so, it would '
not only have subverted the entire procurement process because it would have placed
Bosasa in an unduly advantageous position with reference to its competitors, but it would
also have exposed the DCS to civil suits from unsuccessful bidders.

The evidence clearly indicates that Gillingham and Commissioner Mti received financial
benefits from Bosasa after the award of this tender. The SIU was unable to find any lawful
cause for such benefits being made to Gillingham and Commissioner Mti. The evidence

_ Issued to all Accounting Officers on 26 February 2004; attached as Annexure 1 -
\ -
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further shows that Mr WD Mansell (Mansell) and Mr J Smith (Smith)?, both employses of the
Bosasa Group, were instrumental in effecting these benefits to Gillingham and Commissioner
Mti. The timing of the benefits appear to be sufficiently linked to the awarding of the kitchens
tender. In the circumstances, it was unlawful for Gillingham and Commissioner Mti to have

received these benefits.

The kitchens contract was extended by Commissioner Mti on 17 May 2005. In light of the
irregular benefits received by him the extension of this contract was irregular and unlawful.

Recommendations in respect of the kitchens tender

The €IU recommends that;

» the DCS considers instituting civil proceedings in the appropriate forum for the
& recovery of any losses that might have been sustained by the DCS on account of the
award of the kitchens tender to Bosasa ’

» the DCS considers instituting disciplinary proceedings against Gillingham
{Commissioner Mti no longer being in the employ of DCS) arising from his irregular
conduct relating to the procurement process involving the kitchens tender

» the NDPP considers instituting criminal proceedings against Gillingham,
Commissioner Mti, Bosasa, the latter's office bearers and to the extent that Mansell,
Agrizzi and Smith may not be office bearers of Bosasa, that they also be ¢onsidered
for prosecution in their personal capacities.

Findings in respect of access control tender: HK2/2005

. This contract was awarded to Sondalo [T (Pty) Ltd (Sondolo), an affiliate company within the
' Bosasa Group, an 11 April 2005.

The evidence shows that there were clear deviations from the SCM: Guide for Accounting
Officers, more particularly, in that the end user departments were not included in the bid
process. According to the evidence, there was no proper financial planning for this tender in
that there was no feasibility study nor needs analysis conducted. The budget for this tender
was also significantly exceeded.

The evidence shows that Gillingham, outside of his normal duties, played an integrai role
from the outset in the procurement process and was irregularly instrumental in developing
the tender specifications,

? Mr WD Mansell is a consuitant to Bosasa; Mr J Smith is the Bosasa Financial Administrator g
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According to the evidence of both the witness and Malan, Bosasa was irregularly involved in
drafting the bid specifications for this tender.

On the evidence of the witness, Agrizzi requested him to prepare specifications in line with
the technology Bosasa was employing in the kitchens contract. According to him, the
specifications prepared by him were drafted in such a manner that the security aspects
afforded Sondolo a clear advantage over the other bidders. The witness subsequently
identiﬁéd a number of similarities between the specifications prepared by him and those in
the advertisement for this tender.

.On the evidence of Malan, a document titled “cctv bid.doc” was retrisved from the DCS and
Bosasa systems. The document contained specifications for the access control tender.
Version 2 of the document was found on the Bosasa system, whilst version 4 thereof was

. emailed by Gillingham from an email address belonging to Bosasa, to Mr S Miombile (Acting
Chief Deputy Commissioner: Corrections) (Mlombile) of DCS.

Given the fact thal the evidence disclosed that there was a close association between
Gillingham and Bosasa, the probabilities point to the fact that he must have been aware of
Bosasa's iregular participation in drafting the specifications. In the circumstances,
Gillingham and Bosasa's involvement in the drafling of the specifications seriously
undermined the faimess of the procurement process.

Despite the fact that the Department of Public Works (DPW) had previously been engaged
by the DCS to assist in drafting specifications for tenders involving technical ‘detail, the
evidence showed that DPW was excluded by Gillingham and Commissioner Mti from the
procurement process for this tender, even though technical detail was invoived.

. The evidence further showed that the bid submission period was reduced from 30 to 21
days, without any apparent or justifiable cause. Given the technical nature of the tender and
Bosasa's participation in the drafting of the specifications for the bid, the shortened period for
submission of bids allowed Sondclo to enjoy an unfair advantage over the other bidders.

Given the fact that Bosasa operated the kitchens contract and therefore had knowledge of
the correctional centre environment, the probabilities point to the fact that Sondolo enjoyed a
significant advantage over its competitors because of its relationship with Bosasa.

Despite it being a bid requirement that bidders should have five years’ experience, Sondolo
was only registered 7 days before the closing of bids but was still awarded the tender. This
was obviously irregular.

@ iv
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The evidence clearly indicates that Gillingham received financial benefits from Bosasa afler
the award of this and the previous tender. The SIU was unable to find any iawful cause for
such benefits being made to Gillingham. The evidence further shows that Mansell and Smith
were instrumental In effecting these benefits to Gillingham. The evidence also shows that
Gillingham failed to disclose the benefits received by him to either the BEC or the NBAC.
Aside from it being unlawful for Gillingham to have received these benefits, it was further
irregular for him not to have disclosed this fact before or during the deiliberations related to _

this tender.

The SIU did not conduct a comprehensive financial investigation as in the case of

Gillingham, into benefits Commissioner Mii may have received from Bosasa, because of

various limitations experienced during the SIU’'s investigation.'However, the limited evidence

gathered by the SIU, indicated that he received benefits from Bosasa, a few months before
. the access tender was granted to Sondolo.

The access control contract was extended by Commissioner Mti on 4 August 2005. In light of
the irregular benefits received by him the extension of this contract was irregular and

unlawful.
Recommendations in respect of the access control tender: HK2/2005

The SIU recommends that:

» the DCS considers institl;lting civil proceedings in the appropriate forum for the
recovery of any losses that might have been sustained by DCS on account of the
award of the access control tender to Sondolo

. = the DCS considers inatituting disciplinary proceedings against Gillingham arising from
his irreguiar conduct relating to the procurement process involving the access control
tender

= the NDPP considers insfituting criminal proceedings against Gillingham,
Commissioner Mti, Sondolo, Bosasa, their office bearers and {o the extent that
Agrizzi, Mansell and Smith may not be office bearers of either Sondolo or Bosasa,
that they also be considered for prosecution in their personal capacity.
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Findings in respect of the fencing tender: HK24/2005

The fencing tender was awarded on 29 November 2005 to Phezulu Fenclng (Pty) Ltd
(Phezulu), an affiliate company within the Bosasa Group.

The evidence shows that there \}vere clear deviations from the DCS SCM User Manual:
Directives’ (DCS procurement directives) in that the end user departments were not
included in the bid process. There was also no proper financial planning for this tender in that
there was no feasibility study or needs analysis conducted, which resulted in the initial
budget being significantly exceeded and in addition being further increased by variation
orders valued at'R 100 million*.

As in the case of the previous two tenders, the evidence shows that Gillingham, outside of
. his normal duties, played an integral role from the outset in the procurement process and
was irregularly instrumental in the developing of the tender specifications.

In this tender, there was a heavy weighting in the evaluation criteria in favour of the
integration of the fences with the computer software system, nameiy, the ON-IMIS system,
which Sondolo introduced through the access control tender. This weighting accordingly
favoured Phezulu on account of it being an affiliate of Bosasa.

An issue of concém to the SIU was the fact that substantial payments were made to Phezulu
at the outset of the contract without adequate performance. The SIU examined payments
made to Phezulu in respect of this tender. In terms of the contract provisions, 90% of the
contract price was payable on delivery of the raw materials to the construction sites. The
structure of this contract resulted in DCS making very large payments to Phezulu at a very
. early stage of the contract. Since this payment was shortly before the end: of the financial
year, the SIU concluded that this was a case of fiscal dumping, that is to say, when
departments spend large amounts of money just prior to the financial year end to use up their
budget, irespective of whether the department gets value for money for such spending.

A further issue of concem is the fact that the bid conditions stipulated that fences be erected
by 17 March 2008. At the coempulsory briefing session for this tender, Gillingham confirmed
that the erection of the fences was to be effected by 17 March 2006. Two bidders submitted
project plans that complied with this deadline. However, Phezulu submitted two project plans

3 Came into effect in May 2005
“ The budget for the project was R 340 miiiion, the contract awarded to Phezulu was R 486 million; in addition

R 100 million in variation orders were authorised after the conclusion of the contract.
W Kﬁ
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in terms of which they undertook to deliver raw materials to the sites by 17 March 2006, but
would install the fences at a much later date.

In the BEC, Gillingham scored the two service providers referred to above, 0 out of 6 for time
and Phezulu a full 8 points, despite the fact that its projected plan did not comply with the
timelines. The SIU finds this approach by Gillingham !ncomprehepsible, gince on the face of
it. Phezulu's project plans clearly did not comply with the tender requirements.

The evidence clearly indicates that Gillingham had rec;eived financial benefits after the award
of this and the previous two tenders. The SIU was unable to find any lawful cause for such
benefits being made to Gillingham. The evidence further shows that Mansell and Smith, with
close connections to Bosasa, were instrumental in effecting these benefits to Gillingham,

As previously observed, the SIU did not conduct a comprehensive financial investigation as
in the case of Gilingham, into benefits Commissioner Mti may have réceived from Bosasa,
becéuse of various limitations experienced during our investigation. However, the limited
evidence gathered by the SIU, indicates that he received benefits from Bosasa, a few

 months before the fencing tender was granted to Phezulu.

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0011

The evidence also shows that Gillingham failed to disclose the benefits received by him to
either the BEC or NBAC. Aside from it being unfawful for Gillingham to have received these

CO-025

benefits, it was further irregular for him not to disclose this fact before or during the

deliberations related to this tender.
Recommendations in respect of the fencing tender

The SiU) recommends that:

» theDCS considefs instituting civil proceedings in the appropriate forum for the
recovery of any losses that may have been sustained by DCS on account of the
award of the tender to Phezulu

+ the DCS considers insti!uting disciplinary proceedings against Gillingham arising from
his irregular conduct relating to the procurement process involving the fencing tender

» the NDPP considers instituting criminal proceedings against Gillingham,
Commissioner Mti, Phezulu, Bosasa, their office bearers and to the extent that
Mansell and Smith may not be office bearers of either Phezulu or Bosasa, that they
also be considered for prosecution in their personal capacity.
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Findings in respect of television tender: HK25/2005
This contract was awarded on 3 March 2006 1o Sondolo.

The evidence shows there were clear deviations from the DCS procurement directives, in
that the end user departments were not included in the bid process. Furthermore, according
to the evidence, there was no proper financial planning for this tender in that there was no
feasibility study or needs analysis conducted and the budget for the contract was significantly
exceeded. ]

As in the case of the previous three tenders, Gillingham, outside the course of his normal
duties played an integral role from the outset in the procurement process and was irregutarly
instrumental in the developing of the tender specifications.

. Sondolo’s first invoice for payment was submitted on 13 March 2008, three days after the
contract had been signed. The invoice was for R106 million and it was paid on 23 March
2006. This, as in the fencing tender, was once again a case of fiscal dumping.

The evidence clearly indicates that Gillingham received financial benefits from Bosasa after
the award of this and the previous tenders. The SIU was unable to find any lawful cause for
such benefits being made fo Gillingham. The evidence further shows that Mansell and Smith
were instrumental in effecting these benefits to Gillingham. The evidence also shows that
Gillingham failed to disclose the benefits received by him, to either the BEC or the NBAC.
Aside from it being unlawful for Gillingham to have received these benefits, it was further
irregular for him not to have disclosed this fact before or during the deliberations related 1o
this tender.

. As previously observed, the SIU did not conduct a comprehensive financial investigation as
in the case of Gillingham, into benefits received. by Commissioner Mti from Bosasa, because
of various limitations experienced during our investigation. However, the limited evidence
gathered, indicates that he received benefits from Bosasa, some months before the

television tender was granted to Sondolo.

Recommendations in respect of the television tender

The SIU recommends that:

« the DCS considers instituting civil proceedings in the appropriate forum for the
recovery of any loss that may have been sustained by DCS on account of the award
of the television tender to Sondolo

‘ g viii
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e the DCS considers instituting disciplinary proceedings against Gillingham arising from
his irregular conduct relating to the procurement process involving the television
tender

« the NDPP considers instituting criminal proceedings against Gillingham,
Commissioner Mti, Sondolo, Bosasa, their office bearers and to the extent that
Mansell and Smith may not be office bearers of either Sondolo or Bosasa, that they
élso be considered for prosecution in their personal capacity.
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TERMS OF REFERENCE

The SIU functions within the statutory framework set out in the Act, The SIU was established
by the President in terms of section 2(1)(a)(i) of the Act and by Proclamation R118 of 31 July
2001. The SIU may only investigate matters referred to it for investigation by the President in
terms of section 2(1) of the Act.

In June 2006, various allegations surfaced in the media relating to the allegediy irregular

. awarding of contracts bi.f the DCS. The aliegation's specifically involved the Bosasa Group of
Companies and two DCS officials, namely the former Commissioner Mti and the DCS CFO
Gillingham,

Later in 2008, the PSC and the OAG referred fo the SIU various allegations relating to the
allegations made in the media. The PSC and OAG expressed particular concern around the
. regularity of the procurement processes relating to contracts awarded to Bosasa and two
affiliated companies, Sondolo and Phezulu as well as to the nature of the relationship
between the said companies and Commissioner Mti and Gillingham. &

Some of the allegations the SIU was requested to investigate:

» involved whether Commissioner Mti and Gillingham may have unduly benefited from
some of the contracts awarded by DCS to Bosasa

» concerned the problem that in relation io two tenders {access control and fencing) the
DCS procured services involving technical detail without involving the Department of
Public Works '

» involved whether the kitchens tender was irregularly extended to include seven extra
kitchens — the contract value grew to over R80G miliion, which included the adding of the

® additional kitchens resulting in additional expenditure of R82 million

+ involved whether the access control tender may have been irregularly extended to
include the staffing of the control rooms ~ the contract value grew from R237 million to
almost R437 million, as Sondolo became responsible for monitoring the CCTV control
rooms

o related to whether one of the bidders may have drafted the specifications for one or
more of the relevant tenders — there were particular concerns around the specifications
of the access control and television tenders

» concemned whether Commissioner Mti may have been involved with a company called
Lianorah Investments, which had a relationship with Bosasa

« related to the supply of allegedly inferior quality goods in the access control tender.

\
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The SiU requested a proclamation authorising its investigation of the allegations and was
accordingly mandated by the President in terms of the Proclamation to investigate any
irreguiarities perpetrated in connection with the procurement of services by the DCS.

In terms of the Prociamation, the SIU was mandated to investigate:

1

The. procurement of goods and services by or on behalf of the Department without
compliance with the Department's -

(a) policies, procedu}es, prescripts, directives, guidelines or standing instructions
{hereinafter collectively referred to as the “prescripts”); and

(b) procurement and provisioning systems or supply chain management systems
prescribed by applicable legislation,

in a manner that was not fair, competitive, transparent, equitable and/or cost-effective
and payments made in respect thereof.

The failure by officials and employees of the Department to disclose that they had a
direct or indirect interest in the suppliers and service providers used by the
Department, which represented a conflict of interest.

The failure by the officials and employees of the Department to disclose to the
Department that they were engaged in unauthorised business activities for
remuneration outside the scope of their employment under the Public Service Act,

1694 {Proclamation 103 of 1894) or the Correctional Services Act, 1888 (Act 111 of

1998).

The' conduct of -

{a} suppliers and service providers to the Department; and
(b) officials and employees of the Department,

which has resulted or may result in a loss of, damage to or a lack of control over public
money, public property or other resources of the Department and any conduct directed
at or promoting the aforementioned.

False or inflated claims by, or on behalf of officials and employees of the Department
from certain medical aid schemes,

The theft or misuse of property and resources of the Department by officials and
employees of the Department. &
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7  liiegal or imegular practices in terms of which officials and employees of the
Department received or solicited benefits from other officials and employees of the
Department or from members of the public in connection with the execution of their
duties of the failure to execute their duties.

8 The canduct of officials and employees of the Department, which was simed at
influencing or hampering any investigation or the destruction of evidence.

9 The intimidation of officials or employees of the Department of members of the public
by officials or employees of the Department with the aim to conceal corrupt or other
uniawful practices within the Department.

10 Acts of undue influence and extortion committed by officials and employees of the
: Department with regard to members of the public and other officials or employees of

. the Department.

11 Fraud committed by officials and employees of the Department to the detriment of the
Department.

The SIU’s investigation focussed on the procurement processes related only to the kitchens,
access control, fencing and felevision tendérs.

@

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0017



CO-032

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page
1 INTRODUCTION ....cocorererirermrsnsssscasesemmrersansscsansasmssennsnsnnes B SRRsssandaseanasnnnsenns 1
1.1 Subject of report 1
1.2 Baékground to report | | 1
1.3 Objectives of raport : 1
2 METHODOLOGY ......... e o e, i S, . 2
OUTLINE OF RELEVANT POLICIES AND SPECIAL LEGISLATION
. APPLICABLE TO INVESTIGATION —— S 3
3.1 The DCS procurement policy
3.2 Treasury guidelines regard.ing Sudgeting for the tender process 7
3.3 The Construction Industry Development Board legislation and
regulations 11
LIMITATION ON THE INVESTIGATION.. . 12
CYBER FORENSIC EXPERTISE ENGAGED BY THE SIU .. 13
THE BOSASA GROUP OF COMPANIES STRUCTURE . 14
6.1 Bosasa Operations (Pty) Ltd 14
6.2 Sondolo IT {Pty) Ltd and Phezulu Fencing (Pty) Ltd 15
. 7 COMMISSIONER MT('S FORMAL RELATIONSHIP WITH BOSASA ............16
8 ANALYSIS OF CONTRACTS................ . " - 17
8.1 The kitchens tender: HK2/2004 17
8.1.1 Evidence gathered ' 17
8.1.2 Findings 26
8.1.3 Recommendations in respect of the kitchens tender 28
8.2 The access control tender: HK2/2005 29
8.2.1 Evidence gathered ' 29
8.2.2 Findings 38
8.2.3 Recommendations in respecf of the access control tender 40
8.3 The fencing tender: HK24/2005 41
8.3.1 Evidence gathered 41

Xiv

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0018 @



8.3.2 Findings 49
8.3.3 Recommendations in respect of the fencing tender 51
8.4 The television (TV) tender: HK25/2005 52
8.4.1 Evidence gathersed 52
8.4.2 Findings 59
8.4.3 Recommendations in respect of the TV tender 81
9 BENEFITS RECEIVED BY GILLINGHAM AND COMMISSIONER MTI.......... 62
9.1 Benefits received by Gillingham 62
9.1.1 Motor Vehicles 62
9.1.2 Cash and cheque deposits 67
9.1.3 Travel 68
. 9.1.4 Rugby Season Tickets 68
9.1.5 Properties 69
9.1.6 Private e-mail address 71
9.1.7 Documents seized during search, explaining some of benefits
received by Gillingham - 71
9.2 Findings in respect of bensfits received by Gillingham 72
9.3 Benefits received by Commissioner Mti 74
8.4 Findings in respect of Commissioner Mti 74
10 CONCLUSIONS ....cccirinncnssetncemsnmonssciasancrsessase cnrsantussasssmtanssssnesssnnsnsnansasesonsansonn 19

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0019 @

XV

CO-033



BEC
cCcTVv
CEO
CEOQ

| CFO
CSIR
PCS / the Department
DPW
EFT
eNaTIS
HCC
IT
JHB
NBAC
NCC
OAG
ON-IMIS
PFMA -
PSC
RAMP
SAPS
SCMU
SETA
SiU ! the Unit
VPN

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0020

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

Bid Evaiuation Commiitiee

 Closed Circuit Televigion

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Council for Scientific and Industrial Research
Department of Correctional Services
Department of Public Works

Electronic Funds Transfer

National Traffic information Systems

Head of Correctional Centre

Information Technology

Johannesburg

National Bid Adjudication Committee
Network Computing Consultants

Office of the Auditor Generatl

Cpen Network Intelligent Management Information System
Public Finance Management Act

Public Service Commission

Repairs and Maintenance Project

South African Police Service

Supply Chain Management User

Sector Education and Training Authority
Special Investigating Unit

Virtual Private Network

@ )

CO-034__



PROMINENT ROLE PLAYERS
Individual Position
Mr Angelo Agrizzi Chief Executive Officer/General Manager, Bosasa
Operations
Auditor / Consultant: Consilium

Mr Carlos Bonifacio

Consilium (Pty) Ltd

Company linked to Bosasa

Ms Megan Gil!inghém

Mr Gillingham's daughter

Mr Patrick O’Connell Gillingham Jnr

Mr Glllingham’s son

Mr Patrick O'Cannell Gillingham

Chief Deputy Commissicner: Finance

Mr Ryan Albert Gillingham

Mr Gillingham's son

Mrs Theresa Gillingham

Mr Gillingham's spouse

Grande Four Property Trust

A trust linked to WD Mansell

Mr P L.eshabane

Executive Director, Bosasa Group of Companies

Mr William Danie! Mansefl

Consultant; Bosasa & Consilium

Mr Jarrod Mansedl

Mr Mansell's son

Mrs Lisa Manseli

Mr Mansell's daughter-in-law

® Mr Linda Mti National Commissioner: DCS
Dr Jurgen Smith Directar: Consilium
Financial Administrator: Bosasa
Andries van Tonder CFO: Bosasa
Frans Vorster Fleet Manager: Bosasa

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0021

Xvif

C0O-035 -




LIST OF AFFIDAVITS OBTAINED

Name Current Occupation - No. of Affidavits obtained

Mr C Aries DCS Secretariat: Bid Adjudication Committee | Applicable to all Tenders

Mr JDE Basson DCS Deputy Director. Contract Management HK2/2004

Mr J Breytenbach Chief Director; Norms and Standards, National | Applicabie to all Tenders
Treasury '

Dr JJ Coetzee DCS Deputy Commissiocner: Operations and . | HK2/2004, HIK25/2005 |

, Managerment Suppart

MrW Damons DCS Deputy Commissioner: Facilities and HK2/2005, HK24/2005,
Security

Mr P Du Preez DCS Deputy Director: Security Support HK2/2008, HK24/2D05

Mr F Engelbrecht DCS Deputy Regional Commissioner: Gauteng | HK2/2004

Ms B George Legal & Compliance Manager: Construction HK24/2005
Industry Development Board

Mr L Gqfli DCS Director: Formal Education HK26/2005

Mr CJ Haak Director: Correctional Services, Nationai Applicable to a4l Tenders
Treasury

Mr P Leslie DCS Deputy Director: Budget Control. Applicable to all Tenders

Mr J tethoba DCS Director: Systems Development HK25/2005

Mr J Maako DCS Director: Contract Management Applicable to all Tenders

Ms M Mabhena DGCS Director; Health Services HK2/2004, HK25/2005

Mr T Mapasa DCS Director: Procurement Applicable to all Tenders

Mr F Mocheko DCS Director: Building and Maintenance HK2/2005

Mr M Ngubo DCS Deputy Commissioner: Supply Chain HiK2/2005
Management -

Mr W Pretorius DCS Deputy Director: Tender Management HK2/2004, HK24/2005

Mr P Ramorotho DCS Deputy Director: Nutriticn and Hygiene HK 212004
Services

Ms J Sishuba DCS Chief Deputy Commissioner HK2r2004, HK25/2005
Development and Care

Mr HB Steyn DCS Director: Security Management Services | HK2/2005, HK24/2005

Mr H Truter DCS Assistant Director: Professional Services | Applicable to all tenders
Procurement

Ms S Truter DCS Assistant Director: Procurement Pollcy Applicable to all Tenders
Formulation

Mr AJC Venter DCS Area Co-ordinator: Corrections: Gauteng | HK2/2005 and HK24/2005

Mr F Venter DCS Assistant Director: Risk Profile Appficable to all Tenders
Management

Kr JP Venter Principal Engineer: Council for Scientific and ~ | HK25/2005

Industrial Research

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0022

o

CO-036



: CO-037

Name Current Occupation No. of Affidavits obtalned
Mr M Wolela DCS Deputy Commissioner: Communications | HK25/2005
The witness Former Bosasa Employee HK2/2004 and HK2/2005
LIST OF TABLES
Page
Table 1: Dates of deleted data on BosSasa SEIVErS..............c.ccocvveiecesicrninensieersrene e ecees 13
Table 2: Chronology of events regarding the tender process for kitchens tender ............... 19
& Table 3: BEC and NBAC members for Kitchens tNder...................oveecuseuecsrereosesseessssenses 23
Table 4. Chronology of events regarding the bid process of tender HK2/2005 ................... 31
Table 5. BEC and NBAC members for the access control tender...............ccceoeeccvvrcnen... 36
Table 8. Chronology of the key events involved in the bid process for fencing tender......... 41
Table 7: BEC and NBAC members for fencing tender...........cccoerveeieeciiiinnicceec e vesereenns 47
Table 8: Chronclogy of key events in the TV tender.................. ey el e O 52
Table 9: BEC and NBAC members for the TVender............c.cccrvviiivmmvrecniieeeeecssansans 56
Table 10: Combined scoring percentages obtaiNed ..........oo.comeevermseseccssessseene - 57
. Table 11. BEC and NBAC members for TVIender.............ccocvvriiiinicccinicinnnineccenessnenns 58
Table 12: Suspicious cash and cheque deposits into ABSA account held by
Mr GHENGRAM ... et e sre s e sme s s e e e s saebe s aemees 67
xix

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0023



e CO-038

1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Subject of report

The SIU’s findings in the investigation in terms of its terms of reference are set out in
this report. The SIU investigated the kitchens, access control, fencing and television
tenders. The report addresses the SlU's specific findings in relation to these four
tenders. ' ' '

1.2 Background to report

The SIU and the DCS entered their first investigation partnership on 1 October 2002,
This partnership was extended for a further 3-year period on 9 June 2006 and

. terminated on 31 March 2009. As part of ils service offering to the DCS, the SIU was
requested to conduct procurement investigations.

Fairly early in the renewed partnership various allegations were raised in the media
regarding possible irregularities in the procurement processes followed by DCS in
procuring the services of Bosasa, Sondolo and Phezulu. Sondolo and Phezulu form
part of the Bosasa Group of Companies. Further information pertaining to the
formation and directorships of these companies is contained in section 6 (The Bosasa
Group of Companies Structure) below.

This matter was then referred to the SIU in late 2006 by the PSC_ and the CAG. The

SIU was requested to investigate various allegations in respect of these service

providers (as set out in the terms of reference) and two specific officials within DCS,
. namely, Gillingham and Commissioner Mti.

The SIU obtained the. Proclamation®, authorising this and other investigations in the
DCS context, which meant the SIU was then in a position to fully investigate these
tenders. The SiU then accordingly proceeded with its investigation.

1.3 Objectives of report

Section 4(1){d) of the Act® aliows the SIU to refer evidence which points to the
commission of an offence to the relevant Prosecuting Authority.

% Proclamation F44 of 2007, attached as Annexure 2
% The. Special Investigating Units and Special Tribunals Act 74 of 1996, attached as Annexure 3
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Section 5(7) of the Act provides that if during the course of an investigation, any
matter comes to the attention of the Head of the SIU which, in his/her opinion, justifies
the institution of legal proceedings by a state institution against any person, he/she
may bring such matter to the attention of the State Attorney or the institution
concerned, as the case may be.

Bearing the aforesaid provisions in mind, the objectives of the report are to:

*
L ]

give an expositién of the evidence gatheréd during the investigation'
provide a summary of the findings based on the evidence

make recommendations on the institution of legal proceedings.

u 2 METHCDOLOGY

The SIU conducted the investigation as authorised by the Proclamation. The Sit
employed a multi-disciplinary team consisting of forensic lawyers, forensic
accountants, forensic investigators and cyber forensic experts to conduct this
investigation. The SiU applied a uniform methodology across the investigation,-
involving the following:

A review of all relevant documentation related to the tenders listed above
Determining the level of compliance with DCS procurement policy, the relevant
procurement legislation and standards set by Treasury

Conducting interviews with and obtaining affidavits from officials within the DCS
invoived in the procuremént process

Conducting interviews with officials within Treasury and where necessary
obtaining affidavits from them -

Conducting interviews with other witnesses that could shed light on the
investigation

Conducting a financial analysis into the affairs of Gillingham and a more limited
analysis in respect of Commissioner Mii

Conducting search and seizure operations to obtain evidence related to the
investigation

Cbtaining and analysing of computer images obtainad from Bosasa and various
persons who featured in the procurement process

An analysis of the documentary and electronic evidence obtained by the multi-
disciplinary team.

@ 2
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The SIU's conclusions rely on the facts established from the documentary and
electronic information obtained during the course of the investigation.

3 QUTLINE OF RELEVANT POLICIES AND SPECIAL LEGISLATION
APPLICABLE TO INVESTIGATION

3.1 The DCS procurement policy

A summary of the key steps in the procurement processes in the DCS are set out
below.

identification of a need

A need should be identified for the acquisition of a service or goods. A need is based
. on a strategic plan of a depariment within the DCS that serves as a basis for the
identification of resources needed to achieve set objectives. The particular
department's operational plan specifies the timelines for the acquisition of the
resources and the achievement of its set goals. A budget estimate is prepared which
expresses the need for funds necessary to acquire the resources, '

Availability of Funds

All financial matters must first be finalised before bids are invited, i.e. bids should not
be inwited if funds are not avaitable.

Drafting of specifications

. : Specifications should promote the broadest possible competition while simuftaneously
assuring that critical elements of performance are achieved. Specifications should be
based on relevant characteristics and / or performance requirements. The end user is
responsible for the drafting of the specifications of tenders, and may obtain
assistance from the private sector when preparing the specifications. Mowever, the
involvement of the private sector should involve as many role players in the specific
sector as possible to ensure that the specifications are as broadly drafted as possible
and that they encourage competition.

Site Inspection and Explanatory meetings

Where it is necessary to invite prospective bidders to a site inspection or explanatory
meeting, it should be indicated in the invitation to bidders whether this is compulsory

g
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or not. An attendance register should be completed by all attendees. Minutes of sucﬁ
meetings should be taken and distributed to ail prospective bidders that attended.

Maintenance

Bidders are requested to indicate the maintenance structure and cost for the resource
that is being tendered for. This information is used for evaluation purposes and
budgeting.

Preferential Points System

The Preferential Points Syst_em (80/20 or 90/10) was designed to promote the socially
desirable aim of Black Economic Empowerment (BEE). Depending on the value of
the contract, either the 80/20 or the 90/10 points system is applicable. There is a set

. threshold for government contracts that determines which of the two points systems
applies in any given {ender. Assuming for argument's sake that the threshoid is
R5 million, then contracts below that vaiue will be assessed according to the 80/20
system, if the contract is valued at above RS million, the 80/10 system applies. Thus
in dealing with a tender of RS million or less, 20% of the bid evaluation points should
be allocated to the assessment of the bidders BEE profile, and conversely, when
dealing with a tender above R5 miillion, the 90/10 principle applies and only 10% of
the bid evaluation points are allocated to the evaluation of the bidder’s BEE status.
The particular points system applicable, whether 80/20 or 80/10, should be indicated
in the bid documents.

Evaluation Criteria

. In all four tenders referred to above and reviewed by the SiIU, the price and
. functionality evaluation criteria were adopted by the DCS. National Treasury
Regulations and Practice Notes set out the circumstances in which the price and

functionality criteria shouid be applied.

Compiling bid documents

Bid documents are compiled and issued o prospective bidders by the Procurement
Unit (PU) and consist of Specifications, Terms of Reference (TOR), General
Conditions and other standard documents which address issues such as pricing,
price adjustments, declarations of interest, etc.

4
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Communication with bidders

Before bids close, communication between the officials of the department and
prospeciive bidders may take place to clarify issues about the bid. During the
evalyation of bids, delegated officials of the PU may communicate in writing with the
bidders to obtain information where it is incomplete for clarification.

Approval to procure and appointment of Bid Evaluation Committee (BEC) .

The BEC members are recommended by the end user and approved by the

accounting officer of the relevant department seeking to acquire the resource. This

committee evaluates bids according to given criteria, supplied at the commencement

of the evaluation process. The process remains confidential. All members are
. required to declare any interests beforehand. '

Appointment of the Bid Adjudication Committee (NBAC)

The members of the BAC are appointed by the accounting officer of the relevant
department seeking to acquire the resource. There is a naticnal BAC (NBAC) that
considers recommendations in all cases with an estimated value of above RS miltion.
All members are required to declare any interests beforehand. No member of the
BAC is appointed to the BEC or vice versa.

Invitation to bid

The PU is responsible for the compilation of the tender invitation based on detailed
specifications and available funding. The bid is advertised in the government tender

. bulletin and in other media. The minimum period of 30 days between the publication
date of the bid invitation and the closing time of bids' may be extended for longer
periods for tenders that are more complicated or shortened in appropriate
circumstances. In terms of the advertisement, interested parties are invited to uplift
the bid documents from the Department.

The bid documents contain comprehensive details of the procedure to be followed in
submitting bids, qualifying criteria, forms to be completed, how the bids would be
scored, special bid specifications etc. The bid documents form the sum total of all the
information supplied to bidders to 'enable them to submit their bids. In the bid
documents, the BEC may reserve the right to call for presentations from bidders,

should this need arise.
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Receiving bids and opening of bids

Bids must be opened In public as soon as possible after closing time by officials
authorised in writing. Bids are given a registration mark of authenticity and all bids
received must be listed. The names of the bidders and their individual total prices
should be recorded when bids are opened. All bid documents must be scrutinised and
initialied to prevent unnecessary criticism.

In all four tend‘ers investigated by the SIU, the bid documents réquired bidders to
submit their proposals in two separate parts — the one dealing with functionality and
the other with price — each part to be contained in a different envelope. The first
envelope had to contain the technical proposal (bid relating to functionality) and the
second, the price proposal.

Evaluation criteria of bids by BEC

The threshold score for functionality in respect of each of the bids was set at 70%.
Only those bidders whose functionality proposals met or bettered the threshold score,
quatified to have their price proposais considered.

Once the scoring for the pricing proposals is complete, the scores for the functional
and pricing proposals are applied to prescribed formulae to determine which of the
bidders scored the highest points.

BAC assessment based on BEC recomm_endations

All relevant information must be placed before the NBAC to enable it to take an

. appropriate decision. To this end, all documentation relevant to the BEC's
evaluation/scoring of the bidders, as well as the consclidated scoring of points by
SCM/PU, is required to be placed before the NBAC.

Should the NBAC have any questions around any of the issues regarding the scoring
and evaluation, they should obtain clarification from the bodies concerned that is to
say, BEC, PU etc.

Awarding of contract

After the NBAC has approved the awarding of a contract, the successful bidder is
advised of the acceptance of its bid by letter/facsimile. The successful bidder is
allowed seven days within which to conclude a standard written contract, which must
be signed before the validity period of the bid has expired. Bid results are then
advertised in at least the govemment tender bulletin. g

<]
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Further phases of contract

The further phases of the procurement process - placing an order, payments and
contract management - are dealt with peripherally in this report, and therefore they
. are not get out here.

3.2 Treasury guidelines regarding budgeting for the tender process

Within the DCS, there was a substantial monetary saving in the compensation on
employees’ budget for the 2005/2006 financial year. Money from this saving was
applied to fund some of the tenders under discussion.

The SIU obtained information relevant to the employment of the savings referred to
above from Mr CJ Haak’ {Haak) from National Treasury. Haak holds the position of
& Director: Correctional Services.

According to Haak, there are specific rules in the Public Finance Management Act (1
of 1998) (PFMA) and regulations which permit funds already budgeted for to be
moved across to different programmes. it is only when, within the virement rules —
moving funds from one programme to another, provided that such movement does
not exceed 8% of the total aflocation of the transferring programme — the budget from
which funds are sought to be transfemred is increased, that approval from National
Treasury would be required.

Accordingly, the DCS was entitled to re-prioritise funds for the 2005/2008 financial

year, and was thus entitled to use the compensation of employees’ funds for projects

such as fencing, television and other fenders, provided the budget from which these
. funds were being transferred was not increased.

The DCS accordingly used section 43 of the PFMA to transfer R769 million from the
Compensation of Employees programme to the Machinery and Equipment
prograrme under Capital Assets.

The information imparted to the SIU by Haak was confimed by Mr P Leslie® (Leslie),
the DCS Deputy Director: Budget Control.

According to Leslie, the fact that the funds for the fencing and television tenders were
utilised towards the end of the financial year, resulted in the procurement process
being rushed. For this reason, according to Leslie, the costs of the fencing and

T See affidavit of Mr Haak, Annexure 4
® See affidavit of Mr P Leslie, Annexure 5
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television tenders, taken together with a further project relating to information
technelogy and the purchasing of government vehicles, amounted te more than the
initial saving of R641 million. Additional funds were subsequently sourced from “white
paper” funds in the following year.

Lastly, according to Leslie, National Treasury had complained about spending such
large amounts close to the end of the financial year and commented that it was
equivalent to "fiscal dumping®, i.e. where departments spend Iarge' amounts of money
just prior to the financial year end to exhaust their budget, ignoring whether the
department gets value or not for such spending.

The SIU interviewed Mr J Breytenbach® (Breytenbach) of National Treasury with a
view to obfaining clarity on a number of aspects applicable to the procurement

‘ process and to enable the SIU to appraise the procurement processes followed by
the DCS and those prescribed by National Treasury.

According {o Breytenbach, ail goods and services procured by State Departments
were required to be procured through the State Tender Board. The amended State
Tender Board Regulations now make it possible for accounting officers of national
state depariments to procure goods and services either through the State Tender
Board Act, or alternatively, in terms of the PFMA. On 5 December 2003, National
Treasury issued a circular to all accounting officers confirming that they now had this
option available to them and, in addition, issued a number of practice notes in terms
of the 2003 regulations.

According to a Ms $ Truter'® (S Truter), Assistant Director Procurement Policy

‘ Formulation, on 8 March 2004, Commissioner Mti, opted for the DCS procuring goods
and services in terms of the PFMA. As an interim measure, the DCS used the
prescripts. of the ST37: User Manual: Directives from March 2004 to May 2005, after
which its own DCS SCM User Manual: Directives came into effect.

According to Breytenbach, in the event of inconsistencies between the prescriﬁts of
the ST37 and the SCM prescripts, the prescripts of National Treasury prevail.
Furtherrnore, section 3{3) of the PFMA provides that if there are inconsistencies
between any other legisfation and the PFMA, the PFMA prevails.

% See affidavit of Mr Breytenbach, Annexure 6
' See affidavit of Ms S Truter, Annexure 7
/@ 3
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Further, according to Breytenbach, planning plays an integral part in SCM, and any
irregular, unauthorised or fruitless and wasteful expenditure, is regarded as an act of
financial misconduct in terms of section 38(1)(h)(iii} of the PFMA,

Paragraph 4.1.1 of ST37 provides tha! the department with a requirement for a
product will usually initiate the drafling of the specifications or identify an existing
specification that meets the requirement.

Howevér, paragraph 4.1.1 only i:revailed until 26 October 2004. Thereafter Nation'ai

Treasury's circular entitled ‘Implementation of Supply Chain Management of 27

October 2004', provides for the appointment of a Bid Specification Committee (BSC),

~ @ BEC and a BAC. Paragraph 4.1(a) of the circular, provides that the BSC is

responsible for compiling the bid specifications and that the specifications should be

. written in an unbiased manner to allow all potential bidders to offer their goods and/or
services.

The position regarding the drafting of bid specifications changed with effect from
15 March 2005 when a new set of Treasury Regulations (the 2005 Treasury
Regulations), issued in terms of the PFMA, came info effect. Regulation 16A6.2(b) of
the 2005 Treasury Regulations, prescribes that a supply chain management system
must, in the case of procurement through a bidding process, provide for the
establishment, composition and functioning of bid specification, evaiuation and
adjudication committees. As from 15 March 2005, failure to establish a BSC
constitutes imegular expenditure in terms of the PFMA.

Treasury Regulation 6.3(c) of the 2003 regulations provides that procurement through

‘ a bidding process, must provide for bids to be advertised for at least 30 days prior to
closure, except in urgent cases when bids might be advertised for a shorter period as
decided by the accounting officer. The shortening of the closing date for a complex
tender may also be regarded as unfair to potential bidders in terms of section 217(1)
of the Constitution.

According to Breytenbach, there are no specific prescripts regarding the drafting of
evaluation criteria, but ideally the criteria should be drafted by the same person/s or
committee that drafted the bid specifications.

In respect of the bid evaluation process, regulation 16A8,3{d) of the 2005 Treasury
regulations, provides that a SCM official or other role player must ensure that they do
not compromise the credibility or integrity of the SCM system through the acceptance
of gifts, hospitality, or any other act. Sub-regulations 16A8.4(a) and (b) provide that if

'R
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a SCM official or other role player, or any close family member, partner or associate
of such official or other role player, has any private or business interest in any
contract to be awarded, that official or other role player must disclose that interest and
withdraw from participating in any manner whatsoever in the process relating to that
contract. Failure to do so may be regarded as an act of abuse of the SCM system and
the official may be charged in terms of Reguiation 16A9 of the 2005 Treasury
Regulations.‘

Further, practice note SCM 3 of 2003 introduced the concept of the evaluation of bids
based on functionality and price. The evaluation of bids in terms of functionality and
price, however, only applies fo bids where the services of consuitants, such as
consulting firms, engineering firms, auditors and research agencies {professional
services), are procured.

Paragraph 1.1 of practice note SCM 3 of 2003, specifically provides that the
evaluation of bids on the basis of functionality and price, do not apply to general
services such as construction works, manufacture of goods, operation and
maintenance of facilities or plants, surveys, catering, cleaning and security in which
the physical aspects of the activity predominates. ‘

According to Breytenbach, the evaluation method involving the application of
functionality and price, which was appiied in the four tenders referred to above, was
incorrectly applied and its application was contrary to Treasury Regulations.
According to him, the evaluation method that should have been applied fo these
tenders was where price was the most important factor.

.' Breytenbach also explained that there is a duty on the BEC to inform the BAC if the
tender price of the recommended bids exceeded the available budget. Section
38(1)(h)(iii) of the PFMA, provides that the accounting officer must take effective and
appropriate disciplinary steps against any official in the service of the department,
who makes or permits unauthorised, irregular, fruitless and wasteful expenditure. In
addition, there is a duty on the BEC to ensure that a recommended bidder’s price is
reasonable prior to recommending to the BAC that the bid should be awarded to their
preferred bidder.

With regard to contract administration, and in particular, upfront or advance payments
to contractors, regulation 15.10.1.2(c) of the 2005 Treasury regulations, provides that
prepayments for goods or services must be avoided, unless required by the
contractual arrangements with the suppilier.

10
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Section 38(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA prescribes that an accounting officer must ensure that
his/her department has and maintains an effective, efficient and transparent system of
financial and risk management and internal control.

Paragraph 16.1.4 of practice note SCM 3 of 2003, provides that any changes to a
contract that would in aggregate increase the original amount of the contract by more
than 15%, is subject to the approval of the accounting officer or histher delegate.
Variation orders should also not Infringe on the provisions of section 217(1) of the
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa (Act 108 of 1996) (Constitution).

Paragraph 16.1.1 of practice note SCM 3 of 2003, deals with modifications to and

extensions of contracts. Although the accounting officer has the authority to approve

modifications {o and extensions of contracts, such approval should not infringe the
. provisions of section 217(1) of the Constitution.

Paragraphs 21, 22 and 23 of the practice note SCM 1 of 2003, govern the contractual
provisions regarding delays in the supplier's performance, penaities and the
determination of default procedures to be followed, when a contractor fails to
complete a contract by completion date. '

The SIU also interviewed 8 Truter', Assistant Oirector: Procurement Policy
Formulation in the DCS. § Truter explained the DCS policy pertaining to the
submission of tax clearance certificates. According to her, practice note SCM 3 of
2006, provides that if the Depariment is in possession of an original tax clearance
certificate, it is not necessary to obtain & new tax clearance certificate each time a
price quotation is submitted from that specific supplier.

. Lastly, it needs to be observed, that section 21 7{1) of the Constitution provides that
when an organ of state contracts for goods and services, it must do so in accordance
with a system that is fair, equitable, transparent, competitive and cost effective.

3.3 The Construction Industry Development Board legislation and
regulations

The SIU approached the Construction Industry Development Board (CIDB) to obtain
information regarding the legislative framework that was applicable to construction
tenders. This is specifically relevant to the fencing tender that was advertised in 2005.
The purpose of the initial contact with the CIDB was to determine whether the

4
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relevant CIDB prescripts had been complied with when the DCS advertised and
awarded the tender.

The CIDB was established in April 200t in terms of the Construction Industry
Development Board Act (38 of 2000) (CIDB Act), to regulate and develop the
construction industry for improved perfermance in infrastructure delivery. A further
aim of the CIDB, is to promote uniform application of policy with regard to the

-construction industry throughout all spheres of government.

The SIU interviewed Ms B George™ (George), the CIDB Legal and Compliance
Manager. George advised the SIU on the provisions of the CIDB Act, its regulations
and its application to the construction indusiry. Further details regarding the
application of the CIDB Act and its regulations as regards the fencing tender are
discussed later herein in sections 8.3.1 and 8.3.2.

LIMITATION ON THE INVESTIGATION

The report Is based on the review and analysis of documentary and electronic
evidence, interviews conducted and affidavits obtained by the SIU. The investigation,
however, was constrained by litigation as explained hereunder.

Bosasa has sought by way of application proceedings in the North Gauteng Division
of the High Court of South Africa, to interdict the SIU from investigating the full scope
of Bosasa's activities regarding the awarding of the four tenders to it by the DCS. As
a result of the application, the SIU gave an undertaking not to interrogate material
witnesses pending the finalisation of action proceedings for a final order, The SIU has
accordingly not interrogated various Bosasa officials, its auditors and other witnesses,
who could impant material information regarding issues relating to the investigation.
The investigation has accordingly not been as intensive as the SIU would have
wanted, and accordingly, any /acunae that exist in the investigation, will be addressed
upon the resolution of the litigation between the SIU and Bosasa.

"2 See affidavit of Ms B George, Annexure 8
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5 CYBER FORENSIC EXPERTISE ENGAGED BY THE SIU

The SIU employed the services of a cyber forensic expert, Mr J Malan™ (Malan), to
assist it with the retrieval and analysis of electronic data obtained from Bosasa and

Gillingham,

The SIU served notices in terms of section 5(2)(b) and {¢) of the Act, on Bosasa
requesting inter alia that Bosasa provide the SIU with access to its servers so that the
SIU could obtain electronic copies of relevant data relating to this investigation.
Bosasa offered to assist the SIU with its investigation. The SIU and Bosasa reached
an agreement in terms of which the SIU would be granted access to Bosasa's servers
and laptops so that mirror images could be made of them.

. The imaging was initially scheduled to take place in the first week of December 2008,
but at the request of Bosasa, this process was postponed until the second week of
December 2008, From 8 to 16 December 2008, the SIU made mirror images of the
data on the Bosasa file server environment, domain controller system, email server,
financial system server as well as of the personal laptops of Agrizzi, Mr A van Tonder
(van Tonder) and Mr F Vorster (Vorster). During the imaging process, the SIU was
denied access to one server. After the intervention of Adv J Wells, the SIU's Legal
Advisor, access was eventually granted and the server was imaged.

Malan analysed the data obtained from Bosasa, using keyword searches. During his
initial analysis of the data, he identified that a data deletion utility known as Eraser
had been used to delete a significant amount of data on the servers. Tabie 1 below,
reflects the dates on which the data was erased.

Table 1: Dates of deleted data on Bosasa servers
Server name Document Timeline of Comment

and folder modification
count and deletion
Domain server 32 769 24 July 2008 Documents appear to have been
ADS01 overwtitten and then deleted
Domain server 60 2 December Mostly archived documents
ADSD1 2008 were overwritten and deleted
File server 116 3 December Folder names appear to have
2008 been overwritten with random
data and then deleted
¥ See affidavit of M J Malan, Annexure 9
* The Eraser product is marketed as software that can frustrate cyber forensic investigations.
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File server 468 4 December Folder names appear to have
2008 been overwritten with random
data and then deleted
Domain server 7130 © December Documents appear to have been
ADSO1 2008 overwritten and then deleted

Because of the use of the Eraser utility, Malan had to employ advanced data
recovery techniques, which assisted him in his endeavour to recover the maximum
amount of data. :

Malan also analysed the mirror images of Gilingham's computers and other

electronic data storage facilities, obtained during a search conducted at Gillingham's

residence in terms of section 6 of the Act. The Eraser utility was also found on

Gillingham’s system, but Malan found that the utility was not used extensively on his
. computer to destroy data.

Documents of particular relevance to the investigation of the kitchens and ‘access
control tenders, were retrieved and analysed by Malan and are dealt with under the
discussion of these tenders.

6 THE BOSASA GROUP OF COMPANIES STRUCTURE

The S!U conducted an investigation into the establishment and structure of the
Bosasa Group of Companies. The SIU's findings are based on information obtained
from the Registrar of Companies, the previous auditors of the Bosasa Group, tender
documentation submitted by Bosasa, Sondolo and Phezulu and from the official
Bosasa website. The SIU's findings are set out below.

6.1 Bosasa Operations (Pty) Ltd

During December 1981, a company known as Emafini (Pty) Ltd was formed by
Mr SJH Van Zijl (Van Zijl). In December 1984, .Smith was appointed to Emafini as a
Director. Emafini then changed its name to Meritum Hostels (Pty) Ltd in February
1985.

On 20 June 1996, Van Zijl and Smith entered inte a pre-incorporation agreement with
a trust, stipulating that a new holding company would be formed and a new
operations company would be estabiished to render the services far this holding
company, administered by the trust. Mansell signed as a witness to the pre-
incorporation agreement.

14
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As a result of this agreement, Meritum Hostels became known as Dyambu
Operations (Pty} Ltd (Dyambu Operations), and the trust, as the Dyambu Trust and
the holding company, as Dyambu Holdings. In November 2000, Dyambu Operations
changed its name to Bosasa Operations (Pty) Ltd.

Mansell was an active Director of Dyambu Operations from 1 June 1997. He resigned
as a Director of Dyambu Operations in November 2000, when Dyambu Operations
became Bosasa.-Despite his resignation from Dyambu Operations,- he remained on
as a consultant with Bosasa and operated as such during the period that Bosasa was
awarded contracts from DCS.

6.2 Sondolo IT (Pty) Ltd and Phezulu Fencing (Pty) Ltd

Sondolo, previcusly known as Mavava Trading (Pty) Ltd, was formed in 2005, while
. Phezulu, previously known as Nino Construction, changed its name to Phezulu
Fencing in 1997,

Upon changing its name in 2005, Sondolo appointed Bester Viljoen Incorporated as
its auditors. At this time, Johannes Gumede, Tony Perry, Papa Leshabane, Brian
Gwebu, Jacqueline Leyds, Nomazulu Makoko (among others), were appointed as
directors of Sondolo. These individuals were all affiliated to Bosasa.

In December 2005, a number of directors resigned from Phezulu, whilst directors
such as Jacqueline Leyds and Victor Mhangwana, with previous Bosasa affiliations,
were appointed in their stead as the new directors of Phezulu. At this stage, the
auditors for Phezulu, were changed from PricewaterhouseCoopers to Bester Viljoen
Incorporated, the auditors for Bosasa and Sondolo.

According to the documentation obtained from the Registrar of Companies, Bosasa,
Sondolo and Phezulu have the following in common;

» Bester Viljoen Incorporated are their auditors
= Jacqueline Leyds is a director of all three companies

+« Bosasa and Sondolo have Johannes Gumede, Munirah Qliveria and Ishmae!
Mncwaba as directors

» Bosasa and Sondolo share the same physical business address, namely,
1 Windsor Road, Mogale City, Krugersdorp, 1739,

In addition to the above, the documents obtained from the Registrar of Companies,
indicate that company changes within Sondcio and Phezulu were addressed to

15
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Bosasa. According to the Bosasa website, both Sondolo and Phezuly, fall within the
Bosasa Group of Companies.

During the course of the investigation, a document compiled by Agrizzi, was handed
to the SiU. This document, entitted Summeary Company Structure™, indicated that
Sondolo was owned by four companies, namely, Bancar Invesiment Holdings (Pty)
Ltd (25%), Kgwerano Financial Services (Pty) Ltd (25%), Bosasa Youth Development
Foundation {10%) and Bosasa (40%). On ite website, Bosasa maintains that these

companies are all afffiated to the Bosasa Group. The Summary Company Structure .

document in addition, indicated that Phezulu appointed Sondolo as its project
manager and integrator of the fencing coniract.

Lastly, the tender documentation submitted by Sondolo and Phezulu, confirm that
they are part of the Bosasa Group of Companies and that they are dependent on
each other for the delivery of services.

COMMISSIONER MTI'S FORMAL RELATIONSHIP WITH BOSASA

From the information obtained from the Registrar ¢f Companies, Commissioner Mti is
the director of a company called Llanorah investment Consultancy (Pty) Lid
(Lianorah). Further information from the Registrar of Companies indicated that
Lianorah is in one way or another, linked to Bosasa. These links include the following:

» Both Sondolo and Lianorah's registration documentation refiects Mr Stephan-
Kruger as the initia! director, with BGB Smit as the auditors

« Both Sondoic and Lianorah appointed Bester Viljoen Incorporated as their new
auditor in place of BGB Smit

« Bester Viljoen incorporated are the auditors for Bosasa.

At the time Lianorah's incorporation, Commissioner Mti was the DCS Nationa!
Commissioner. The timing of the registration of the above entity appears to coincide
with the awarding to Sondolo of the access control tender, on or about 19 April 2005.

The analysis conducted by the SIU, has revealed that Lianoréh was deregistered on
20 April 2007.

¥ See Annexure 10
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8 ANALYSIS OF CONTRACTS

Against the background of this information, the SIU analysed the procurement
process refated to the four contracts referred to above. The evaluation of each one, is
deait with below.

8.1 The kitchens tender: HK2/2004

The kitchens tender was awarded to Bosasa on 26 July 2004. The scope ‘of the
kitchens tender entailed the providing of full catering services, including full
mainfenance of kitchen equipment, cleaning and training of DCS staff and inmates, at
correctional centres in seven management areas. These areas were Pretoria,
Johannesburg, Durban Westvllle, Krugersdorp, Pollsmoor, Modderbee and St Albans.

. The bid was advertised on 21 May 2004, and it required the rendering of services
over a 3-year period (1 August 2004 to 31 July 2007), at a cost of approximately
R23€ 427 694 per annum.

8.1.1 Evidence gathered

Engagemant with the service provider prior to publication of the tender

The SIU ascertained that a DCS Executive Management Commitiee (EMC) meeting
was held at Supersport Park in Centurion, Pretoria between November 2003 and
early 2004. Al this meefing, Agrizzi and Leshabane from Bosasa made a presentation
to the attending DCS officials, including Commissioner Mti, Gillingham and
Mr F Engelbrecht, the Regional Commissioner of DCS, Gauteng (Engelbrecht)'.

. The Bosasa presentation was to advise the DCS of the services Bosasa was able to
provide, including catering and measures to prevent the theft of food from prison
kitchens.

This meeting ook place not only prior to the advertising of the kitchens tender, but
also before it was made known within the DCS that it would be outsourcing catering
services, the full maintenance of kitchen equipment and the training of DCS staff and
inmates at correctional centres.

Engelbrecht raised questions regarding the viability of outsourcing catering facilities
after the Supersport Park presentation. His concern related to job securily of DCS

8 See affidavil of Mr Engelbrecht, Annexure 11,
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staff, the sustainability of such a venture, its budget and the effect of such outsourcing
on offender labour. He stated that in response to his questions, Commissioner Mti
had rudely instructed him to stop asking questions.

During a later EMC meeting held prior to May 2004, in Magaliesburg, Gillingham did a
presentation regarding the outsourcing of catering services due to the amendments to
the Correctional Services Act (111 of 1998} (Correctional Services Act), The
relevant amendment to the Correctional Services Act provides:

“Food must be well prepared and served at intervals of not less that four and a
half hours and not more than 14 hours between the evening meal and
breakfast during each 24 hour period”.

During the presentation, Gillingham highlighted the fact that the amendment set

‘ requirements which the DCS might not have the capacity lo deal with effectively. In
addition, he touched on aspects relating to the theft of food in prisons and genreral
hygiene in prison kitchens. At the time of this presentation, Gillingham was the
Regional Commissioner: North West, Mpumalanga and Limpopo.

Shortly after the presentation in Magaliesburg, the BCS CFO, Mr Tshivhase
(Tshivhase), announced that the DCS would be outsourcing catering services.
Gillingham was appointéd as the project leader for this tender, which was then
pricritised. Two DCS procurement officiale, namely, Messrs W Pretorius” (Pretorius)
and Truter were requested to assist Gillingham with the project.

According to Engelbrecht, the Directorate: Health Care Services was responsible for
nutritional services, and to his knowledge, none of the officials from that Directorate,

. were consulted by Gillingham regarding the drafting of the specifications for this
tender.

The timeline of the tender

According to Mr H Truter (Truter)*, requests to invite bids had to be in writing, and a
written instruction to proceed with invitations, needed prior approval, The kitchens
tender was approved by Commissioner Mti on 24 May 2004. The bid was adverised
on 21 May 2004, and the closing date was 25 June 2004. Compulsory briefing
sessions were held from 4-15 June 2004 in all seven management areas where
kitchen services were to be outsocurced. The awarding of the bid by the NBAC was

7 See affidavit of Mr Pretorius, Annexure 12
® See affidavit of Mr Truter, Annexure 13 -
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scheduled for finalisation on 21 July 2004, but due to delays, the bid was only
awarded on 27 July 2004, to Bosasa. Due to the abovementioned delays, Bosasa
only commenced with performance on 16 August 2004, as opposed to the original
performance date, namely, 1 August 2004,

For ease of reference, the chronological sequence of key events in the tender
process for the kitchens tender is encapsulated in Table 2 below.

Table 2: Chronology of events regarding the tender process for the kitchens tender
Date Activity

21 May 2004 -25 Jun 2004 | Advertising of bid

11 Jun 2004 Scheduled bid collection

4 Jun 2004 Compulsory information meeting
. 4 Jun 2004 — 15 Jun 2004 | Compulsory site meetings

25 Jun 2004 Closing date for bids

28 Jun 2004 - 30 Jun 2004 | Screening of the bids

1 Jul 2004 ~ 8 Jul 2004 Evaluation process

12 Jul 2004 = 13 Jul 2004 Compiling by the BEC of their recommendations
14 Jul 2004 - 16 Jul 2007 Verification, preparation, recommendation and submission to

the NBAC

20 Jul 2004 Awarding of the bid {0 Bosasa

21 Jul 2004 Scheduled date on which successful bidder was to be notified
of award of bid

27 Jul 2004 Actual date on which Bosasa was informed that it was the
successiul bidder . .

29 Jul 2004 Signing of ¢ontract between DCS and Bosasa

. 1 Aug 2004 Scheduled date for commencement of services by Bosasa
16 Aug 2004 Actual date on which Bosasa started to render services

Drafting of the bid specifications

The SIU interviewed Mr T Mapasa (Mapasa), the DCS Director: Procurement™,
According to him, the user department in terms of DCS procurement directives must
assume responsibility for identifying the need, motivating the urgency and importance
of the proposed tender, indicating the value or benefits to be derived from the tender
and the providing of an estimate of the cost of the tender. Accordingly, a preliminary
step in the procurement process is'the identification by the relevant department of a
need that is catered for in terms of its sirategic plan.

'® See affidavit of Mr Mapasa, Annexure 14 -
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The SIU could find no evidence that a needs analysis or feasibility study was
conducted prior to the initiation of this tender process.

Although the kitchens contract should have originated in the DCS Directorate:
Development & Care, the SIU established that the need for the kitchens contract did
not originate in this directorate nor did this directorate initiate the process.

The SIU mtervuewed s J Sishuba (Slshuba) DCS Chief Deputy Commussnoner
Development and Care and Ms M Mabena (Mabena)®, DCS Director: Health
Services. They advised that their directorates were excluded from the entire tender
process, despite the fact that nutrition fell under their directorates as end users.
According to them, Gillingham had assumed responsibility for the initiation and
implementation of the procurement process.

. The SWJ interviewed the fommer Director: Security Management Services,
Mr AJC Venter” (Venter). Venter confirned that he had neither taken part in the
tender procéss for the Kitchens tender nor was he or any other official from his
directorate approached by either Gillingham or any other official for input in respect of
the kitchens tender, specifically with regard to the security elements of the tender.

As regards the drafting of the specifications for the tender under discussion, Pretorius
informed the SIU that during a meeting he had with Gillingham, the latter advised that
he was developing specifications for the tender and handed Pretorius a two-page
document that he was requested to peruse. The document handed to him, however,
addressed only the aspects of training and equipment, but not the aspects relating to
the preparation of food and ration scales, the heart of the kitchens tender. Pretorius

. advised that he suggested to Gillingham that the specifications used for the
outsourcing of catering services at the Ekuseni Youthy Centre be used as the basis for
the development of the specifications for the kitchens tender. His subordinate, Truter,
emailed these specifications to Gillingham.

Truter confirmed that Gillingham's specifications forwarded to him, were very basic
and did not address the important aspects of the tender, such as provisioning of food,
preparation, rationing scales, etc. In Truter’s view, the tender was rushed, because on
10 May 2004, Gillingham had decided that the tender should be published on 21 May
2004.

¥ See affidavits of Ms Sishubs and Mabena. Annexure 15 and 16 respectively
2! See affidavit of Mr Venter, Annexure 17
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According to Pretorius and Truter, they advised Gillingham on how to comply with the
procurement process. However, they did not assist him with the technical aspects of
the specifications, as they did not possess the required technical knowiedge.

It is unclear to the SIU what qualified Gillingham to draft the specifications for this bid
as he only possessed a matric qualification and was not a nutrition expert.

A review of the tender specifications revealed that a number of unusual specifications

'were included in the bid, namely:

« The instaliation of security cameras

» The requirement that bidders must have accredited security personnel with
proven track records of installing and monitoring offsite (CCTV) and internet
protocol surveillance and be International Standards Organisation 9001:2000
(1SO) compiiant

o Bidders were required to have a fully functional integrated maintenance
department experienced in facilities management with a minimum of 5 years
experience '

« Bidders were required to have a temporary mobile facility which complied with
minimum health requirements to be utilised whilst the kitchens were being
upgraded

» Bidders were required to procure the services of two gualified dieticians on their
full time payroll, despite DCS having full-time dieticians on their payroll.

The SIU has further established from the witness® that Agrizzi requested him to
develop a solution for the installation of various types of security equipment in
correctional centre Kitchens. According to him, he was informed by Agrizzi that the
solution would be added to the tender specifications to ensure that Bosasa enjoyed
an advantage over the other bidders. The witness advises that this solution formed
part of the aventual tender specifications.

In the bid, the following security equipment was specified:

+ Surveillance cameras in the kitchens
+ Digital video recorders in each kitchen office
» Control and review personal computers in each kitchen office

« Access control systems in store rooms and fridges

# The affidavit of this witness wili be withheld and provided to DCS upon request
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« Wide area network connectivity to provide off-site surveillance.

During the security roll-out for the kitchens tendeér in August/Septamber 2004, the
witness was introduced to Mansell who had previously visited the Bosasa premises.
The witness was informed that Mansell was a consuitant and former partner of a
Mr G Watson (Watson), the CEQ of Bosasa. According to the witness, Manseli
occupied an office in one of the Bosasa buildings and was often in the company of

Agrizzi.
The bid evaluation and adjudication process

On 1 July 2004, the Code of Conduct and Declaration of Interest forms were signed
by the members of the BEC in terms of which they were required to declare their
interest, if any, in any of the bidders. Gillingham, as chairperson of the BEC, signed

. this form and indicated that he had no interest in any of the bidders for the kitchens
conltract.

Despite the fact that the kitchens contract was not a tender for consultant services,
the DCS used the price and functionality tender evaluation method. Truter confirms
that only Bosasa and Sechaba Catering Services (Sechaba) met the threshold for
functionality and hence qualified for the second phase.

Members of the BEC* were informed by Gillingham, the Chairperson of the BEC, that
the purpose of the Kitchens tender, was {o ensure that DCS complied with the
amendments to thé Correctional Services Act, with specific reference to section 8(5),
referred to earlier.

. The SIU interviewed Dr J Coetsee® (Coetsee), a member of the BEC that evaluated
the kitchens tender. He informed the SIU that during the evaluation of the kitchens
tender by the BEC, he observed that although the budget for the kitchens tender had
been sourced from the Directorate: Health Care Services, this directorate had not
requested the tender. Other BEC members further observed that the entire tender
process had been managed by Gillingham.

From documentation made available to the SIU, it appears that after the awarding of
the contract to Bosasa, & complaint was received from Sechaba, questioning the
basis on which the tender was awarded to Bosasa. Sechaba complained that its
pricing was reasonable in the light of its knowledge of prisons and high volume

# see affidavit of Mr Coetsee, attached as Annexure 18 g
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feeding. In its response to the complaint, the DCS stated that the BEC was satisfied
that Bosasa had best met the requirements for the tender.

The SIU in the course of ils investigation obtained a file relating to allegations of
maladministration and misconduct. It was alleged that Gillingham had an affair with
his secretary, submitted fraudulent subsistence and travel claims (S&T claims) and
had intimidated certain staff members.® Disciplinary action was recommended by
DCS Deputy Commissioner: Legal and Special Operations, Adv T Mqobi (Mqobi),
and DCS Chief Deputy Commissioner (CDC) Central Services, Ms J Schreiner.
Contrary to the recommendations, Commissioner Mti sent a letter to Gillingham in
which on the one hand he chides him for his misconduct, but on the other thanks him
for repaying the irregularly obtained S&T monies. In the same letter, Commissioner
Mti proceeded to appoint Gillingham as the DCS Acting CFO, which effectively gave

. him oversight of the procurement division. This appointment was shortly before the
kitchens tender was awarded to Bosasa.

For ease of reference, the names of the members of the BEC and NBAC are set out
in Table 3 below. It will be noliced that Gillingham served on both committees, in the
BEC as its chairman and in the NBAC, in an advisory capacity.

Table 3: BEC and NBAC members for the kitchens tender

Bid Evaluation Committee

Gillingham CDC Finance

{Chairperson)

Costzee Dir: Formal Education

Davids Area Commissioner: Johannesburg Management Area
’ Mabena Dir: Health Care Services

Mdletye Area Co-ordinator: Development and Care: Durban Corectional Centre

Moodley DC: Personnel Comections

Maako Dir. Contract Management

Lenkoe Regional Head: Development and Care: Gauteng

FJ Venter Secretary to BEC

National Bid Adjudication Committee

Schreiner CDC: Central Services

{Chairperson)

Sishuba CDC: Development & Care

Gillingham CDC: Finance {Advisory Capacity)

% Thess details were obtained from the disciplinary file complled by the DCS DU

45

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0046



CO-061

Ngubo DC: Supply Chain Management
Mapasa Dir: Procurement

Pretorius Procurement: Secretariat

Arias Procurement: Secretariat
Truter Procurement

The cyber forensic expert’s evidence

Malan recovered a document entitled Checklist.doc, obtained from the images seized

at Gilingham's residence. The document contains bid evaluation criteria and

guidelines for evaluating the kitchens tender. These criteria and guidelines obviously,

should not have been in the possession of any bidder and especially not before the

submission of tenders, since it would enable the bidder to know in advance the
. weighting of certain factors relevant to the tender.

Malan was able to establish that the document was created on 28 June 2004, and
saved on the same date by Agrizzi. According to Malan, the document originated from
Agrizzi's compuler but the date of first creation could not be established, given the
fact that Bosasa had used the Eraser utility to selectively erase certaln information on
its servers. Significantly, however, 28 June 2004, was the date on which DCS started

to screen the bids in the kitchens tender.

Email logs between Agrizzi, Mansell and kobus@bfn.co.za

During the SIU's investigation of the access control tender an email address®,

Kobus@bfn.co.za, was linked to Gillingham.

. According to Venter, Gillingham explained to him that kobus@bfn.co.za was his
residential e-mail address.

The S1U determined that this email address belonged to an entity called Network and
Computing Consultants (NCC), situated in Bloemfontein,

Mr F De Viliers” of NCC informed the SIU that kobus@bfn.co.za was an email
address belonging to Bosasa and paid for monthly by Bosasa between August 2004
and March 2005, :

= -, Discussed in detail in section 8.2.1 titied “The Bid Specifications™
7 gee affidavit of Mr F De Villiers, attached as Annexure 19

@24

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0047



The SIU obtained email logs from NCC and found two emails sent from Gillingham to
Agrizzi on 26 April 2004 with the subject, “Tender Evaluation Criteria — Danny
Mansell" and "Reviewed Documents”. These documents were sent approximately one
month before the kitchens tender was advertised.

During a search conducted by the SIU at Gillingham’s residence in terms of section 6
of the Act, a business card in Gillingham’s name was found that reflected that he was
- a consultant for Consilium (Ply} Ltd (established: by the SIU as an affiliate company
within the Bosasa Group). Furthermore, the contact information on the card included

the email address, kobus@bfn.co.za. ®

The extension of the kitchens contract

As already observed, the kitchens tender covered seven management areas. The

. ~ confract signed with Bosasa did not mention seven satelite comectional centres
falling within these seven management areas. On 29 September 2004, Bosasa
proposed fo Gillingham that the seven satellite correctional centres be included by
way of an extension of the kitchens tender.

The extension was recommended by Gillingham and authorised by Comissioner Mti
on 17 May 2005,

The extension of the kitchens tender period

In October 2006, an extension of the contract was required because the contract
would expire on 31 July 2007. The DCS was required to decide whether DCS
personnel should render the services in future or a new tender should be advertised.
. The contract was extended by a year in order for the DCS to determine whether it
‘ should outsource the service again or provide the service itself. The contract was

further extended for a period of six months.

A new Kitchens contract HK14/2008, was awarded to Bosasa on 6 January 2009. The
contract period for this contract was three years. In the course of a desktop analysis
conducted by the SIU, it could not find any needs analysis or feasibility study for the
new contract. '

A disqualified bidder, Royal Sechaba (Pty) Ltd, previously Sechaba Catering
Services, has since instituted legal proceedings against DCS and Bosasa to have this

28 See copy of business card, Annexure 20
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latter tender process reviewed and set aside. These proceedings are at present
pending in the North Gauteng High Court.

Benefits received by Gillingham and Mti

The SIU has established that Gillingham received financial benefits from Bosasa over
a period of time, for which he gave no valuable consideration. Whilst on the evidence,
the payment of the benefits cannot be directly linked to a particular tender dealt with
in this report, the timing of the benefits and the tenders lead the SIU to conciude that
therg is on the evidence a sufficient link between the benefits and the awarding of all

of the tenders dealt with herein.

The benefits received by Gillingham and Commissioner Mti are dealt with in more
detail later in section 9 of this report.

Findings

The evidence gathered by the SIU, shows that there were clear deviations from the
SCM: Guide for Accounting Officers, more particularly, in that the end user
department was not inciuded in the bid process. There was alsc ne proper financial
planning for this tender in that there was no feasibility study nor needs analysis
conducted.

The evidence shows that Gillingham, outside of his normal duties, played an integral
role from the outset in the procurement process in relation to the kitchens tender and
was irregularly instrumental in the development of the tender specifications for the
tender.

According to the witness, Bosasa imegularly participated in drafting the specifications
for the tender under discussion and this fact was not disclosed by Gillingham during
the bid evaluation process. On the evidence of the witness, the specifications were
drafted in such a manner that the security aspects of the tender provided Bosasa with
a clear advantage over other bidders. It is therefore not surprising that oniy two
bidders were found to meet the functionality requirements by the BEC.

Furthermore, on the evidence of the cyber forensic expert, a document containing the
bid evaluation criteria and guidelines for evaluating the tender was found in electrenic
data seized at Gilingham's residence, having originated from Agrizzi. The creation
date of this document on Gillingham's computer was 28 June 2004 and was saved on
Agrizzi's computer on the same day. Significantly, the DCS commenced with the
screening of the tenders received in respect of the kitchens tender on 28 June 2004.

e
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Whilst, Malan could not determine the date of first creation on Agrizzi's computer, the
evidence raises two concerns: first, whether Agrizzi (and as such Bosasa) was in
possession of the document at the time that Bosasa's tender was submitted for the
kitchens tender, and second, whether Bosasa was party to the drafting of the
evaluation criteria and guidelines for evaluating the tender. Obviously, if this were so,
it would not only have subverted the entire procurement process because it would
have placed Bosasa in an unguiy advantageous posit}nn with reference to its
oompeti'tors, but it would also have exposed the DCS to civil suits from unsuccessfu.;l
bidders.

Given the fact that there was no BSC constituted to prepare the specifications for the
kitchens tender, the fact that Gillingham played an integral role in the preparation of
, these specifications, the fact that these specifications were prepared in such a way as
. to favour Bosasa and the fact that 2 document containing the bid evaluation criteria
and guidelines for evaluating the tender, was found on Gillingham’s computer —
having originated from Agrizzi — leads the SIU to believe that Bosasa along with
Gillingham was not only involved in the drafting of these bid specifications for the
kitchens tender but also in the drafting of the bid evaluation and guidelines thereof.

Paragraph 1.1 of practice note SCM 3 of 2003 provides that the price/functionality
tender evailuation method applies only in tenders where consultant services are
procured. It is therefore clear that to the extent that the kitchens tender did not involve
consultant services, the priceffunctionality tender evaluation method applied to the
kitchens tender, was in conflict with paragraph 1.1 of practice note SCM 3 of 2003.

The evidence clearly indicates that Gillingham received financial benefits from

. Bosasa after the award of the kitchens tender. The SiU was unable to find any lawful
cause for such benefits being made to Gillingham. The evidence further shows that
Mansell and Smith were instrumental in effecting these benefits to Gillingham.

The SIU is of the view that the acceptance by Gillingham of financial and other
benefits from Bosasa around the time that the kitchens tender was awarded was both
irregular and uniawful.

The impact on the kitchens tender and the other tenders, of the receipt of benefits by
Gillingham and Commissioner Mti, are more fully dealt with under the discussion of
the benefits received by them in section 9.

Tuming to the extension of the kitchens contract, the evidence shows that the
kitchens tender was extended upon the recommendation by Gilingham and
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authorised by Commissioner Mti on 17 May 2005. In light of the iregular benefits
received by Commissioner Mti the extension of this contract was irregular and
unlawful.

8.1.3 Recommendations in respect of the kitchens tender

The SIU recommends that:

« the DCS considers instituting civil proceedings in the appropriate forum for the
recovery of any losses that might have been sustained by DCS on account of the
award of the kitchens tender to Bosasa

'« the DCS considers instituting disciplinary proceedings against Gillingham
(Commissioner Mii no longer being in the employ of DCS) arising from his
imeguiar conduct relating to the procurement process involving the kitchens

. tender

« the NDPP considers instituting criminal proceedings against Gillingham,

Commissioner Mti, Bosasa, the latter's office bearers and to the extent that
- Mansell, Agrizzi and Smith may not be office bearers of Bosasa, that they also be
considered for prosecution in their personal capacities

» the DCS cooperates with the NPA for the purposes of prosecuting the persons
and entities mentioned above.
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8.2 The access control tender: HK2/2005

The access control tender was awarded to Sondolo on 11 April 2005. The scope of
the access control tender entalled the supply, delivery, instaliation, commissioning,
support and maintenance of a comprehensive access control and body scanning
system with CCTV coverage of DCS staff and inmates at 66 Maximum Security
Facilities/Centres of Excellence. The advertisement for the access control tender was
published on 4 February 2005. The contract was valued at R236 997 385.31.

This tender was extended to include the staffing of the control rooms at the 66 sites.
This extension took place after the awarding of the initial contract.

@ 8.2.1 Evidence gathered

fhe timeline of the tender process

The tender for access control was published on 4 February 2005, with the closing
date on 25 Februaty 2005. The usuat time for bidders to respond to the tender
advertisement is 30 days, but the time for this tender was reduced to 21 days. The
authorisation for such a reduction in time was given by the then Acting National
Commissioner, Mr V Petersen (Petersen) on 27 January 2005.

The SIU established from Venter, the circumstances leading up to the advertising and
awarding of this tender. Venter informs that towards the end of 2004, he was
informed by Mr W Damons (Damons), Deputy Commissioner: Facilities and Security
Management, that RS0 million that had been budgeted for expenditure on
' infrastructure within the DCS would not be spent by the DCS Building and
Management Division, before the financial year end. Damons instructed him to spend
the money to improve security at prisons with existing Repair and Maintenance
Programme (RAMP) programmes, by means of variation orders. RAMP projects are
an initiative started by the DPW to upgrade various government facilities. The DCS, at
the time, had many RAMP projects running with the DPW at various correctional

centres.
in pursuance of the instruction from Damons, Venter drafted a plan indicating at
which correctional centres the money would be spent, what equipment was required,

as well as the cost, amounting to R89 5§17 000. A memorandum requesting approval
of the plan was approved by Messrs.F Mocheko (Mocheko) DCS Directar of Building
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- A copy of the above-mentioned report submitted to the Department of Correctional
Services is attached hereto as Annexure B,
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and Maintenance: Pretoria and Damons on 18 Nevember 2004 after conflrmation was
received that the money was available.

According to Venter, the plan was approved by Miombile on 3 December 2004, who
commenied that Commissioner Mii wanted the option of the DCS acquiring the
equipment without the assistance of the DPW due to time constraints. Gillingham
then requested him to obtain prices for security equipment as well as the
- specifications for the following security equipment from the DPW:

»  Walk through metal detector

s X-tay scanner

»  Security spike boom barrier system, and

» CCTV system (closed circuit television system).

In a memorandum dated 9 December 2004, Venter not only acknowledged the
benefits of using the DPW, but also pointed out that his directorate had alwayé been
satisfied with the manner in which the DPW had procured equipment in the past. The
memorandum was addressed to the following role players within the DCS, namely,
Mocheko, Sokupa, Damens, Mlombile, Gillingham and Commissicner Mti.

In Venter's memorandum of @ December 2004, he requested that the following points
he considered:

» Employment of the necessary expertise to ensure that durable squipment was
procured

» That the necessary expertise be obtained to ensure that correct equipment was

] installed, that the components complied with the specifications and were

compatible with DCS systems

» The inclusion of a maintenance contract for a minimum period of & years

= That iong delivery pericds may result in some equipment only being installed
during the following financial year

» That the DCS should continue to use the expertise of the DPW for the erection of
security fences through the RAMP programmes.

According to Venter, he received the following responses to his memorandum:

* Mocheko supported the recommendation that the fences be erected through the
oPW

»  Sokupa recommended that all the equipment be procured by the DCS's
Procurement Directorate
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» Damons supported the recommendation that the fences be erected through the
DPW, but in addition, recommended a tender process by the DCS in respect of
the security equipment

» Gillingham supported the recommendation regarding the security fences, but
suggested that the DCS foliows its own procurement process in respect of the
security equipment and that all the funds should be allocated before the end of
March 2005

Commissioner Mti, whilst approving the recommendations made by Sokupa, Damons
and Gillingham, commented that the relevant concerns raised by Venter would be
taken into consideration, but that the DCS should foilow its own tender process so as
not to experience delays from the DPW.

. For ease of reference, the sequence of key events involved in the bid process for the
access control tender, is encapsulated in Tabile 4.

Table 4: Chronology of events regarding the bid process of tender HK2/2005

Date Activity . :

' 18 Nov 2004 Damons drafts memorandum indicating R0 milllon availabie for
expenditure, proposing it be utilised at centres with existing RAMP
programmes

8 Dec 2004 Commissioner Mti grants approval to praceed with tender
14 Jan 2005 Gillingham commences drafting of tender specifications
24 Jan 2005 Gillingham emails Mlombile bid specifications originating from

kobu fn.co.za
19-26 Jan 2005 | Mectings are held to finalise the drafting of tender specifications

. 27 Jan 2005 Miombile forwards specifications {0 Venter

28 Jan 2005 Tender specifications are finalised

4 Feb 2005 Tender is published In the government gazette

14 Feb 2005 Compuisory information briefing is held

25 Feb 2005 Bid closed: 17 bids received as well as 3 late bids

2 Mar 2005 Initial screening of bids is finalised

9 Mar 2005 Motivation for the appointment of BEC members is drafted by
Gillingham

16 Mar 2005 Gillingham signs the Declaration of interest and Code of Conduct
Instructions are given to the members of the BEC

11 April 2005 NBAC recommends tender be awarded 1o Sondolo

19 Apr 2005 Contract between DCS and Sondolo is signed
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The bid specifications

According to Venter, Mlombile contacted him on 27 January 2006, in connection with
an e-mail he had received from Gillingham. Attached to the e-mail, was a document
containing specifications for security equipment. Mlombile was concerned by the fact
that the individual who had forwarded the document to Gillingham, a certain Kobus
with the email address of Kobus@bfn.co.za. was unknown to him. According to
Venter, Mlombile suspected that the specifications contained in the document sent to -
Gillingham, were not drafted by DCS officials.

Venter informed that he investigated the origin of the emai! and found that the author

of the document was an individual calied “Danny” and that the e-mail address from

which the document had been sent belonged to an entity called Network and
. Computing Consufiants (NCC), situated in Bloemfontein.

Venter then sent a memorandum to Damons, Miombile and Gillingham in which he
raised his concern not only about the origin of the document forwarded to Gillingham,
but aiso the inadequacy of the bid conditions and specifications in the following
respects:

no provision was made for access control at entrances used by DCS officials and
SAPS members, which were also being used for the admission and release of
offenders

*  no provision was made for access controf at gates used by work teams at the
Centres of Excellence
+ no provision was made for equipment to scan items that were being delivered, or
. ‘the person/s making the delivery

» the Directorate Security Management Services did not possess the expertise
required for the purpose of drafting technical specifications, which the DPW had

previously drafted
+ the CCTV coverage focussed on people entering the secure areas but no
mention was made of people exiting these areas.

Venter further informed that he did not receive any feedback regarding the concerns
raised in his memorandum regarding the origin and inadequacy of the bid conditions
and specifications that were forwarded to Gillingham. According to Venter, Gillingham
explained to him that kobus@bfn.co.za was his residential e-mait address, from which
he forwarded the document to his official DCS e-mail address.
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Through the SIU's investigation, it was established that there was no Kobus
employed as a consultant at the DCS and further, kobus@bfn.co.za, was an email
address belonging to Bosasa and paid for monthly by Bosasa between August 2004
and March 2005, which includes the day on which the document was emalled to
Gillingham.® The SIU was further able to establish that a number of emails were sent
by Agrizzi to Kobus. ™

During a search conducted by the SiU at Gillingham'’s residence in terms of section 6
of the Act, a business card in Gillingham’s name was found that reflected that he was
a consultant for Consilium (Pty) Ltd (previously established by the SIU as an affiliate
company within the Bosasa Group). Furthermore, the contact information on the card
inciuded the email address, kobus@bfn.co.za.*

. The SIU was further able to establish that despite it not b'eing within the course and
scope of Gillingham's duties, he had assumed responsibility for the drafting of the bid
specifications. This fact accords with Venter's evidence that he was not aware of any
committee that was formed for the specific purpose of drafting the specifications for
this tender.

The witness referred to previously, advised that in December 2004, he was given a
document by Agrizzi that contained specifications for security measures at prisons,
Agrizzi informed him that the document was for a tender, which the DCS was going to
advertise in the near future. Agrizzi instructed him to ensure that the specifications
were up to date with modem technology and to align them with the technology
Bosasa was employing in the kitchens contract. The witness further advised that his
previous involvement in the drafting of the kitchens tender specifications had made
® the task assigned to him by Agrizzi easier. .

The witness further informed that Agrizzi had told him that he (Agrizzi) had informed
the Bosasa team that the bid price had to be in the region of R80 million and the bid
presentation should include aspects such as system design, costing and
maintenance.

The SIU was further advised by the witness that it took him a few weeks to improve
upon the specifications contained in the document given to him by Agrizzi. These
improved specifications were later presented to Agrizzi.

* gae Annexure 19

¥ 1t is imporiant to note here the email sent between Agrizzi, Mansell and kobus during this tender and the
kitchens tender

*! See Annexure 20
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According to the witness, he later identified a number of similarities between his
improved specifications and those contained in the tender advertisement.

According to documentation obtained from the Registrar of Companies, Sondofo (Pty)
Ltd was only registered as such on 18 February 2005, that is, 7 days before the
closing of the tender. Since the tender specifications required a proven track record of
at least 5 years in the Information Technology (IT) industry, Sondolo clearly did not
satisfy that requirement. g

Further information sourced from'the Sondolo bid documentation indicated the
following sharehoiding in Sondolo:

s Bosasa (40%)

e Kgwerano Financial Services (Pty) Ltd (25%)

« Bancar Investment Holdings (Pty) Ltd (25%)

o Bosasa Youth Development Foundation (Pty) Ltd (10%) — Section 21 Company

As already observed, Kgwerano, Bancar and Bosasa Youth Development are all
affiliate companies within the Bosasa Group.

The witness pointed out the following aspects that would have made it very difficult for
other bidders to submit a sufficiently compliant bid:

» Given the close association between Bosasa and Sondolo and the former's
knowledge of the prisons environment on account of its contractual relations in
terms of the kitchens tender, its prior knowledge of the bid specifications and the
exclusion of site visits allowed Sondolo to enjoy an undue advantage over other
bidders

» Despite the technical nature of the bid, which would have required intensive
research, the normal period of 30 days for the submission of bids was reduced to
21 days.

The cyber forensic expert’s evidence

Malan obtained electronic copies from the DCS of the earliest versions of the tender
specifications in respect of all the tenders forming the subject of the SiU's
investigation into Bosasa and its affiliate companies. During the course of this
investigation, Malan mirror imaged the servers of Bosasa and the laptops of Agrizzi,
van Tonder and Vorster.
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Malan used the electronic copies of the bid specifications that he had obtained from
the DCS in an effort to establish whether there were any similar or identical bid
specifications in the Bosasa data. Despite the deletion of information by Bosasa from
its servers, Malan was able to identify a document named cciv bid.doc both in the
electronic data received from the DCS and on one of Bosasa's servers.

The document on Bosasa’s server indicated that it was last printed on 13 January
- 2005. The author of the document was “Danny” and the document was revision 2.
The document contained specifications relating to the access confrol tender. This
. document was also found on the DCS server and was attached to an email Miombile
received from Gillingham on 24 January 2005. This document indicated that it was
revision 4 of the document; the document found on Bosasa’s server was revision 2.

@ The bid evaluation and adjudication process

On 16 March 2005, the Code of Conduct and Declaration of Interest forms were
signed by the members of the BEC, in terms of which they were required to declare
their interest, if any, in any of the bidders. Gillingham, as chairparson of the BEC,
signed this form, indicating that he had no interest in any of the bidders for this
contract.

In this bid, the priceffunctionality tender evaluation method was utifised. Only Sondolo
satisfied the threshold for functionality, thus enabling it to be considered in the pricing
phase.

Despite Pinnacle Technology Holding (Pty) Ltd (the second highest bidder) obtaining
only 88.13% for functionality, it was included for consideration in the pricing phase.

The BEC recommended to the NBAC that Sondolo be awarded the contract.
Following this recommendation, the NBAC after its deliberations awarded the contract

to Sondolo on 11 April 2005.

For ease of reference, the name of the members of the BEC and NBAC are set out in
in Table 5 below. it will be noticed that Gillingham served on both committees, in the
BEC as its chairman and in the NBAC in an advisory capacity.
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Table 5: BEG and NBAC mémbers for the access centrol tender
Bid Evaluation Committee )

Gillingham CDC: Finance

{Chairperson)

Tshele Regional Co-ordinator Security: Gauteng

Lethoba Diractor Systems Development

Kungne Regional Commissioner Limpopo, Mpumalanga
and North West

Malinga Area Manager Mcdderbee

Lenkoe Regional Head: Development & Care: Gauteng

Damons DC: Facilities & Security

I Venter Secretary of the Committee

Steyn Deputy Director Security Management

National Bid Adjudication Committee

Sishuba CDC: Development & Care

(Chairperscn)

Gillingham CDC: Finance (Advisory Capacity)

Petersen CDC: Corporate Services

Ngubo DC: Supply Chain Management

Sokupa Dir: Facilities Planning & Deveiopment

Mapasa Dir. Procurement

Pretorius Acting DD: Tender Management

Ntuli SPAQ: Tenders

Aries Procurement: Secretariat

Truter Clerk: Tenders

Du Preez Clerk: Tenders

The extension of the access control contract

Venter was made a member of the steering committee that managed the access
control contract after it was awarded to Sondolo, and as such, attended steering

committee meetings.

The witness referred to previously, who aiso attended various steering committee
meetings, informed that when the DCS had to identify DCS officials for training by
Sondolo to monitor the control rooms, it became apparent that the DCS was
experiencing staff shortages of suitably computer literate personnel, an essentia! skill
required for the access control contract. He further informed that Agrizzi suggested to

P
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him that he propose to the steering committee that Sondolo wouid be able to provide
the DCS with trained personnel to fulfil the function, which he accordingly did. He did
not attend further steering committee meetings and was not sure if DCS acted upon
his recommendation.

At one of the steering committee meetings, Gilingham raised the question of
outsourcing the staffing function for the control rooms. Gillingham questioned the fact
whetheror not it would be a cheaper option for DCS to appoint a contractor to provide
the staff for the control recoms.

Cost comparisons conducted internally in the DCS indicated that outsourcing the staff
component would be cheaper than training DCS members to man control rooms.
According to Venter, the initial plan was to outsource the staffing function of only the

. | regional and national control rooms, However, in awarding the contract to Sondolo,
the local control rooms were also inciuded in the contract.

Ngubo a procurement official within the DCS, requested the extension of the contract
via a memoerandum. Commissioner Mti extended the contract on 4 August 2005 and
_the extension was valued at approximately R200 miflion.

Contract management

According to Mr Steyn® (Steyn), the former Deputy Director: Security Management
Services, all the work for the access control tender was completed. He confirmed that
the maintenance agreement for the tender came into effect on 1 April 2007, and that
R2 173 567.92 was paid to Sondolo per month, from the Goods and Services budget
of the Directorate Security Management Services, for the maintenance.

Although Steyn indicated that there was no problem in the execution of this tender,
the OAG highlighted that it has information that the service provider did not deliver the
quality of security equipment specified in the bid specifications.

Benefits received by Gillingham and Mti

The SIU has established that Gillingham received financial benefits from Bosasa over
a pericd of time, for which he gave no valuable ¢onsideration. Whilst on the evidence,
the payment of the benefits cannot be directly linked to a particular tender dealt with
in this report, the timing of the benefits and the tenders led the SIU to conclude that

32 5ee affidavit of Mr Steyn, Annexure 21
37

BOSASA-REPCRT-0001-0061 &



CO-076. .

there is, on the evidence, a sufficient link between the benefits and the awarding of all
of the tenders dealt with herein.

The benefits received by Gilingham and Commissioner Mti are dealt with in more
detail later in section © of this report.

8.2.2 Findings
This contract.was awarded on 11 April.2005 to Sondolo, a company in which Bosasa
is a 40% shareholder.

The evidence shows that there were clear deviations from the SCM: Guide for
Accounting Officers, more particularly, in that the end user depariments were not
included in the bid processes. According to the evidence, there was no proper

. financial planning for this tender in that there was no feasibitity study or needs
analysis conducted and the budget for this tender was significantly exceeded.

As in the kitchens tender, Gillingham, outside of his normal duties, played an integral
role from the outset in the procurement process in relation to the access control
tender and was greatly instrumental in the development of the tender specifications
for the said tender.

On the evidence of the witness and Malan, Bosasa participated in drafting the bid
specifications for this tender. Agrizzi, according to the witness, requested him to
prepare specifications in line with the technology Bosasa was employing in the
kitchens contract. The witness subsequently identified a number of similarities
between the specifications prepared by him and those in the advertisement for this

. tender. Furthermore, on the evidence of the witness, the specifications were drafted
in such a manner that the security aspects afforded Bosasa a clear advantage over
the other bidders.

On the evidence of Malan, a document titled “cctv bid.doc” was retrieved from the
DCS and Bosasa systems. The document contained specifications for the access
control tender. Version 2 of the document was found on the Bosasa system, whilst
version 4 thereof was emailed by Gillingham from an email address belonging to
Bosasa, to Mr § Mlombile (Acting Chief Deputy Commissioner: Corrections)
{(Mlombile) of DCS.

Given the fact that there was no BSC constituted to prepare the specifications for the
access control tender, the fact that Gillingham played an integral role In the
preparation of these specifications, the fact that these specifications were prepared in
such a way as to favour Sondolo and the fact that a document containing the bid
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specifications for the tender was found on Bosasa’s servers (indicating that it was iast
printed on 13 January 2005, a day before Gillingham commenced drafting the tender
specifications — some three weeks before the tender was published) led the SIU to
believe that Sondolo/Bosasa, along with Gillingham, were involved in the drafting of
the bid specifications for the access control tender.

The evidence further shows that the bid submission period was reduced to 21 days,
without any apparent cause. Given the technical nature of the tender and Bosasa's
participation in the drafting of the specifications for the bid, the shortened period for
submission of bids and the fact that no site visits were allowed, provided Sondolo with
an unfair advantage over the other bidders. The SIU was unable to find any evidence
indicating that there was any urgency for the resource covered by the access control

tender.

Paragraph 1.1 of practice note SCM 3 of 2003 provides that the price/functionality
tender evaluation method only applies in tenders where consultant services are
procured. It is therefore clear that to the extent that the access control tender did not
involve consultant services, the priceffunctionality tender evaluation method appfied'
to the access control tender was in conflict with paragraph 1.1 of practice note SCM 3
of 2003,

Since Sondoio enjoyed access to the correctional centre environment because of
Bosasa's kitchens contract, the fact that no site visits were allowed, in effect, afforded
Sondolo a significant advantage over its competitors.

Furthermoare, despite it being a bid requirement that bidders should have five years’
experience, Sondole had only been registered 7 days before the closing of bids, yet
Sondolo was awarded the tender. This was obviously irregular, since Sondolo should
have been disqualified at the BEC stage.

The evidence ciearly indicates that Gillingham and Commissioner Mti had received
financial benefits from Bosasa. The SIU was unable to find any lawful cause for such
benefits being made to Gillingham and Commissioner Mti. The evidence further
shows that Mansell and Smith were instrumental in effecting these benefits to
Gillingham and Commissioner Mti.

The SIU is of the view that the acceptance by Gillingham and Commissioner Mti of
financial and other benefits from Bosasa around the time that the access control
tender was awarded, was both imegular and unfawful. Furthermore, Gillingham's
failure ~ he served on the BEC and the NBAC — to disclose this during the
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procurement process infringed paragraph 18A8.4 of the Treasury Regulations and as
such, constituted an abuse of the supply chain management system.

The impact on the access control tender and the other tenders of the receipt of
benefits by Gillingham and Commissioner Mti, will be deait with more fully under the
discussion of the benefits received by them in section 9 of this report.

Turning to the extension of the access control contract, the evidence shows that the
‘access control tender was extended upon the recommendation of Ngi.:bo and
authorised by Commissioner Mti on 4 August 2005. In light of the irregular benefits
received by Commissioner Mti the extension of this contract was irregular and
unlawful.

8.2.3 Recommendations in respect of the access control tender

The SIU recommends that:

» the DCS considers instituting civil proceedings in the appropriate forum for the
recovery of any losses that might have been sustained by DCS on account of the
award of the access contro! tender to Sondolo

« the DCS considers instituting disciplinary proceedings against Gillingham
{Commissioner Mti no longer being in the employ of DCS) arising from his
irregular conduct relating to the procurement process involving the access control
tender

« the NDPP considers instituting criminal proceedings against Gillingham,
Commissioner Mti, Sondolo, Bosasa, their office bearers and to the extent that
Agrizzi, Mansell and Smith may not be office bearers of either Sondolo or

. Bosasa, that they also be considered for prosecution in their personal capacity

+ the DCS cooperates with the NPA for the purposes of prosecuting the persons

and entities mentioned above.
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8.3 The fencing tender: HK24/2005

The fencing tender was awarded to Phezulu on 29 November 2005. The scope of the
fencing tender entailed the supply, defivery, installation and commissioning of security
outer perimeter fences with taut wire for outer and inner fences and CCTV
surveillance cameras at various correctional centres. The contract value was
approximately R486 937 910.

The fencing tender was published on 14 October 2005, with closing date on
14 November 2005. The contract between Phezulu and the DCS was signed on
30 November 2005,

@ 8.3.1 Evidence gathered
The timeline of the tender

For ease of reference, the chronology of the key events involved in the bid process
for the fencing tender, is summarised in Table 6 below.

Table 6: Chronology of the key events involved in the bid process for the fencing

tender
Date Activity
19 Sept 2005 Received the standard technical specifications for outer perimater
fences for prisons from DPW
20-30 Sept 2005 | Compilation of bid specifications
4 Oct 2005 Compilation of Bid documents
. 8 Oct 2005 Request to government printers to publish the bid invitation
14 Oct 2005 Bid invitation is published _
18 Oct 2005 Memorandum dated 13 Cctober 2005 received from Dir: Facilities

Planning and Development confirming availability of funds and providing
“Request to Invite Bids”

25 QOct 2005 Compulsory information meeting

14 Nov 2005 Closing date for bids: 6 Bids were received

15 Nov 2005 Initial screening commenced, Tax clearance certificates were requested
from 5 of the 6 bidders

15 Nov 2005 Memorandum o Dir; Security Management to convene BEC

17 Nov 2005 Briefing of the BEC

18 Nov 2005 Evaluation of the points for phase 1

18 Nov 2005 Opened financial proposal of short-listed bidder (phase 3)
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Table 6: Chronology:of the key events involved in the bid process for the fencing

tender

Date Activity

18 Nov 2005 Calculation of points for phase 4

18 Nov 2005 Compilation of draft recommendation

23 Nov 2005 Finalising recommendation to the NBAC

28 Nov 2005 Recommendaltion approved by the NBAC

30 Nov 2005 Contract between DCS and Phezulu Fencing is signed

1 Dec 2005 Request government printers to publish the results
Planning of the tender

The SIU could find no evidence indicating that a needs analysis, feasibility studies or
. proper business plans were compiled for the fencing tender.

The fencing tender was initiated by Gillingham, who on 11 August 2005, requested
Damons to obtain permission from Commissioner Mti to erect security fences at
26 Centres of Excellence and 22 High Risk Coirectional Centres. Damons in turn
instructed Venter to draft the required memorandum. Venter's memorandum was
dated 24 August 2005. Venter's memorandum requesting approval for the project
and:

» dealt with the utilisation of capital funds earmarked for the construction of 4 New
Generation Prisons for the purpose of erecting security fences at 26 Centres of
Excellence and 22 High Risk Correctional Centres

» identified the centres where security fences shouid be erected at an estimated

. cost of R86 487 000 for the Centres of Excellence and R71 378 500 for the High

Risk Centres respectively, bringing the estimated cost of the entire project to
R157 866 500

= requested that the procurement process be handled by Gillingham and Ngubo.

Attached to the memorandum were the standard technical specifications for outer
perimeter security fences normally used by the DPW, Venter had obtained the
specifications, on request of Gillingham, from Mr P du Preez {Du Preez), employed at
the Mechanical Engineering, Fire and Security division of the DPW,

The need for fencing at correctiona! centres was previously identified during initial
discussions for the access control tender during which Venter had indicated the
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necessity of involving the DPW for assistance on account of its expertise® in this
area. Venter's suggestion of the DPW's involvement in the fencing tender was
supported by Mocheko, Damons and Gillingham. However, Gillingham later did an
about turn, by recommending that the DCS should do its own procurement to the
exclusion of the DPW.

Gillingham submitted his request for approval of the fencing tender on 31 August
2005. iIn his request, he recommended that the DCS should do its own procurement
and not make use of the DPW. Commissioner Mti approved the request, inciuding the
recommendation that the DPW not be included in the procurement process. it is not
possible fo state on which date the approval was given, as the Commissioner did not
indicate a date under his signature.

Venter informed that he completed the Request to Invite Bids (Tenders) form, on
11 October 2005, but deliberately refrained from completing the _ estimated
expenditure section, as his directorate did not have the budget for such a project. The
R180 million allocated for the project came from the savings on the compensation of

employees’ budget.

A letter from Sokupa, dated 13 October 2005, confirmed the availability of funds from
the capital works budget for an amount of R160 million. This letter was, however,
dated a month after the publication of the tender advertisement.

Venter further informed that on 9 November 2005, he was requested by Gillingham to
conduct an updated costing exercise, with an instruction to include earth works, outer
fences, taut wire detection, security lighting, CCTV coverage and integration costs.
Because costing fell out of his normal scope of work, he approached the DPW for
assistance. The DPW provided him with average prices but not a detailed costing.
Based on this information from the DPW, he made a calculation and concluded that
the cast of the project would amount to R347 383 550,

Venter was requested by the SiU to explain how the distances of the fences as
reflected in a extract from the bid document, entitled “Appendix A — List of Centres",
was determined. He explained that due to time constraints, he had requested the
Heads of the centres that he had identified as requiring fencing, to appoint officials to
measure the distances by foot.

# See Venter's statement, Annexure 17 _
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The fencing tender was later amended by subsequent variation orders, amounting to
approximately R100 million. The additional work that was required to be done,
included, inter alia, the removal of trees and sub-stations, construction of guard
houses, blasting and installation of generators due to inadequate electricity supply as
well as erecting additional fences.

According to Steyn by 22 May 2009, R84 700 270.77 had been paid te Phezulu in
respect of variation orders, with R4 335 087.12 still due to them:.

The bid specifications

The evidence revealed that Gillingham was the project leader for the fencing tender.
Although he held meetings with Damons and Venter from the Security Directorate
(the end user), he did not discuss the technica fencing specifications with them. His

. discussions with them concerned issues relating to the bid document, such as what
type of fences should be installed and at which centres.

According to Venter, the end user was excluded o a large extent in the tender
process. Neither he, nor any other officlal from his directorate, was involved in the
drafling, amending or approval of either the tender specifications or the evaluation
criteria. His involvement was limited to obtaining standard specifications from the
DPW énd identifying the centres where fencing was required.

According to Venter, no tender specification committee was constituted for the
fencing tender. According to Truter, Gillingham had, in accordance with paragraph
3.3.1.2 of chapter 3 of the SCM User Manual, certified that the specifications for the
bid were obtained from the DPW as a standard set of needs that were adapted to

' DCS’s specific circumstances. According to him, Gillingham, however, failed to
indicate who assisted in or was responsible for making the adaptations to the
specifications. '

The bid evaluation and adjudication

There was great interest shown in the bid by virtue of the fact that the compulsory
information meeting held on 25 October 2005 attracted 85 attendees from various
enterprises, inciuding Phezuiu, Bosasa and Scondolo. However, despite the fact that
there was wide interest shown in the bid, also manifested by the fact that documents
were issued to 73 entities, only six bids were received.

Truter, a procurement official with the DCS, informed the SIU that he had received a
request from his supervisor, Pretorius, after closure of the bids, to inform
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Commissioner Mti who the bidders were. Despite being uncomfortable with the
request, because information relating to the tender was confidential and people
outside the procurement process should not have access to such information, Truter
drafted such a memorandum to the Commissioner,

The Code of Conduct and Declaration of Interest forms were signed by the members
of the BEC on 17 November 2005. Only Mr SG Oosthuizen declared an interest by
-virtue of the fact that his son was employed by one of the bidders' subcontractors,
namely, Teqcon (Pty} Ltd. However, Gilingham signed the Declaration of Interest
forms indicating that he did not have a personal interest in any of the bids forming the
subject matter of the procurement process in the fencing tender.

The BEC used the funclionality and price evaluation method for evaluating the

. fencing tender. However, according to Breytenbach, this gpproach was incorrect. The
functionality and price evaluation method is only applicable when procuring the
services of consultants, and not for general services such as construction work,
catering, cleaning or security. The correct evaluation method that should have been
used in this tender was the preference point system, as previously described.

it was a bid requirement — confirmed by Giﬂihgham at the compulsory briefing session
held on 25 October 2005 — that the erection of fences had to be completed by 17

March 2006.

However, Phezulu submitted two sets of project plans. The first dealt with the delivery

of materials up to the completion date of 17 March 2006, while the second dealt with

erection of the fences by the middle of 2007. The erection, addressed in the second
. project plan, ran far beyond the completion date.

However, other bidders, such as Provicom and Intervid, submitted a single plan for
the tender with a completion date of 17 March 2006.

Despite the fact that both Provicom and Intervid's project plans were consistent with
the completion date, Gillingham scored both these companies 0 out of 6 for time
frames, while scoring Phezulu full marks for its time frames.

The DCS, according to George, did not comply with the CIDB prescripts, for the
following reasons:
» Thefencing tender was subject to the provisions of the CIDB Act and its
regulations.
+ Interms of regulation 24, the DCS should have stated in its invitation for tenders
that only contractors that were duly registered with the CIDB would be
) &
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considered for the tender and, in addition, the DCS should have placed the
invitation on the CIDB website.

» Interms of regulation 18, the DCS (as the employer) should have registered the
fencing project with the CIDB within 21 days of it having been awarded.

+ George, requested the CIDB Registry Department to confirm whether the DCS
was registered as an employer at the time the tender was advertised and
awarded, it was not

» Table 8 of regulation 17, prescribes the upper limits of the value range for the
different grades and a contractor can only do construction work for the public
sector up to the maximum values consistent with its grade

» Interms of regulation 25(9), the DCS should have established whether Phezulu
- was registered with the CIDB prior to awarding the contract to it. George,

. requested the CIDB Registry Department to confirm whether Phezulu had been’
registered at the time. The Registry Department indicated that Phezulu had
registered for the first time on 10 May 2007, with a “7" grading which meant that
Phezulu could only do construction work up to a maximum value of R30 million.
The DCS should consequently have awarded the tender to a bidder with a
grading of “9" due to the fact that the tender exceeded R30 million. There is no
limit for a *8" grading. '

The evidence shows that the non-compliance by Phezulu with the CIDB Act and its
regulations were not brought to the attention of the NBAC by the BEC.

The minutes of the NBAC meeting reflect that Gillingham attended the meeting not
) only in his capacity as CDC: Finance, but also as a BEC representative. The minutes
' further reflect that Petersen, in his capacity as chairperson of the NBAC, confirmed
with all officials present that none had any financial interest in any of the bids before
the NBAC, since such person(s) would be required to excuse themselves when the
relevant bid is presented. Two bids were evaluated during this particular NBAC
meeting, namely, the fencing tender and tender DCS9/2005. The Declaration of
Interest forms were distributed to all officials present at the meeting for their
signatures and were returned to the chairperson. As in the case with the BEC,
Gillingham signed the Declaration of interest form on which he declared that he had
no interest in either Phezulu or its sub-contractor, Sondolo.

For ease of reference, the names of the members of the BEC and NBAC who
participated in the fencing tender, are set out in Table 7 below.
a

go
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Tabie 7;: BEC and NBAC members for the fencing tender
Bid Evaluation Committee

Gillingham CDC: Finance

{Chairperson)

Damons ’ DC: Facilities and Security

Venter Dir: Security Management Services

Oosthuizen DD: Project Management

Madisa Regional Co-ordinator. Corrections: Gaixteng

Morei Area Co-ordinator: Corrections: Gauteng

Phaal Secretary of the Committee

National Bid Adjudication Committee

Petersen CDC: Corporate Services

(Chairperson)

. Gillingham CDC: Finance (CFO) (Advisory Capacity and BEC

representative)

ilombile CDC:; Corrections

Schreiner CDC: Central Services

Ngubo DC: Supply Chain Management

Mapasa Acling Dir; Procurement

Kgwele ' SCO: Secretariat

Aries COIll: Secretariat

Truter Clerk: Tenders

Davids Clerk: Tenders

Contract management
. On 30 November 2005, Truter forwarded a memorandum to Pretorius, instructing that

payments were to be made in sirict accordance with the contractual conditions, which
provided that:

“The contract manager must certify invoices to the effect that services were
delivered correctly and in accordance with the contract before payment can
take place”,

After the commencement of the contract, the DCS received correspondence from
Phezulu indicating that all materials to be used in fulfilling the tender would be
purchased from local manufacturers and leading suppliers, including Sondolo and a
company by the name of Teqcon (Pty) Ltd.

o :@ a7
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On 14 December 2005, Phezulu forwarded to the Commissioner, a list of deposits
required from DCS, as well as an invoice for a pré—payment of R56 410 172.59. The
invoice was attached to a spending plan that reflected how payments should be made
in terms of the contract. Venter, who had been appointed as project manager,
advised that payment of the first invoice was made on 19 December 2005, by Mr F
Venter (F Ventsr) from Gilingham's office, without any materials having been
delivered or worg done. Venter only becarpe aware of the payment after it had been

made.

On 18 January 2008, F Venter, forwarded Phezulu's second invoice, dated
13 January 2006, to Damons, requesting him to certify it as comect. The second
invoice was for R79 138 225.30, Damons, in turn, forwarded this invoice to Venter.

. On 20 January 2006, Venter advised Phezulu that it was not clear from the invoice
whether materials amounting tc the invoice total had been delivered to the sites, as
there were no certified delivery notes attached. Venter's concemn was that in terms of
the contract with Phezulu, 80% of the contract price was only payable on delivery of
the full bill of materials. Gilingham, however, instructed Venter that he should verify
the spending plan and make payments in terms thereof. The sole purpose, however,
of a spending plan, according to Venter, is to determine when materials would be
delivered and their value and thus not to make payments that are contrary to the

contract,

On the evidence, it would appear that because of the poor planning of this project, the
budget was significantly exceeded and in addition gave rise to variation orders valued
at R 100 million®,

The evidence shows that Phezulu received 90% of the contract value, amounting to
approximately R392 million, prior to the end of the financial year in March 2006 and

before any fences had been erected.

The evidence further shows that the integration of the fence to the ON-IMIS access
control system at the Johannesburg Correctional Centre is still outstanding, despite
the completion date for the project being 17 March 2006.

™ The budget for the project was R 340 mitlion, the contract awarded to Phezulu was R 486 million. -
48
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Benefits received by Gillingham and Mti

The SIU has established that Gillingham received financial benefits from Bosasa over
a period of time, for which he gave no valuable consideration, Whilst on the evidence,
the payment of the benefits cannct be directly linked to this tender or any of the other
tenders dealt with in this report, a sufficient link can be established between the
benefits and the award of all of the tenders dealt with in this report, having regard to
the timing of the benefits and the award of this and the other tenders.

The benefits received by Gillingham and Commissioner Mti are dealt with in more
detail fater in section 9 of this report.

8.3.2 Findings
. This tender was awarded to Phezulu on 29 November 2005,

As in the case of the other two tenders discussed earlier in the report, the SIU could
find no evidence of the establishment of a BSC in relation to the fencing tender.

Further, as in the previous two tenders discussed, Gillingham, cutside of his normal
duties, played an integral role from the outset in the procurement process in relation
te the fencing tender and was largely instrumental in the development of the tender
specifications for this tender.

There were clear deviations in the fencing tender from the DCS procurement

directives, in that the end user directorates were not inciuded in the bid process.

There was also no proper financial planning for this tender as there was no feasibility

study or needs analysis conducted. This, on the evidence, lead to the budget for this
’ contract being significantly exceeded and variation orders valued at R 100 million
' being authorised.

In this tender, there was a heavy weighting in the evaluation criteria in favour of the
integration of the fences with the computer software system, namely, the ON-IMIS
system, which Sondolo/Bosasa had introduced into DCS through the kitchens and
access control tenders. This weighting unfairly favoured Phezulu on account of it
being an affiliate of Bosasa/Sondolo.

Phezulu was also unfairly favoured in ancther respect. According to the evidence, the
bid conditions specify, and Gillingham confirmed in the compulsory briefing session
for this tender, that the erection of the fences was to be effected by 17 March 20086.
Two bidders each submitted a single project plan that complied with this deadline.
However, Phezulu submitted two project plans in terms of which it undertook to

e
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- deliver raw materials to the sites by 17 March, with erection to follow only at a much
later date. On the face of it, Phezulu's project plans clearly did not comply with the
bid's requirement and Gillingham's confirmation thereof, and as such, ought to have
been disqualified on the basis of non—compliance._

Despite the fact that Phezulu should have been disqualified by virtue of its non-
compliance with the bid requirements and the CIDB Act and its regulations, the NBAC
was not informed thereof and proceeded to award the contract to Phezulu on 29
November 2005. This was clearly irregular.

As sarlier observed, paragraph 1.1 of practice note SCM 3 of 2003, provides that the
priceffunctionality tender evaluation method applies only in tenders where consultant
services are procured. 1t is therefore clear that to the extent that the fencing tender

. did not invoive consultant services, the pricefunctionality tender evaluation method
applied to the fencing tender was in contravention of paragraph 1.1 of practice note
SCM 3 of 2003.

The SIU is of the view that the structure of the fencing contract as regards payment
was designed to favour Phezulu. The SIU examined payments made to Phezulu in
respect of this tender. In terms of the contract provisions, 90% cf the contract price
was payable on delivery of the raw materials to the construction site; it was part of the
contract conditions that these deliverables had to take place before 17 March 2008.
The structure of this contract accordingly, resulted in the DCS making large payments
to Phezulu at a very early stage of the confract. Since this payment was shortly
before the end of the financial year, this amounts to fiscal dumping.

. The evidence clearly indicates that Gillingham received financial benefits from
Bosasa after the award of this and the previous tenders. The SiU was unable 1o find
any lawful cause for such benefits being made to Gilingham. The evidence further
shows that Mansell and Smith were instrumental in effecting these benefits to
Gillingham.

The SIU is of the view that the acceptance by Gillingham of financial and other
benefits from Bosasa, was both irregular and unlawful, Furthermore, Gillingham's
failure — he served on both the BEC and the NBAC — to disclose this during the
procurement process, infringed paragraph 16A8.4 of the Treasury regulations and as
such, constituted an abuse of the supply chain management system.

50
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The impact on the fencing tender and the other tenders of the receipt of benefits by
Gillingham and Commissioner Mti, will be deait with more fully later herein under the
discussion of the benefits received by them in section 9 of this report.

8.3.3 Recommendations in respect of the fencing tender

The SIU recommends that:

+ the DCS considers instituting civil proceedings in the appropriate forum for the
recovery of any losses that may have been sustained by the DCS on account of
the award of the fencing tender to Phezulu

+ the DCS considers instituting disciplinary proceedings against Gillingham
(Commissioner Mti no longer being in the employ of DCS) arising from his
irregular conduct relating to the procurement process involving the fencing tender

. -« the NDPP considers instituting criminai proceedings against Gillingham,
Commissioner Mti, Sondolo, Bosasa, their office bearers and to the extent that
Mansell and Smith may not be office beasers of either Phezulu or Bosasa, that
they also be considered for prosecution in their personal capacity

« the DCS cooperates with the NPA for the purposes of prosecuting the persons
and entities mentioned above.
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8.4 The television {TV) tender: HK25/2005

The TV tender was awarded to Sondolo on 3 March 2006. The scope of the TV
tender entafled the supply, delivery, installation, commissioning and maintenance of
television systems and monitors, to all correctional centres within the DCS. It was a
requirement that the system had to integrate into the local, regional and national
control rooms, and had to provide effective video conferencing facilities.

8.4.1 Evidence gathered
The timeline of the tender

As in the fencing tender, the bid invitation for this tender was also published on

. 14 October 2005, with the samé closing date, namely, 14 November 2005. For ease
of reference, the chronology of key events in the bid process for the television tender
is summarised in Table 8 below.

Table 8: Chronology of key events in the TV tender

Date Activity

3 Ocl 2005 Approval obtained for the reallocation of surplus funds from the 2005/2006
budget for numerous projects, including Development (televisions for
comrectional centres)

7 Qct 2006 DCS requests the govermnment printers to publish the bid en 14 October
2005 ’

13 Oct 2005 Bid documents are finalised

14 Oct 2005 Publication of the bid invitations

.’ 18 Oct 2005 Gillingham submits a request to invite bids to the Director; Procurement
25 Oct 2005 Compuisory information meeting

14 Nov 2005 Closing date for bid invitations - 5 bids received

18 Nov 2005 initial screening completed

21 Nov 2005 Request 2 of the 5 bidders to submit ariginal tax clearance certificates
13 Dec 2005 Briefing of the BEC

14 Dec 2005 Request clardfication regarding pricing from Sondolo, and was received
15 Dec 2005 | Sondolo receives BEC's recommendation

$ Jan 2006 Recommendation to NBAC is finalised

24 Jan 2006 NBAC meeting — Referred bid back for techpical evaluation

25 Jan 2008 Letters of appointment of co-opted members to the BEC for technical
evaluyation

27 Jan 2008 Technical evaluation by E Phenya and MJ Lethoba

| : b= (
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Tabhie'8: Chronology of key events in the TV tender

Date Activity
30 Jan 2006 Gillingham requests final recommendations on the technical evaluation

7 Feb 2006 Facsimile to all bidders requesting to extend bid validity date, all bidders
agreed

17 Feb 2006 Resubmission of recommendation to the NBAC

3 Mar 2006 NBAC approves the recommendation without remarks
10 Mar2006 | Contract between DCS and Sendolo signed

10 Mar 2008 Request gocvemment printers to publish the bid resuits

The planning of the tender

The project was initiated on 3 October 2005, when Mr JJ Venter (JJ Venter),
‘ Director: Budget Administration, drafted a memorandum seeking approval for the re-
prioritisation and re-aflocation of surplus funds from the 2005/2006 budget for a-

number of proiects.

Following JJ Venter's memorandum, Gillingham made a recommendation for the
approval of funds for the TV tender. This was granted by the Commissioner Mti on 3
October 2005. R60 million was allocated to the TV project. The funds were re-
allocated from the R641 million saving on the Compensation of Employees' budget.

Once it had been established that funds were available, Gillingham became actively
involved in the tender process as project leader.

The Communications Directorate, which was the end user in this project, was largely

‘ excluded from the tender process. MrM Wolela, the Deputy Commissioner:
’ Communications (Wolela)®, only became aware of the project 2 or 3 days prior to the
tender being advertised. It therefore follows that the Communications Directorate did

not initiate the project.
The evidence also shows that no needs analysis or feasibility study was conducted.

As aiready observed, the advertisement for the TV tender was published on
14 October 2005, yet the evidence shows that on ’18 October 2005, Gillingham
purported to submit a request to invite bids for the tender to the Director:
Procurement. The request indicated that the contract period was for 5 years at an
estimated cost of R60 miliion. In addition, Gillingham stated that the Information

% See affidavit of Mr M Wolsla, atiached as Annexure 22 .
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Technology Committee had approved the request and that installation and
commissioning had to be completed by 17 March 2008. This request was approved
on the same day.

The evidence aiso shows that the lack of planning and consultation with the end user,
resulted in the initial budget of R60 million escalating to R224 364 480, the amount for
which the tender was eventually awarded.

“The communications _diréctora;e believed that the éystem to be installed would allow
the DCS management to communicate with other regions and/or correctional centres
from a central point. This was, however, not the case, since the integration according
to the tender specifications required the TV system {¢ be integrated with existing DCS
technologies (ON-IMIS). Had the end user been involved with drafing of the
specifications, it would have indicated that its primary concern was the ability of the
system to enable communication from a central point.

®

The bid specifications

The evidence revealed that no tender specification committee was constituted for the
television tender.

Truter informed that he was requested by Gillingham to assist him with the review of
the specifications for the TV tender. According to Truter, he, however, only assisted
Gillingham in addressing procurement related issues and not the technical aspects of

the specifications.

According to a Mr JP Venter (JP Venter)®, a principal engineer at the CSIR, he was

.’ approached toward the end of 2005 to comment on the specifications for the TV
tender. On account of the type of information given to him, he was unable te comment
on the technical aspects of the specifications and was able only to comment on
superficial and cosmetic issues related to them.

The compulsery information meeting chaired by Gillingham was held on 25 October
2005. During this meeting, Gillingham briefed the attendees on the DCS's objectives
in relation to the bid, explained the bid document and highlighted important aspects.

* See affidavit of Mr JP Venter, attached as Annexure 23
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The bid evaluation and adjudication

On 13 December 2005, the Code of Conduct and Declaration of interest forms were
signed by the members of the BEC, in terms of which they were required to deciare
their interest, if any, in any of the bidders. Gillingham, as chairperson of the BEC,
signed this form indicating that he had no interest in any of the bidders for this
contract.

As was the case with the previous three tenders, the evaluation metho&- of
functionality and price, was used. As in the other three tenders, the threshold for
functionality was 70%. Only Sondolo attained the 70% threshold, and as such,
qualified to proceed to the next phase.

During phase 2, the BEC unanimously agreed that presentations and site visits were
. unnecessary, as Sondolo's technical proposal was clear in ali respects. The BEC
accordingly, recommended Sondolo as the preferred bidder.

The evidence shows that the BEC neither informed the NBAC that the initial budget of
R60 million had increased to R224 miilion, nor did it infform the NBAC of the
reasonableness of Sondolo’s price.

The NBAC met on 24 January 2006, to consider the recommendations made by the

BEC. The NBAC chairperson, Schreiner, required clarification on aspects such as

how the need for the bid had been identified and by whom the specifications had

been drafted and how the process had been managed. In the course of answering the

questions, Gillingham confirmed that no proper business case had been formulated

_ for the project but stated that members from Communications, IT and the CSIR had
’ assisted with the drafting of the specifications for this tender.

Schreiner further inquired why no technical expert from the IT department had been
involved in the evaluation process, as the technical requirements were a critical
element in the tender, Gilingham replied that there was no one available at the time
the evaluation was conducted and that the specifications had been made available to
the CSIR and that it had made certain recommendations. However, as already
observed, the comments from JP Venter from the CSIR were superficial and cosmetic
in nature and did not address the technical aspects of the tender.

:* P
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For ease of reference, the names of the members of the BEC and NBAC who
participated in the procurement process are set out in Table 9 below:

Table 9: BEC and NBAC meémbers for the TV tender :

Bid Evaluation Commitiee
Gillingham CDC: Finance
{Chairperson)
Manzini . Dir. Communication Services
Moruane Dir: Social Work Services
Costzee Dir; Formal Education
Gqili Dir: Sport, Recreation, Arts and Culture
Kunene Dept Reg Comm.: Limpopo, Mpumalanga and North West
F Venter Secretary of the Committee
.' National Bid Adjudication Committee
Schreiner €DC: Development & Care
(Chairperson)
Sishuba CDC: Communication
Gillingham Chairperson of BEC
From documentary evidence at hand, it is not clear who the remaining members were.

The NBAC referred the bid back to the BEC for technical evaluation. On 25 January
20086, Schreiner co-opted Messrs JP Venter, E Phenya, Director: Customer Relations
and M Lethoba, the Director: Systems Development, onto the BEC. The BEC was
then mandated to evaluate fhe bid from a technica! point of view and report its
recommendations to the NBAC.

. The technical evaluation was conducted on 27 January 2006 by the BEC and only
two of the three co-opted members. According to JP Venter, despite his having
addressed coirespondence to the DCS advising that he would be available on both
26 and 27 January 2006, and then from & February onward, for a BEC meeting to
assist with the evaluation, he was not contacted again and accordingly did not
participate in the BEC evaluation.

JP Venter informed the SiU that, in his view, Sondolo had been unfairly favoured by
the bid requirement that the TV system and monitors had to be integrated with the
existing DCS technologies (ON-IMIS designed by Bosasa), since Sondolo would have
had the assistance of Bosasa in integrating the systems. Venter was also believed
that it would have been fairer if the integration element had been removed from the
specifications and a separate tender for the integration element called for.
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The technical committee subsequently met and found that none of the bidders had
submitted convincing bids that warranted their being awarded the contract. Both the
individual and combined overall technical committee evaluation indicated that none of
the bidders had reached the 70% technical threshold, and as such, none could have
moved on to the second phase of evaluation. The highest mark Sondolo received
from either co-opted member was 67.5%. The technical committee’s findings were
submitted to Gillingham.

The technical committee's evaluation scores were incorporated by Gillingham into the .
collective scores of the six other BEC members who had previously evaluated the
tender prior to it being sent back by the NBAC for technical review. Thus the scores
were effectively based on the scoring of eight individuals. The combination of the

I scoring of the initial BEC members and the technical committee resulted in the final

.’ scores depicted in Table 10.
Table-10: Combined scoring percentages obtained
Bidders Reviewed Combined Scoring Percentages
Dimension Data 59.88%
Muster Digicom 22.38%
Connecting Africa - 64%
Tati-Chan Technologies 57.75%
Sondolo IT 80.38%

The BEC's unanimous recommendation that Sondoloc be awarded the bid was
resubmitted to the NBAC on 17 February 2006. During this meeting, Giflingham
informed the NBAC that JP Venter from the CSIR had not been available to assist

' with the technical review. This statement by Gillingham was, however, incorrect, as
Venter had confirmed that he was available on 27 January — the day on which the
technical review was conducted — bul had not been advised of the meeting. The
recommendation was approved on 3 March 2006 by the NBAC, without any further
remarks.

The minutes of the NBAC meeting held after the technical review had been finalised,
reflected that Gillingham attended not only in his capacity as CDC: Finance, but also
as chairperson of the BEC. The minules further reflected that Declaration of Interest
forms were distributed to all members in attendance and that none of the attendees
declared any interest in the bid or any of the bidders.

Gillingham signed the Declaration of Interest forms, indicating that he had no

personal interest in any of the bids.
@ 57
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The contract was signed between the DCS and Sendolo on 10 March 2006. Despite
the delays caused by the technical review, the date for the performance of the tender
remained 17 March 200€. This effectively meant that Sondolo had one week in which
to complete the entire project countrywide, which it did not do.

Table 11 represents the names of the officials who constituted the NBAC after the
technical review had been conducted.

Tabie 11: BEC and NBAC members for the TV tender

Bld Evaluation Committee
Gillingham CDC: Finance
{Chairperson)
Manzini Dir: Communication Services
.. Moruane Dir: Social Work Services
Coelses Dir: Formal Education
Gaili Dir: Sport, Recreation, Arts and Culture
Kunene Dept Reg Comm.: Limpopo, Mpumatanga and
North West

Phenya (Co-opted) | Dir: Customer Relations
Lethoba {Co-opted) | Dir: Systems Development

F Venter Secretary of the Committee
National Bid Adjudication Members
Sishuba CDC: Development & Care
{Chairperson)
Petersen CDC: Corporate Services
Gillingham COC: Finance

" {Evaluation
Commitiee
Chairperson}
National Bid Adjudication Members
Motseki CDC: Corrections
Ngubo DC: Supply Chain Management
Tshabalala DD: Logistic Administration Support
Kgwele SCO: Secretariat
Aries COIl: Secretariat
Truter Clerk; Tenders’
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Contract management

As in the case of the fencing contract, the contract for the TV tender provided that
payment of 90% of the bid price would be paid on successful completion of delivery of
the full bill of materials on site and 10% after installation.

According to Maako, a number of problems were experienced with the management
of the television tender, which apparently stemmed from the lack of planning, and the
failure to do a needs analysis and a feasibility study during the initial phase of this
tender.

According to Maako, the number of communal cells specified in the specifications did
not correspond to the actual numbers at the correctional centres. This resulted in
variation orders having to be issued.

Despite the completion date of 17 March 2006, installation of the TV system in the
Umtata Management Area only occurred in lale 2007 and the beginning of 2008.

The SiU examined the payments made to Sondolo in terms of this contract and
discoverad an invoice for payment submitted on 13 March 2006, three days after the
contract had been signed. The invoice was for R106 million and it was paid on
23 March 2008.

Benefits received by Gillingham and Mti

The SIU has established that Gillingham received financial benefits from Bosasa over
a period of time, for which he apparently gave no valuable consideration. Whilst on
._ the evidence, the payment of the benefits cannot be directly linked to this tender or
- any of the other tenders dealt with in this report, a sufficient link can be established
between the benefits and the award of ali of the tenders dealt with in this report,
having regard to the timing of the benefits and the award of this and the other

tenders.

The benefits received by Gillingham and Commissioner Mti are dealt with in more
detail iater in the report.

8.4.2 Findings
This contract was awarded on 3 March 2006 to Sondolo.

As in the case of the other three tenders discussed earfier, the SIU could find no

evidence of the establishment of a BSC in relation to the TV tender.
ﬂ 59 Z
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As in the previous three tenders discussed, Gillingham, outside of his normal duties,
played an integral role from the ouiset in the procurement process in relation to the
TV tender and was largely instrumental in the development of the tender
specifications for this tender.

Similarly to the previous three tenders discussed, there were clear deviations in the
TV tender procurement process from the DCS procurement directives in that the end
user-directorate was not included in the bid process: There was also no proper
financial planning for this tender as there was no feasibility study or needs analysis
conducted.

As observed earlier, paragraph 1.1 of practice note SCM 3 of 2003 provides that the
price/functionality tender evaluation method applies only in tenders where consuttant
services are procured. It is therefore clear that to the extent that the TV tender did not
involve consultant services, the price/functionality tender evaluation method applied
to the TV tender was in conflict with paragraph 1.1 of practice note SCM 3 of 2003.

The SIU is of the view that the structure of the TV contract as regards payment was
designed to favour Sondolo. In terms of the contract provisions, 90% of the contract
price was payable on delivery of the raw materials to the construction site; it was part
of the contract conditions that these deliverables had to take ptace before 17 March
2006, with installation to follow later. The structure of this contract accordingly
permitted the DCS to make large payments to Sondole at a very early stage of the
contract. The payment of .R 106 million was. paid to Sondolo on 23 March 2006,
thirteen days after the contract was signed. Since this payment was shorily before the
end of the financial year, this amounts to fiscal dumping.

The evidence clearly indicates that Gillingham received financial benefits from
Bosasa after the award of this and the previous tenders. The SIU was unable to find
any lawful cause for such benefits being made to Gillingham. The evidence further
shows that Mansell and Smith were instrumental in effecting these benefits to
Gillingham.

The SIU is of the view that the acceptance by Gilingham of financial and other
benefits from Bosasa, was both imegular and unlawful. Furthermore, Gillingham's
fallure — he served on the BEC and the NBAC ~ to disclose this during the
procurement process, infringed paragraph 16A8.4 of the Treasury regulations and as
such, constituted an abuse of the supply chain management system.

Asa
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The impact on the TV tender and the other tenders of the receipt of benefits by
Gillingham and Commissioner Mti, will be dealt with more fully under the discussion of
the benefits received by them.

8.4.3 Recommendations in respect of the TV tender
The SIU recommends that:

» the DCS considers instituting civil proceedings in the appropriate forum for the
recovery of any loss that may have been sustained by the DCS on account of the
award of the TV tender t¢ Sondolo

« the DCS conesiders instituting disciplinary proceedings against Gillingham
(Commissioner Mti no ionger being in the employ of the DCS) arising from his

t alleged irregular conduct relating to the procurement process involving the TV

. tender

« the NDPP considers instituting criminal proceedings against Gillingham,
Commissioner Mti, Sondolo,Bosasa and their office bearers.

e the DCS cooperates with the NPA for the purposes of prosecuting the persons
and entities mentioned above.

BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0085




BOSASA-REPORT-0001-0086

9.1

9.1.1

BENEFITS RECEIVED BY GILLINGHAM AND COMMISSIONER MTI”

Benefits received by Gillingham

A financial analysis conducted in respect of benefits received by Gillingham and his
immediate family are deait with under the following headings:

¢ Motor vehicles
» Cash and cheque deposits

+ Travel
+ Rugby season tickets
+ Properties

s Private email addrass

Motor Vehicles

To date, the following vehicles, either purchased in full or partially funded by
individuals/entities linked to Bosasa, were received by Gillingham and/or his
immediate family members.

VW Golf 5 2005 Model

This vehicle was purchased at the Glen Volkswagen (VW) dealership in Glenvista,
south of Johannesburg. Mr Robbie Seegers® (Seegers), the principal dealer at VW,
gave the SIU a file, which revealed that the vehicle was purchased by Gillingham on
1 September 2004. The purchase of the vehicle cost R196 959.97.

The client file contained a Bosasa order form for mud flaps and a 8-disc shuttle to the
value of R4 050 and an invoice was made out to Bosasa, for R200 260.02.

An analysis of Gilingham's ABSA bank cheque account, revealed a deposit of
R196 959.97 made on 30 August 2004, that is to say, two days prior to the purchase
date of the vehicle. information provided by ABSA bank reveaied that a cheque had
been deposited into Gillingham’s account by Smith, with the reference Mansell.

% A timeline illustrating the benefits received by Commissioner Mti and Gillingham and key dates in the f
ggrocurement processes are sel out in Annexure 24
See affidavit of Mr R Seegers, ses Annexure 25
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Mercedes E Class E270 CDI 2004 Node!

This vehicle was purchased by Gillingham from Grand Central Motors (GCM) in

Midrand. The SIU obtained the client file from the principal dealer of GCM,

Mr J Heyneke® regarding this purchase, The client file indicated that the initial offer to

puichase appeared to have been signed by Frans Vorster on 11 June 2004 for

R492 378. A second offer to purchase was signed by Gillingham on 13 October 2004
- for R504 659, as extra specifications had been added to the vehicle,

The client file also.indicated that on 13 October 2004, Gillingham made a deposit on
this vehicle of R120 281 by way of a cheque.

An analysis of Gilingham's ABSA bank cheque account, revealed a deposit of
R155 000 ‘made at the Key West Branch in Krugersdorp on 12 October 2004.

. ' Information obtained from ABSA hank revealed that the R155 000 cheque deposit
was made by Smith with the reference Mansel/.

The SiU established that the balance of the purchase price of the vehicle was
financed by Stannic and was paid monthly by a debit order deducted from
Gillingham's salary. The vehicle was settled on 20 February 2007.

Silver VW Polo 2006 Model

This vehicle was purchased from Lindsay Saker Krugersdorp (LSK). The SIU spoke
to Mr K van der Merwe®, the Sales Manager at LSK, regarding the purchase of this
vehicle. Van der Merwe handed over a number of documents to the SIU for
examination. These were examined and the following established:

" + The original offer to purchase document indicated the purchaser's details as
Bosasa (Pty) Lid. The offer to purchase showed the method of payment as cash
and was dated 12 April 2004
« The vehicle was invoiced to Bosasa Operations to which the vehicle was
delivered, the total purchase price being reflected as R123 269.28
* An extract of the dealer's bank account statement reflects the payment reference
of R Gillingh, with the payment amount corresponding with the invoice above

 See affidavit of Mr Heyneke, attached as Annexure 26

“* See affidavit of Mr van der Merwe, attached as Annexure 27 o (
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+ A new delivery check sheet indicated the customer’'s name as Bosasa
Operations (Pty) Ltd; the document was dated 18 April 2006 and the custamer
acknowledgement signature appeared fo be that of Frans Vorster (Vorster)

The SIU also interviewed Ms M van der Schyff*, the salesperson responsible for the
sale of the vehicle. She confirmed that she had been the salesperson responsible for
the Bosasa account and that during April 2005 she was contacted by Vorster, Fleet
Manager for Bosasa Opeérations, who placed the order for the Volkswagen Poio on
behalf of Bosasa Operations.

According to Ms van der Schyff, Bosasa Operations usually financed their vehicles
through Wesbank. However, for this particular transaction, the vehicle was paid for in
cash via an electronic funds transfer (EFT), directly into the dealer's FNB bank

. account.

FNB was requested in terms of section 5(2)(b) of the Act to identify the source of the
EFT payment into the LSK's dealership account. FNB was able to identify that the
payment had been made from a Standard Bank account bearing account number
80530192.

Standard Bank was requested in terms of s 5(2)(b) of the Ac! to identify the account
hoider of account 80530192 and to provide the bank statements for this account.
Standard Bank revealed that the account was held by Mr WD Manseil.

Van der Schyff further explained that the identity document of Ryan Albert Gillingham
was supplied to her directly by Vorster for vehicle registration purposes. However, the
vehicle was collected by Vorster and not R Gillingham.

According to eNaTIS® records, this particular vehicle with licence number
TMRS507GP was registered in the name of Ryan Albert Gilingham (R Gillingham),
ID 841024 5006 088. The SIU has established that R Gillingham is the natural son of
Gillingham,

White VW Polo 2006 Model

Regarding the purchase of this vehicle, the SIU spoke to Mr M Thomas (Thomas)®,
General Manager of The Glen Volkswagen (TGV). Documentation contained in the
client file for this particular transaction indicated that the purchase price was

“ 1 See affidavit of Ms van der Schyff, Annexure 28
Eleclronic National Traffic information System (eNaTIS)
3 See affidavit of Mr M Thomas, attached as Annexure 29
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R131 367.99. The payment was made directly into TGV’s Standard Bank account, via
EFT, on 21 December 2006.

A “Motivate Data Capture” document, contained in the client file, indicated that Megan
Gilingham (M Gillingham) was the client. However, the email address of the client

was reflected as apdries@bosasa.com. This document aiso indicated that the method
of finance was “Cash”.

First Natfonal Bank (FNB) was re-quested in terms of sect'ion 5(2)(b) of the Act to
identify the account holder responsible for the payment of R131 367.99 to TGV. FNB
identified the account holder as Andries van Tonder (van Tonder)*. Van Tonder's
bank statements reflected a cheque deposit of R140 000 on 21 December 2006 — the
same day on which the vehicle payment was made - from JG Smith's Nedbank
. account. As indicated above, the "Motor Data Capture” indicated the email address of

the client as andries@bosasa com.

According to eNatis records, this particular vehicle with licence number VLZ368 GP
was registered in the name of M Gillingham, 1D 870614 0016 084. M Gillingham is the
natural daughter of Gillingham.

The investigation findings suggest that the vehicles purchased for Gillingham's
children were acquired through financial assistance from Bosasa or individuals linked
to Bosasa or its affiliate companies. The documentation and information gathered
from interviews with the salespersons connected fo the transactions relating to the
sale of the vehicles suggested a direct relationship between the purchase of the
vehicles, Bosasa and the subsequent registration of the vehicles in Gillingham’s

. children’s names.

Additional profiling of Ryan and Megan Gillingham indicated that at the time the
vehicles were purchased, neither of them was employed and as such did not earn
any form of substantial income. Their financial position would not have enabled them
to afford these vehicles or obtain financing, let alone pay for the vehicles in cash.

Mercedes E Class E320 2007 Model

The eNatis report drawn for this vehicle indicated that it was purchased by Gillingham
on 11 April 2007 from Constantia Kloof Motors (CKM) in Roodepoort. '

“ van Tonder is an empioyee of Bosasa
' 85
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According to information contained in the client file obtained from CKM, this particular
vehicle was ordered for Vorster but then transferred to Gillingham. According to the
saies executive, Mr C Barnard {Barnard) at CKM, Vorster could no lenger afford to
purchase the vehicle and requesied that it be transferred to his business partner,
Gillingham. Barnard further informed that the vehicle could only be transferred if it
could be proved that there was a business partnership between the two parties
concemed.

The client file indicated that proof of such a relationship was provided in the form of

documentation in respect of Oak Ridge Trading 114 CC. The client file further

indicated that the vehicle was ordered on 9 February 2007 but the close corporation

was established on 16 March 2007. The business principals are registered as Vorster

and Gillingham. The vehicle was transferred 10 Gillingham but % is clear that the close
. corporation was established maerely as a means of facilitating this transfer.

Barnard further advised that no trade-in was used but that a payment of R180 000
was received with the reference Gillingham, into Sandown Motor Holdings' Nedbank

. account on 11 April 2007. This particular payment could not be traced to Gillingham,
and as such Nedbank was requested in terms of section 5{2)(b) of the Act to provide
the SIU with information pertaining to this transaction.

Nedbank was able to confirm that they had received a customer instruction to have
the funds transferred. The instruction came from Mr C da CM Bonifacio (Bonifacio).
Bonifacio’s Nedbank statements indicate both the payment from and a deposit into
his account for R180 000 on 11 Aprit 2007. The source of this deposit was identified
as a cheque for R180 000 paid-from Banifacio's FNB account. As such, FNB was

. requested in terms of section 5(2)(b) of the Act to provide the SIU with Bonifacio’s
bank statements and information pertaining to the origin of the R180 000 paid by
Bonifacio.

FNB identified the source of the R180 000 deposit into Bonifacio’s account as an EFT
from Agrizzi's FNB account. FNB also provided the SIU with Agrizzi's account
statements which revealed a R180 000 EFT transaction with the reference “Bosasa”
made on 11 April 2007,

The investigation findings suggest that the vehicle purchased for Gillingham was
acquired through financial assistance by Bosasa or individuals linked to Bosasa or its
affiliate companies. The documentation and information gathered from interviews with
the salespersons connected to this transaction related to the sale of the vehicle

bl
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suggest a direct relationship between the purchase of the vehicle, Bosasa, and the
subsequent registration of the vehicle in Gillingham's name.

9.1.2 Cash and cheque deposits
Table 12 illustrates cash and cheque deposits received by Gilingham. The
transactions relate to his ABSA cheque and credit card accounts. Each of the
deposits is discussed individually,

Table 12: Suspicious cash and cheque deposits into ABSA account held by

Date Description | Reference Cheque Acc | Credit Card
30 Aug 04 Deposit Flora Centre 196 959.97
12 Oct 04 Deposit Key West 155 000.00
5 Aug 05 Deposit Chq. Bosman Str 22 685.60
16 Aug 05 Deposit Chg. Bosman Str 20 000.00
18 Aug 05 Deposit Cash Bosman Str 20 000.00
198 Aug 05 Deposit Cash Bosman Str 20 000.00
20 Aug 05 Deposit Cash Bosman Str 20 000.00
25 Nov 05 Deposit WDM 10 000.00
07 Jul 06 Deposit Cash ABSA Branches 10 000.00
20 Jui 08 Deposit Cash ABSA Branches 18 000.00
24 Aug 06 Deposit Cash ABSA Branches 20 000.00

30 August 2004: Cheque for R196 959.97 deposited by JG Smith, used for
purchase of Golf & on 1 September 2004.

12 October 2004: Cheque for R155 000 deposited by JG Smith, used to pay
deposit of R120 281 on Mercedes E270 on 13 October 2004, )

§ August 2005: Two cheques amounting to R22 685, one for R2 685 from
MX Health and the other for R20 000 signed by WD Mansell and paid from the
account of Grande Four Property Trust.

16 August 2005: Cheque for R20 000, paid from the account of WD Mansell,
18-20 August 2006: Three cash deposits of R20 000 each, amounting to
R60 000, deposited by Gillingham. On 23 August 2005 a cheque for R66 000
was paid by Gillingham to a company called Sterlings Living. The back of the
cheque contained the reference Kifchen Deposit. The relevance of the kitchen
deposit will be dealt with in the discussion of the properties.
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e 25 November 2005: Cheque for R10 000 with reference WDM, the initials for
William Daniel Mansell. This payment was traced in Mansell's bank statements,
which contained the reference “Payment to POC Gillingham™

e 7 July-24 August: Three cash deposits of R10 000, R18 000 and R20 000 were
made on 7 July, 20 July and 24 August 2006, respectively, into Gillingham's
credit card. in addition, overseas payments were reflected in Gillingham's credit
card statements for the month of July 2006, suggesting he was abroad during
that time.

9.1.3 Travel
The SIU established that M Gillingham, Gillingham's daughter, travetied to Europe on
a school endorsed tour during 2005.

. The Unit established that Mansell made a cheque payment of R18 410 in favour of
Travel Showcase on 2 February 2005. The cheque for this amount bore the reference
M Gillingham on the reverse side.

The SIU contacted Mr J Hohls, the owner of Travel Showcase SA who confirmed that
a cheque payment of R16 410 was received as part of the tour fees organised by
Travel Showcase for Megan Gillingham. He also confirmed that the drawer of this
cheque was WD Mansell.

9.1.4 Rugby Season Tickets
The SIU search'et.! Gillingham’s residence in terms of section 6 of the Act. During this
search, six Blue Bulls season tickets were found. These tickets all displayed the
’ number 0503185.

The Blue Bulls Company who controls the sale of the tickets furnished the SIU with a
season renewal document that reflected the number 0503195, as well as
corresponding details of Manselt from Campo Distributors, with email address,
DANNYMAN@IAFRICA.COM. This information had been replaced with Mansell from
L&J Grainary, as a seascnal account holder, with the email address
lisamanseli@telkomsa.net. In addition, the updated information contained an identity
number, 751027 5102 086, which belonged to Mansell's son, Jarrod. The email
address was that of Jarrod Mansell's (J Mansell) wife, Lisa. J Mansell gave the
instruction to have the names on the ticket changed from Campo Distributors to L&)

Grainary.

4
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A system printout from the Blue Bulls Company reflected hand written information
indicating that the existing seats, printed as HBBM16-21 be kept, with 2 request for
an additional nine seats {o be added.

The tickets found in Gillingham's possession bore the reference HBBM 16-21. it
appeared that these were the six tickets purchased in 2005.

From documentahon obtained from the Blue Bulls Company, it was established that
15 tickets were purchased for R16 400, in respect of whlch R1 000 had been pald
The balance of R15 400 was paid by way of a cheque drawn on the Grande Four
Property Trust account. There was also a sum of R2 000 that had been paid for
parking. The parking was paid for by J Manseli by way of an EFT.

" 9.1.5 Properties
Erf 106 Midstream Estate

Gillingham purchased undeveloped land, namely, Erf 106 in Midstream Estate,
Midrand. A morigage bond in favour of ABSA for R 695 000 was registered over the
property. The transfer fee of R52 027 was paid by means of a cash deposit into the
transferring atiorney's trust account. A copy of the deposit slip provided by ABSA
reflected a signature purporting to be that of Gillingham's eldest son, Patrick
Gillingham (P Giilingham).

Architectural Plans for Erf 106 Midstream Estate

A dwelling house was constructed on the property. The codes depicted on the plans
for the dwelling and the bank statements and cashbooks of the architects who
prepared the plans in respect of this property are listed and explained below:

» B91 = Cade used for Bosasa as a client
e (43 = Code used for Mr Gillingham as a client
¢ (G349 = Code used for Mr Gillingham {Jnr) as a client

From information gathered from HMZ Architects (HMZ) the Unit established that the
standard cost for a draft plan was R9 131.40. This amount was paid into the HMZ
account on 9 June 2005 with reference Cheque deposit Bosasa Key West Ser 438.
The code B91 was written on the architects’ bank statement by their accountants. On
10 June 2006, R41 075 was paid to the architects, with refersnce Cheque deposit
Bosasa Operations.

@ 3
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Building on Erf 106 Midstream Estate

Mr R Hoeksma {(Hoeksma), owner of Riekele Construction was employed for the
construction of Gillingham’s dwelling on Erf 106, Midstream Estate, Midrand. Prior to
being contracted to build Gillingham’s home, Hoeksma had been a contracted builder
for Bosasa.

Between 2094 and 2007, it was evident that approximately R3_0 million was paid to
Riekele Construction by Bosasa; during this period, Gillingham's dwelling was
constructed. There was no indication in Gillingham’s bank account of any payménts
to Riekele Construction.

Imported Kitchen

& Gillingham visited the showroom of Sterfings Living (SL) in Pretoria to have a kitchen,
designed according to his requirements, fitted in his newly constructed Midstream

Estate home.

As a means of preventing any breach of contract on the part of Gilingham, SL
required a 50% deposit after the agreement was signed. In accordance with this
provision, Gillingham paid R66 000 to SL by way of cheque on 20 August 2005.

This payment seemed to have been funded by the cash deposits for R60 000 made
into Gilingham's account between 18 and 20 August 2005. The balance of the
payments to SL were made as foilows:

= 5 August 2006: Cheque payment by Danny Mansell from the Grande Four
. account for R50 396.92.

e 18 November 2005: Cheque payment from Danny Mansell from the Grande
Four account for R53 500.

» 2 December 2005: Cash payment of R1 600 at Sterlings Living.

+ 10 January 2008: Cash deposit into Sterlings Living account for R14 313.49, on
completion of the job. This deposit was made at the Clearwater Mall in
Roodepoort; the person who made the deposit was unknown.

Protea Aftree-Oord

R80 000 was paid to Booysen, Dreyer & Nolte Attorneys on 21 August 2006 to fund
the purchase of a retirement home at Protea Aftree-Oord in Heuwelsig, for
Gillingharn. The payment of R80 000 was effected by way of an EFT, bearing the

plr
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reference P Giltingham. The document further reflected the name of Danny Manseli, a
trustee of Grande Four Property Trust, as the person who made the payment.

Gillingham's bank account reflected payments for this property. The identity of the
tenant occupying this property has yet to be established.

Erf 971 Midstrearp Estate

P Gillingham purchased vacant property, namely, Erf 971 Midstream Estate, for
R&45 000 in March 2006 and a bond of R300 000 was cbtained through ABSA Bank.
On 24 February 2006, Glllingham paid R350 000 into the account of Grande Four
Property Trust, presumably as a contribution towards the purchase price. On
27 February 2006, Grande Four Property Trust paid R382 000 to LC Viljoen
Attorney’s Inc., presumably partly funded by the R350 000 paid in by Gillingham.

P Gillingham had plans drafted by HMZ in order to develop the vacant land. Between
30 August and 31 October 2006, Riekele Construction paid various amounts totalling
R50 5§89.12 for the drafting of the plans for this development after having received
R61 164.42 on 29 August 2008 from L&) Civils, (a company owned by Jarrod and
Lisa Mansell).

Before building couid commence, P Gillingham sold the land for R720 000 and settled
his bond with ABSA Bank. The profit from this sale was paid into an Investec bank
account.

Private e-mail address

Gillingham, as discussed earlier, claimed that the email address, kobus@bfn.co.za,
was his personal email address.

As also already discussed, the SIU established that this email address was one of
many owned and paid for by Bosasa.

Documents seized during search, explaining some of benefits received
by Gillingham

During a section 6 search conducted at Gillingham's residence, the SIU seized two
documents.

The first document contained notations to the following effect:

“RH: Cost of Land R600,00.00; Building R1,200,000.00".

The RH presumably stands for Riaan Hoeksma.
@ 71
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*R500,000.00 pd GR4; R1,300,000,000.00 TO BE REPAID TO GR4",
GR4 presumably stands for Grande Four Property Trus! with links to Mansell.
‘MEGAN R135000-00 LOAN AVT".

AVT presumably stands for Andries van Tonder who was responsible for payment of
the purchase price of R131367.99 for the 2006 white Polo purchased for
M Gillingham.

‘RYAN R127,000-00 LOAN DM"

DM presumably stands for Danny Mansell, who was responsibie for payment of the
purchase price of R123 269.28 for the 2006 silver Polo purchased for R Gillingham.

. “FRANS R180,000.00 L OAN FRANS"

Presumably Frans stands for Frans Vorster, Fleet Manager at Bosasa who initially
placed the order for the Mercedes E320 2007 model subsequently taken over by
Gillingham and in respect of which R180 000 was paid by EFT by Agrizzi.

The second document reflects the bank details for the Grande Four Property Trust
and the amount of R350 000 suspected to be the details for the payment made by
Gillingham to Grande Four. This amount was used to fund the amount paid to LC
Viljoen attorneys for P Gillingham’s land in Midstream Estate.

9.2 Findings in respect of benefits received by Gillingham

The evidence convincingly established that the purchase of the VW Golf 5; the silver

» VW Polo and the white VW Palo, together with the part payment of R120 281 on the
Mercedes E 270 and the part payment of R180 000 on the Mercedes E320 for
Gillingham and his family, were financed by Bosasa acting through the agency of
various individuals and/or entities.

The evidence also firmly established that the overseas trip of M Gillingham,
Gillingham’s daughter, was financed by Bosasa acting through the agency of Mansell.

The evidence further firmly established that the six rugby season tickets found in the
possession of Gilingham, were financed by Bosasa acting through the agency of
Mansell,

The evidence also clearly established that Bosasa financed the development of a
dwelling house for Gillingham on Erf 106 Midstream Estate, Midrand. In this regard,
the evidence showed that the architects were paid R41 075 on 10 June 2006 by
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Bosasa. The evidence further shows that between 2004 and 2007, R30 million was
paid by Bosasa to Riekele Construction, the same construction company employed to
construct the dwelling house on Erf 106. The building costs were approximately
R1 200000, due regard being had to the document found during the search and
seizure operation at Gillingham's residence which had the annotation: *RH: Cost of
land R600 000; Bullding R1 200 000". The fact that there was a cheque deposit on
16 August 2005 for R20 000 pgid by Manseil and three _cash payments of R20 000
each, .between 18 and 20 August 2005, coupled with the fact that Gillingham péid
R66 000 as a deposit on 20 August 2005 to SL for the imported kitchen, affirmed the
involvement of Bosasa in the construction of Gillingham’s dwelling on Erf 106.

Whilst the SIU could not establish the depositors of the cash payments into
Gillinqham's credit card account between 7 July and 24 August 2006, the SIU is

. satisfied that these payments were probably effected by Bosasa. On the available
evidence, there is nothing to indicate the contrary.

The evidence also firmly established that R80 000 was paid by Mansell on 21 August
2006 to the transferring attorney's in respect of a retirement home for Gillingham. The
SIU has little doubt that this paymént was effected by Mansell acting through the
Grande Four Property Trust on behalf of Bosasa.

The evidence revealed that Gillingham palid R350 000 to Grande Four Property Trust,
as part payment for vacant property purchased by his son P Gillingham. The trust,
after receiving this amount from Gillingham, paid R392 000 to the attorneys attending
to the transfer of the property into P Gillingham's name. The evidence further shows
that R61 164.42 was paid to HMZ for attending to the plans for the property, by L&J

. - Civils, a company owned by Mansell's son, Jarod and his wife, Lisa. The close
connection between Mansell and Bosasa leads to the conclusion that the contribution
made towards the‘ proposed development of P Gillingham's property, was in effect
made by Bosasa.

The evidence also clearly establishes that Gillingham was using an email address,

namely, Kobus@bfn.co.za paid for by Bosasa.

Given that the Bosasa Group of Companies were awarded large contracts, estimated
in excess of R1.5 billion, and that Gillingham played an integral role in all of these
contracts, the benefits acquired by Gillingham and his family, within the period these
contracts were awarded, signifies the existence of an improper and corrupt
relationship between Gillingham and the Bosasa Group of Companies.

ﬁ ’
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9.3 Benefits received by Commissioner Mti

According to Ms M Zietsman (Zietsman), an architect, she met and was requested to
compile plans for Commissioner Mti for a house to be built on Erf 61, situated in
Savannah Hills Estate, Midrand. According to her, this house was to be built for
Commissioner Mti. However, the SIU has established that the title deeds reflect the
owner of this house as Autumn Storm Investments 119 (Pty) Ltd. The Unit was able
to determine that this company belongs to Hoeksma. As earlier observed, between
2004 and 2007, Bosasa paid R30 milion to Hoeksma's building construction
company, Riekele Construction, for construction work.

Zietsman confirmed that the following payments were made for Commissioner Mti's

plans:
. » 22 October 2004: a cheque deposit of R5 500 with the reference Bosasa
Operations '
* 10 December 2004: a credit transfer payment of R58 361 with the reference
Bosasa.

To date, the SIU has established that Commissioner Mti occupied the house built far
him, built on Erf 61 Savanah Hills, Sagewood Ext 1.

The SIU has further established that Vorster, from Bosasa, placed an order for the
purchase of a Volkswagen Toureg motor vehicle for Commissioner M'ti, in September
2005. The SIU has further established that Commissioner Mti has since taken
possession of this vehicle. The SIU has sought to obtain from the dealer, LSK who

. dealt with this transaction, further details as to the payment and or financing thereof,
but the latter was unable to locate the client file. The SIU recently received a letter
from attorneys BDK acting on behalf of Commissioner Mti, in which they offered to
make available all the details regarding the purchase of this vehicle. As at the time of
preparing this report, the SIU has not obtained such details.

9.4 Findings in respect of Commissioner Mti

The SIU is of the view that the house built by Riekele Construction was buiit for
Commissioner Mti. This can be gathered from the fact that the plans were prepared
for Commissioner Mti and that he has taken up occupation of the dwelling. The
evidence clearly established that Bosasa effected payment of RS 500 and R58 361 to
HMZ for the payment of plans in connection with the construction of the house for
Commissioner Mti. The fact that Riekele Construction was previously engaged by
Bosasa between 2004 and 2007 and was paid approximately R30 million during this
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period for construction work, leads the SIU to conclude that the construction of this
house was probably funded by Bosasa.

Whiist the SiU cannot, on the evidence to hand, say with certainty that the Tourag
was funded by Bosasa, the fact that Vorster, who has a close connection with
Bosasa, was involved in placing the order for this vehicle, in the absence of any

’evldence pointing to the contrary, raises the concern that Bosasa may have been
involved in funding this vehicle, either wholly or in part.

The SIU has not been able to establish that Commissioner Mti gave any valuable
consideration to Bosasa for any of the financial benefits received by him.

10 CONCLUSIONS

The SIU is satisfied that the normal procurement process was not followed by the
DCS in the four tenders discussed in this report for the reasons advanced.

Given the fact that Gillingham and Commissioner Mti improperly received benefits
from Bosasa, the fact that there was a close working relationship between Gillingham
and Commissioner Mti leads the SIU to conciude that there was an improper and
corrupt relationship between Gillingham, Commissioner Mti and the Bosasa Group of
Companies.

In as much as there was.an improper and corrupt relationship between Gillingham
and Bosasa, the SIU is satisfied that the entire procurement process in each of the
tenders was undermined to the extent that Bosasa and its affiliates were unduly and

. unfairly advantaged as against their competitors for an in respect of the various
tenders.

On the evidence before it, the SIU is accordingly satisfied that the improper and

~ corrupt refationship between Gillingham, Commissioner Mti and the Bosasa Group of
Companies has seriously undemmined the procurement process and exposed the
DCS to civil suits by competitors who were unfairly treated.
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA
(NORTH GAUTENG, HIGH COURT)

CASE NO: 11068/09

in the matter between:
BOSASA OPERATIONS (PTY)LTD First Applicant
AGRIZZI, ANGELO Second Applicant
VAN TONDER, ANDRIES @NNES Third Applicant
;';‘.:
o VORSTER, FRANS HENDRIK STEYN Fourth Applicant
WATSON, GAVIN JOSEPH Fifth Applicant
b And
z;':
SPEﬁﬁ_ !NVESTIGATNG.UNIT Respondent
FR

a*
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\ 0

ANSWERING AFFIDAVIT

CLINTON OELLERMANN

@(\ /\‘@ do hereby make oath and state:




| am an adult male project manager, employed by the Special

investigating Unit (“SIU”) to manage and direct the investigations of

the SilJ,

The contents of this affidavit-are within my persohal knowledge whers
that is apparent from the context, and are true and correct. Whers |
make legal submissions, | do so on the advice of my legal

representatives. | believe such advice to be correct.

I am authorised to depose to this affidavit on behalf of the respondent,
who opposes the application for an interdict on the grounds set out
below. | have read the affidavits filed by the applicants in support of

their urgent application, and answer them herein.

As is apparent from what | set out hereunder, | am required by the
nature of this application and the matters to which it refers, to rely to
some extent on hearsay evidence or documents from other parties. |
verily believe in the correctness of what is contained in such

documents or what has been conveyed to me by others.

| have been employed by the SIU since 11 April 2005. | am the lead
investigator in an investigation currently being conducted by the SIU
concerning procursment irregularities in  the Department of
Correctional Services(“the Department”). The evidence obtalned as a

result of the SIU investigation necessitated further investigation into

W Wy .
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the relationship between the first applicant, Bosasa Operations (Pty),
Ltd (“Bosasa™and or its employees and certain officials in the employ
of the Department. The scope of the investigation is set out in the
notices attached as annexures FA16.1 to FA 16.3 to the founding

‘affidavit of Papa Festus Leshabane(“Leshabane").

*— 6. At this stage of the investigation, | am not at liberty to disclose our
* £ Vindings, as we have not yet reported to the President or Parliament.

However, if ordered by a court to do so, I will disclose documentary

evidence to a Judge in chambers,

The Investigation has produced evidence that suggests strong

indications of Irregularity pertaining to the procurement processes

under consideration. | anticipate that we will have finalised the

investigation shortly and will report to the President within the next

three months.
8. In what follows | address:

the in fimine point that the applicants ought to have joined the President of

the Republic of South Africa("the President”) as a respondent;

the extensive general and specific steps taken by the SIU to protect the
integrity of the information pertaining to its investigation of the first applicant. |

summarise the affidavits deposed o by the SIU's smployees and private

4 fﬂ
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12.

5

("Proclamation R66" in Government Gazette No: 23730 df 8 August
2002. A copy of Proclamation R66 is annexed to the applicants
papers marked “FA6”.The SIU's mandate was increased in scope by
the President through Prociamation R59 of 2004 (“Proclamation R59%)
published in Government Gazette No: 26990 of 19 November 2004
with the terms of reference being, in addition, fraud in the department
for the period 1996 until the date of Praclamation R59, 'A.copy of

Proclamation R59 is annexed to the applicants papers marked “FA7".

The latest mandate of the SIU was executed by the President in
Proclamation R44 of 2007 (“Proclamation R44"} published in
Government Gazette No: 30527 of 28 November 2007, A copy of
Proclamation R44 is annexed to the applicants papers marked “FA8",
and the schedule forming part of the annexure is repeated at in
Leshabane's affidavit at Pages 12 to 14 of the application, | address

the basis and terms of reference for Proclamation R 44 below.

Section 2(1)(aii), 2(2) and 2(3) of the SIU Act provides in relevant

part that.—
2(1) The President may, whenever he or she deems it necessary
on account of any of the grounds mentioned in subsaction (2),

by proclamation in the Gazette —

(b) (i) refer the matter to an existing Special Investigations

CO-118
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forensic consultants. The averments made in answer to the application

demonstrate unequivocally that:

dﬁ The SIU did not leak any information pertaining

to its investigation of the first applicant to the

H'N 0 W{J media; and

Contrary to the contentions of the applicant, the
SIU has not been supine and has certainly taken
adequate steps to ensure that the integrity of its

information is protected.

| then address seriatim certain of the allegations in the affidavits filed by

the applicants.

POINT IN LIMINE: MISJOINDER : \/

9, The SIU was established by the President in terms of section 2(1)(a)
{i} of the Special Investigating Units and Special Tribunals Act, 74 of

1986 (“SIU Act) by Proclamation R118 of 31 July 2001

("Proclamation R11 8".}.

10. The President initially authorised the mandate of the SIU to
investigate the findings of corruption within the Department of

Corractional Services (‘the department”) in Proclamation R66 of 2002

s 1/




2(2) The President may exsrcise the powers under subsection (1)

on the grounds of any alleged —

(a)

(b}

(c)

(d)

(e)

@

serious maladminisiration in connection with the

affairs of any State institution;

improper or unlawful conduct by employees of any

Stafe institution;

unlawful appropriation or expenditure of public mone 1

or property;

unlawtul, irregular or unapproved acquisitive act,
transaction, measure or practice having a bearing

upon State property;

intentional or negligent loss of public money or

damage fo public property;

offence referred to in Part 1 to 4, or section 17, 20 or
21 (in so far as it relates to the aforementioned
offences) of Chapter 2 of the Prevention and

Combating_of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004, and which
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13.

offences was commitied in conmection with the affairs

of any Stafe institution; or

(9 unlawful or improper conduct by any person which
has caused or may cause serious harm to the

interests of the public or an y category thereof

2(3) The proclamation referred to in subsection (1) must set out the
ferms of reference of the Special Investigating Unit, and such
particulars regarding the establishment of the Special

Investigating Unit or the Special Tribunal as the President may

deem necessary.”

The functions of Special investigating Unit are, within the framework

of its terms of reference as set out in Proclamaticns R66, R59 and

R44, setoutin s 4 (1) and (2) of the SiU Act;

“fa) to investigate all allegations regarding the matter

concerned;

(b) to collect evidence regarding acts or omissions which
are relevant to its investigation and, if ‘applicable, to
institute proceedings in a Special Tribunal against the

parties concerned:
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(¢)  to present evidence in proceedings brought before a

Special Tribunal:

(d) fto refer evidence regarding or which points to the

commission of an offence to the relevant prosecuting

authority;

(e)  to perform such functions which are not in conflict with
the provisions of this Act, as the President may from

time fo time request:

67, from time to time as directed by the Presidsnt to report
on the progress made in the investigation and mattor

brought before the Special Tribunal concerned:

()  upon the conclusion of the investigation, to submit a

final report to the President: and \/

{{g r ﬁ (h)  to at least twice a year submit a report to Parliament on
'/ ; W the investigations by and the activities, composition and
b u bl expenditure of such Unit.”

[Pﬂ l "d {2} A Special Investigating Unit must, as soon as bracticable after
r‘ ' it has obtained evidence referred to in subsection (1)(d), inform

the relevant prosecuting authority thereof, whereupon such

iy




14.

15.

18.

17.

18.

evidence must be dealt with in the manner which best serves

the interests of the public.”

The mandate of the SIU in this investigation derives from

Proclamation R 44 issued by the President. %

The SIU may only investigate matters referred to them for

Investigation by the President in terms of section 2(1) of the Act

In terms of section 2 of the SIU Act, the President may, only when he
or she deems it necessary on account any of the grounds mentioned

in sub-section 2(2) thereof refer a matter to the SIU for investigation.

The subject matter of the SIU investigation is set out in the Schedule

to Proclamation R 44,

When a matter is referred to the SIU, section 4{1)(a) provides in sffect
that it must do the investigation ‘within the framework of jts terms of
reference as set out in the Proclamation referred to in section 2(1)",
The terms of reference mentioned is section 4(1)(a) are the
President's definition of the matter referred for investigation, that is,
matters described in the schedule of Proclamation 44. It becomes the

SIU's terms of reference which determines the scope of the

investigation. g

EN
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19,

20.

21,

10

The appliéants seek an interdict restraining the SIU from performing
its functions and / or proceeding with its investigation of the first
applicant pursuant to the respondent’s powers as provided for in the
SIU Act and the various proclamations, including, but not fimited to
proceeding with the envisaged interrogation of the second to fifth
applicants over the period 24 to 28 March 2009, pending the final
determination of an action for a permanent interdict to be instituted by

the applicants within 30 days.

Although the applicants ‘couch’ the relisf sought in terms of an interim
interdict, the effect of the relief sought is in fact a final interdict.
Because of the inevitably protracted nature of any action proceedings,
the appiication to be instituted by the applicants will have the effect of
permanently placing the investigation on hold. The investigation is at
an advanced stage and such an interdict would thereby negate the

mandate issued in the proclamation by the President,

As the SIU acts in terms of the mandate of the President and reports
to the President, the applicants ought to have joined the President in
this application. 1| am advised that should this Honourable Court be of

the view that the relief sought is final in effect, the applicants’ failure {o

Jjoin the President renders their application defective, and it ought to

be dismissed alternatively postponed for them to bring the necessary

joinder application. This issue will be addressed in legal argument.
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THE STEPS TAKEN BY THE SIU TO PROTECT THE INTEGRITY OF THE
INFORMATION OBTAINED IN THE INVESTIGATION OF THE FIRST

APPLICANT

s 22, The SIU has evaluated jis processes undertaken for data retrieval and
restoration in the investigation info the first applicant.  The
assessment unequivocally reveals that the information leaked to the
media was not by any member of the SIU or its private forensic

consultants engaged in the data retrieval and restoration exercise.

23, There are only four sources of electronic data obtainad by the SiU
which are relavant to the information published in the press, and

complained of in this application;
The Bosasa server information;

The oelectronic  Information forensically imaged from Patrick

Gi!lingham's("Gilfingham") computers; @ F

The elecironic  Information forensically imaged from Angelo

Agrizzi’s(#,qgﬁzzl") laptop; @

Information obtalned from an informer whose identity the SIU Is not at
liberty to disciose in this affidavit, but will be made availablo at the request of

the judge hearing the appiication. .




24.

12

I address below these four sources of elaectronic information and the
individuals who have had access to them. Prior to doing so, | briefly
set out the general practices and policies of the SIU in place to

# address confidentiality.

Practices and policies of the SIU in place to address confidentiality

25.

26.

27

28.

The SIU's employment contracts have terms pertaining fo

confidentiality, requiring that members may not communicate outside

of the Unit.

All SIU members are required to take and subscribe to an oath of
secrecy before a commissioner of oaths, as provided for in ragulation
3(2) of the Regulations: Special Investigating Units and Special
Tribunals issued in terms of section 11 of the SIU Act and publishad in
Government Gazette No. 25024, dated 14 March 2003 (Government

Notice No. R.360 of 2003)(“the SIU regulations”),

Regulation 4 of the SIU Regulations obliges SIU members to keep

information confidential.

Regulation 6 of the SIU Regulations makes it an offencs to breach the

requirement for confidentiality, as prescribed by Regulation 4.
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Verifying compliance and enforcement:

29, The SIU enforces a strict principle of confidentiality in general, but

€ven more so pertaining to our investigations.

30. The confidentiality principle is further supported and enforced by the
IU's Internal Integrity Unit*lIV"), which subjects SIU members to
ringent pre-employment screening and internal integrity vetting

measures, and also at times involves subjecting them to voice stress

\ / 0 analysis and under cover exerclses. The 11U has the authority o

Y@ investigate all allegations of misconduct.

PD‘ 3. in the investigation into procurement irregularities relating to tenders
awarded by the Department, the SIU has been extremely careful in
managing the investigation, to protect and manage the confidentiality

and integrity of the evidence obtained, mindful of patential disclosures.

32. The members of the investigating team are housed separately from
the rest of the SIU members and had received specific insfructions not

to communicate any information, not even with other members of the

Siu.

33. I also point out the SIU does not elicit evidence through the press. We

have the machinery created by the Act, in particular in section 5 and 6
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thereof at our disposal to access information and evidence that is

relevant to our investigations.

34. I now turn to address the electronic data information obtained by the

SIU.
The affidavit of Jacques Riel Malan

35. | refer firstly to the supporting affidavit of Jacques Riel Malan
(“Malan”). In summary, in respect. of protecting the integrity of the

information obtained through the investigation, he states as follows:;

He agreed to the terms of the confidentiality agreement entered into with

the SlU(annexure FA17.3.), and is bound by such agreement. (at paragraph

4 o 5)

The data retrieval and restoration exercise at Bosasa

At the request of the SIU he conducted a data retrieval and restoration
process at the offices of Bosasa in terms of an agreed protocol between the
SIU and Bosasa (See paragraph 37 to 39 of the founding affidavit of
Leshabane, as read with annexures “FA17.1” fo “FA17.3") ( at paragraphs 6

to 10.)Two forensic copies were made of sach drive of the Bosasa server:

=
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At present, one of the copies is still sealed and is in his possession in safe

storage. Nobody has had access to that copy {including himsalf);

He is presently utilising the other copy to recover data for purposes of the
SIU investigation, which copy is also securely stored at his office.  Nobody

apart from himself has had access to that copy.(at paragraph 11)

Although the process of recovery of the data is underway, because It is

time consuming, complex and incomplete he has not yet transferred any of

the data retrieved from the Bosasa servers or user laptops to the SIU. He

also has not forwarded such data fo anyone else. (at paragraphs 12 to 14)

i/

He has discovered a data deletion utility on the Bosasa servers and found

that files were destroyed consistent with that application. it is apparent that

utility was installed and the files ware deleted shortly prior to the imaging

process. (at paragraphs 13)

In the data from Bosasa that he has recovered and analysed, he has not
come across the e-mail correspondence annexed to the Mail & Guardian
article published on 30 January 2009, (Annexure “FA19" to applicant's
founding affidavit).(at paragraph 16)

Malan read the alleged e-mail comespondence between Gillingham and

Agrizzi for the first time when it was published in the Mail & Guardian.( at

;—ﬁ Y/

paragraph 17)
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% Agrizzi's laptop

Agrizzi's laptop was forensically imag_ed during the data retrieval and

- restoration process. Malan has commenced the process of data recovery but

has not yet found any documents that are relevant to the investigation, nor
has he found any e-mail correspondence, including the correspondence
published by the Mail & Guardian, that is of any relevance to the

investigation.(at paragraph 18)

The data retrieved from Agrizzi's laptop is in Malan's possession. Nobody

else has had access to it. He has not forwarded such data to the SIU or

anyone else.(at paragraph 19)
Gillingham’s computers

Malan has not had any access o the data obtained from Gilingham’s

computers.(at paragraph 20)

Q}A& ?ﬁ‘ nic data obtained from the SiU’s source

Jason Jordaan (“Jordaan”), who is amployed by the SIU as a cyber
forensic lead furnished Malan with 2 DVD on 15 January 2009, advising that it

‘contained information obtained from a SIU source/whistle blower.(at

paragraph 21}
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The DVD has been in safe storage at Malan's office and in his care since
obtaining it from Jordaan. Nobody else has had access to it, and he has

never discussed the DVD with anyone else from the SlU.(at paragraph 22)

Malan has not analysed or retrieved any of the data on the disk.{at

paragraph 23)

36. Accordingly, since December 2008 when the data restoration process
was underway, Malan has been the only person who has had access
to the data. His analysis is incomplete and he has not releasad any of

the information to the SIU or to any other person.

The affidavit of Jason Jordaan

37. Secondly, | refer to the affidavit of Jordaan. In summary, in respect of
protecting the integrity of the information obtained through the

investigation, he states as follows:

At the time of his employment by the SIU in 1998, Jordaan swore an oath
of confidentiality as required by the Special Investigating Units and Special

Tribunals Act, 74 of 1996 (“SIU Act’), which he adheres to at all times'in his

employment with the SiU.(at paragraph 3)

g
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On § September 2008 he attended a meeting with a whistle blower whé

had some computer information that he wished to make available to the SiU.

(at paragraph 4 to 5)

Jordaan wanted to image the whistle blower's entire laptop as this would
have ensured evidential integrity. However, the whistle blower did not agree
to this. Instead, the whistle blower himsself transferred only the files in
question from his laptop, which he had with him at the meeting, directly to an ’

external hard drive (a storage device) of Jordaan.(at paragraph 6)

Accordingly, the information transferred had no evidential value from a

forensic perspective.(at paragraph 7) M H M 70 _ .

'\/ The data provided was in a compressed format as it had been copled as a
data back up. Jordaan was requestsd by the SIU to decompress and extract

the information into a readable format. (at paragraph 9)

Jordaan conducted no analysis on the data at that stage as he had not \/

received any directions from the SIU. (at paragraph 10)

Jordaan confirms that on 29 September 2008 he gave me a CD of tha raw \/

data and that | advised him thereafter that | was unable to open any of the
S———vh e

data to read it.(at paragraph 11 )
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On 15 January 2009, at the request of the SIU and at thair offices in
Pretoria, Jordaan handed Malan a copy of the information received from the

source on a CD. (at paragraph 12)

Jordaan confirms that he also attempted to place a copy of the information
“on my SiU laptop. However, | again advised him that | was not able to open
any of the files or documents copied to my laptop and had therefore deleted

the information.(at paragraph 13}

Apart from the disks that were furnished to myself and to Malan, the déta

obtained from the source has been in Jordaan’s safe custody since

September 2008. (at paragraph 1 2)

The only time that Jordaan physically looked at the data was at the
requast of Suad Jacobs (“Jacobs”), approximately a week after the Mail &
Guardian article had been published on 30 January 20009. Jacébs requested
Jordaan to do a search in the data for the e-mails that the Mail & Guardian
had published. After conduciing a search, Jordaan discovered that the s-mail

correspondence did form part of the data that had bsen copied by the whistie

biower.(at paragraph 14)

Apart from reporting his findings io Jacobs, Jordaan had not released any

information or data on the disk to anyone other than Malan or myself. (at

paragraph 15)

#
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Gillingham’s computers

One of Jordaan's colieagues, Henry Baden Wiggill (“Wiggill") was

responsible for the process of seizing the electronic information from

5

information was performed by Wiggill at the SIU office in Pretoria, After the
imaging, the hard drives containing the information were securely stored in a
strong room at the SIU office and no-one had access to them. Wiggill did not

{ conduct an analysis of the data, (at paragraph 18)

On 4 November 2008 Jordaan coliected ali the hard drives containing the
Gillingham data and removed them to East London, where they were securely

stored, and only he had access to them.(at paragraph 16)

Jordaan was requested by Jacobs to conduct a search on the data utilising
both key words and the terms of reference of the search warrant, to determine

whether any evidence was available on the hard drives, which he commenced

QP on 7 November 2008 .(at paragraph 19 to 20)

\(h 1
“\é - On 20 November 2008 Jordaan released two CD's containing the
information from the search fo Jacobs and to myself. He did not discover any

of the e-mail correspondence referred to by the Mail & Guardian amongst the

data. However, the letter of concern addressed to Dennis Bloem, and
annexed to the Mail & Guardigan article was the only document found on

Gillingham’é computer.

~

Gillingham's premises. The imaging and acquiring of the electronic »
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41.
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Wiggill and Jacobs have deposed to confirmatory affidavits to

Jordaan's affidavit, and also confirmed that they did not disclose the

data to anyone else.

I confirm that | was unable to access the information furnished by
Jordaan to me, either on my hard drive or on the disk and that | did .
not disclose the information to any other person. /
Following interviews held with the source, a draft affidavit was
prepared, however he is unwilling to depose to an affidavit at this \/

stage.

It is apparent from what | have stated above that:

there were a very limited number of people who have had access to the

electronic information utilised in this investigation,

the email correspondence was not located in the whistie blower/source’s

data until after the Mail and Guardian article was published, and

none of the information has been furnished to the press.

THE AFFIDAVIT OF PAPA FESTUS LESHABANE: g

A ’
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Ad paragraph 10 thereof:

42, I deny that the applicants merely seek interim relief. The effect of the
order sought by the applicants is an indefinite halt to the investigation

of the first applicant by the SIU.

43, | am advised that the relief claimed, although cast as interim relief, is

) final in nature. It is simply not possible for action to be brought and

- determined on an expedited basis, and the protracted delay which will

%
no doubt arise from the proposed action, will result in an indefinite hait
to the investigation.

44, I am further advised that even if the court reaches the conclusion that
the relief sought is not of a final nature, the applicants have not made

/ out a prima facie case and accordingly, an interim intardict ought not

to be granted.

45. This issue will be addressed in legal argument.

Ad paragraph 11.1 thereof:

48, I deny the contentions advanced in this subparagraph. | have already
addressed the SIU structures and policies in place to protect the

integrity of the information obtained in the investigation. | also ; v

summarised the supporting affidavits deposed to by the employees

A @) | _.‘W
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and private forensic consultants of the SIU who had access io
electronic information in respect of the BOSASA investigation. They
unequivocally deny under oath that they leaked the information to the
press. Furthermore, it is apparent that the emaij correspondenc:e
published by the Mail & Guardian was not accessed by the SIU prior

to its publication,.and has been in the possession of at ieast one other

source since September 2008.

Ad paragraph 11.2 thereof:

47.

The first applicant has complained to the SIU that it fears that the

SlU's investigative powers are being utllised, abused and/or

manipulated by one or more of the first applicant's competitors or

persans controlled by them, with the intention of bringing about the
termination of tenders awarded to the first applicant. | deny that this‘ is
the case. ‘i‘he SIU's Investigation is conducted under the mandate
issued by the President, within the boundaries set by the SIU Act and
the founding proclamation. The SiU is not in any way influenced or
controlled by other parties and fiercely guards its independence in
giving effect to its mandate to invesligate the problem of
maladministration and corruption in the Dapartment. As | have
explained above, its mandate is to investigate the allegations as sat

out in Proclamation R44, and no more than that,
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49,

80.

51.

52.

24

I deny that the proclamations came into existence primarily to pursue

complaints against the first applicant.

There are currently three proclamations in force that mandate tty

DCS to conduct investigations in respect of the Department:

Proclamation R 44;
Proclamation R 59

Proclamation R 66.

Proclamation 44(annexure FAB to Leshabane's affidavit) forms the
basis of the SIU's current investigation Into procurament irregularities
within the Department, which includes the procurement contracts

concluded betwsen the Department and Bosasa.

in the period prior to the issuing of Proclamation 44, P}ociamation
66(annexure FA6 to Leshabane’s affidavit) mandated the SIU to
Investigate more broadly a range of alleged maladministration and
corruption in the Department, one aspect of which was the
procurement of goods and sarvices for the Department and the

procedures related thereto.

Proclamation R59 extended the scope of the investigation under
proclamation R66 to include “Fraud committed by employses of the

Department to the detriment of the Department”.

~
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53. The history of the extensions of the time psriods of the earier
Proclamation R 66 is set out in the Motivation for an Extension to the
Investigation Mandate / Period of the Investigating Unit as authorised

by Proclamation R66 of 8 August 2002(“the mofivation”) by the

CO-139

Minister of Correctional Services, Mr BMN Balfour, annexed as -

“Co1™.

54, In the motivation Minister Balfour explains that:

the relevant terms of reference of Proclamation R66 had initially targeted
the period between January 1996 and the date of publication of the

proclamation, which was 8 August 2002,

Subsequent to the publication of Proclamation 66, during the course of its

investigation into the matters listed in the schedule, the SIU discovered

certain fraudulent conduct which had occurred and was still occurring after 8

August 2002. In the result the period of investigation was extended by:
Proclamation R56 till 18 July 2003: and
Proclamation R58 till 19 November 2004.

L]

55. During that investigation, the SIU discovered improper conduct which

had occurred and was stiil oceurring and as a result the department

7

d
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o7.

8.

26

requested to have the period of the SIU investigation again extended,

and fo authorise its further investigation.

Minister Balfour records his full and unconditional support for such an
fnvestigation, in the natioral interest, andsstates that his department
has already expressed its willingness to do everything within its power
to bolster up the SIU’s capacity to undertake such an investigation, It
is apparent from the motivation that Minister Balfour has at all times
Supported the ongoing investigations in terms of Proclamations R 66

and R 59,

in March 2006, after conducting general investigations in terms of
Proclamation R 66 and R 59, which partially referred to procurement,
the DCS requested the SIU to commence a new investigation into the
affairs of the DCS, with its primary focus as areas of procurement
(national and provincial across all sectors of the DCS), asset
management at cormrectional centre facilities, the management of
correctional centre pharmacy’s and to continue its investigations into
the Medcor medical aid scﬁeme. while still proceeding with
investigations already commenced under Proclamation R66 of 2002

(as amended or extended)).

The new investigations that were referred to the SIU by the DCS

4

culminated in Proclamation R 44,
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59. The service level agreement ("SLA") or parinership agreement
bstween the SIU and the department was also extended. The SLA is
‘a Iega! framework which arranges the rights, duties and obligations

between the two government entities, in terms of which. the SIU at the

civil or criminal legal action with regard to Issues and specific matters

' e \‘J ’ request of the department, creates and maintains a dedicated forensic
\g}) capacity to inquire into / investigate / litigate or faciiitate appropriate

h

The SLA indicates the departmental support for the proclamation.

61. The SIU had the folloWing sources of information-at Its disposal at the

time of the mandate being issued in Prociamation R 44:

* DCS referred various potentially regular procurement matters to the SIU,

along with the reievant documentation,

% DCS handed the SIU its procurement database for the period 2000 to

006 and a few hundred of the most valuable procurement contracts were

analysed;

The SIU pursuant to Its investigations in the first partnership with the DCS

obtained many documents and sources during the course of its investigations,
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highlighting problems in the area of procurement, assets management,

correctional cenire pharmacy’s and the DCS medical aid fund (Medcor);

The DCS provided the SIU with z forensic investigation report compiled by

Price Waterhouse Coopers relating to allegations of corruption in the DCS

procurement divislon.

The SIU had access to the final report of the Jali Commission.

The SIU received numerous reports and allegations from members of the

public of improper conduct falling within the ambit of matters mentioned in the

schedule to Proclamation R686.

Information was also furnished to the SIU by the Public Service

Commission and the Auditor Generals office.

The SIU also relied on its own pre-proclamation database analysis that

had been conducted under the previous prociamations.

62. The result of this process was:

j,"!‘-he identification of procurement process irregularities;

et

,& The identification of particular red flag contracts which were used as

indicators based on allegations, suspicion or interim findings. g

T e e e
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63. All of this information at the disposal of the SIU was indicative of
maladministration, misconduct and corruption in terms of saction 2(2)
of the SIU Act.

64, In proclamation 44 the SIU investigation is limited to certain subject

matter, and in particular procurement, namely:

™. The procurement of goods and services by or on behalf of the

Department without compliance with the Department's-

(a) policies, procedures, prescripts, directives, guidelines or

standing instructions (hereinafter collectively referred to

as the ‘prescripts?); and

(b) procursment and provisioning systems or supply chain
managetnent systems prescribed by  applicable

legisiation,

in a manner that was not fair, competitive, transparent, equitable

and/or cost-effoctive and payments mads in respect thereof.

2. The failure by officials and employees of the Depariment to

disclose that they had a direct or indirect interest in the suppliers
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and service providers used by the -Department which

represented a conflict of interest,

3. The failure by the officials and employees of the Department to
disglose the Department that they were engaged in
unauthorised business activities for remuneration outside the
scope of their employment under the Public Service Act, 1994)

Proclamation No, 103 of 19940 or the Correctional Services Act,

1998 (Act No. 111 of 1998).

4.  The conduct of —

@ suppliers and service providers of the Department:

and

(b) officials and employees of the Departmeant,

which has resulted or may result in a loss of, damage to or a
lack of control over public money, public property or other

resources the Department and any conduct directed at or

promoting the aforementionad.

5. False ‘or inflated claims by, or on behalf of officials and

employees of the Department from certain medical aid
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The theft or misuse of the properly and resource of the

Department by officials and employees of the Department.

Megal or irregular practices in terms of which officials and
employees of the Department received or solicited benefits
from other officials and employees of the Department or from
members of the public in connection with the execution of

their duties or the failure to execute their duties.

The conduct of the officials and employees of the
Department which was aimed at influencing or hampering

any investigation or the destruction of svidence.

The intimidation of officials and employees of the
Department or members of the public by officials or
employees of the Depariment with the aim to conceal corrupt

or other unlawful practices within the Deparitment.

Acts of undue influence and extortion committed by officials
and employees of the Department with regard to members of
the public and other officials or employees of the

Department.

Fraud committed by officials and employess of the

Department to the detriment of the Department.”
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The investigation was limited to prescribed timeframes namely 1

January 2000 to 28 November 2007,

The investigation was based on the allegations contemplated in terms

of section 2(2) of the SIU Act, that were made in respect of the

Department.

It is apparent that Proclamation R44 allows the SIU to investigate the

particular area of procurement irregularities,

The process of obtalning a préclamation involves robust consultation
and assessment of the grounds for the investigation. This includes a
consultation process with the relevant Department. A practice has
developed in consultation with the Ministry of Justice to ensure
compliance with -the threshold required by the SIU Act, before a
request for a proclamation is submitted to the President.  In most if
not all instances an in depth assessment of the grounds for the
proclamation is conducted by the SIU prior to approaching the

President, through the DOJ, to issue a proclamation.

In this investigation, this consultation is evidenced through the
motivation from the Minister of Correctional Services to the Minister of
Justice indicating his support for the investigation. Departmental

support is also evidenced through the SLA.
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Ad paragraph 11.3
70. I deny that the investigation is not bona fide:

a) The Proclamation R 44 is in place to investigate the

procurement irregularities in the department;
b)  The grounds for the procilamation have been set out above; \/

¢) The proclamation gives the SIU a broad mandate to investigate \/

procurement irregularities in the DCS:

d)  The proclamation is supported by the DCS and the Ministry of

@ Correctional Services.

‘ @) The investigation has identified procurement process

irregularities.

Although there were concerns raised about some of the red flag
contracts that were entered into with Bosésa, there were no specific
complaints against Bosasa from which the proclamation emanated. it
is as a consequence of the evidsnce obtained thus far In giving effact

to the mandate in the Proclamation R 44 that specific evidence

relating to Bosasa has been gathered. &
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Access to information

72, In its correspondence dated 18 Fabruary 2008 (annexure “FA28" to

applicants’ founding affidavit) the SIU denied the request by the:

second to fifth applicants for copies of the statements and/or affidavits
underlying the complaints, and denied that these were necessary for
the attendance at the s 5(2)(b) and (c) hearings. The second to fifth
applicant ware invited by the SIU to sub?nit a request for access to
information in terms of the Promotion of Access to Information Act 2 of

2000(the “PAIA"), should it require access to information for any other

purpose.

I have aiready explained that there were no spacific complaints about

o

(\ investigaﬁon was gene;ral in nature and pertained to procurement.
A\ Tenders awarded to Bosasa were investigated as a resutt of executing
v
\ g@\ the mandate of the investigation.

=

74. Accordingly, the SIU takes Issue with the contention of the sscond to
fifth applicants that information “concerning the underlying complaints”

is necessary for purposes of the questioning.

4 pe

“the First Applicant underlying the investigation. The scope of the
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75. An independent chair will preside at the questioning, to whom they

can make specific requests in relation to information and which will be

impartially considered.

76.:  Neverthsless, the SIU hereby tenders as follows:

=

If the applicants submit a request for access to information in terms of

=

PAIA, the SIU will postpone the s 5(2)(b) or (c) hearings, pending the outcome

=
T
\‘.

of such a request under the provisions of PAIA.

Ad paragraph 11.3 thereof:

77. | deny that the investigation is “not bona fide”. .1 have explained abave
the basis for the investigation. The SiU's investigation is conducted
under the mandate issued by the President in Proclamation R44 and

is done within the framework of the Act and the terms of reference.

\ 78. Insofar as the allegation that the first applicant was praviously clearad
by the Department of any wrong doing in relation to the tenders in
\ @ ; qusstion, is concerned, that is simply not the case.
[ <A
—
L
\
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79.  The Department only investigated tender HK 30/2005, and has

subsequently requested the SIU to investigate that tender;/aqd ,

80. The SIU has never cleared the first applicant of:any wrongdoing in

provided its full support for the investigation.

relation to the tenders under investigation by the SIU.

Ad paragraph 11.4 thereof:

81. | deny the conientions advancad in this subparagraph. | address
these issues in my response to the more detailed averments made in

the later paragraphs of Leshabang's affidavit.

82. As is tendered above, although the SIU takes issue with the
applicants alleged inability to prepare for the formal questioning, the
SIU has agreed not to proceed with such questioning under oath on
24 and 26 March, in the event that the applicants submit an access to

information request in terms of PAIA.

Ad paragraph 12 thereof:

33. The extent of the investigation is set out In the notices issued in terms'

of s 5(2) (b) and (c) of the SIU Act.

Ad paragraph 13 thereof;
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84. | deny that the applicants have to date co-operated fully with SIU in
the investigation. The applicant's have sought to delay certain
aspacts of the investigation. | mention by way of example:

The applicant did not attend a meeting proposed by the first applicant

between itself and the SIU “o sef the record straight”;

The questioning under oath scheduled for 14 November 2008 was
postponed at applicant’s instance, Correspondence from applicant's attorney
{annexed as “C02”"} reflects that one of the grounds for such further delay
was that “the relationship between the Gillingham family and certain of the
clients whom we represent goes- back in time a lot further than we ini.riaﬂy
understood the position to be, and it is accordingly necessary for us to fully

investigate this aspect of the matier to snable us to prepare our clients for

your intended questioning,”

The data retrieval and imaging process at Bosasa was de!ayeql by a

week.(Malan at paragraph 9)

During the data retrieval process, Malan was denied access to agreed
servers. It was only after a 16 hour delay and with the intervention of Jerome

Wells that access was arranged through Brian Beybuck.(Malan at paragraph
M

10)
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Malan also explains that he discovered that a data delstion utllity was
placed on the Bosasa servers — and found desiroyed files consistent
with that application. He says it was apparent that the utility was

instalied and the files were delsted shortly prior to the imaging

process.

It is also apparent from the correspondence annexed as FA 17.1 to
17.3 to Leshabane's affidavit that the First Applicant did not marely
seek to co-operate with the investigation but sought fo control it by

being present at the phase 2 analysis of the data.

| have already explained that the SIU has agreed not to proceed with
the formal questioning under oath on 24 and 26 March 2009, in the

event that the applicants submit a request for access to information in

terms of PAIA.

Ad paragraph 14 thereof:

88.

For the reasons | have already advanced above, | deny that the relicf
sought in these proceedings is interim, or that the SiU's investigation
into the first applicant ought to be placed on hold. | also deny any
abuse of the powers in the SIU Act by the respondent, and in

particular insofar as such powers relate to the investigation of the first

applicant.
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89. For the reasons advanced hersunder in response to the applicant's
specific averments concerning urgency, | also deny that there is any

basis for this application to be determined on an urgent basis.

Ad paragraphs 15 to 19 thereof:

80. I note the contents of these paragraphs. | am also aware of other
tenders awarded fo the Bosasa group of companies during the period,

for example the fencing contract awarded to Phezuly Fencing.

Ad paragraph 20 to 24 thereof:

91. | have set out above the history to the present investigation and the
varlous proclamations in which the President authorised the mandate
of the SIU. To the extent that these paragraphs are not consistent with

what | have set out above, their contents are denied.

Ad paragraph 25

92. On 25 April 2007, the Beeld newspaper reported in an article marked
“C0O3”"that the PSC was investigating a possible conflict of interest

and the SIU was looking at the process followed during the allocation

of the Bosasa tenders.
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93. In that article Faiek Davids, deputy chief of the SIU is quoted as
foliows: “The SIU did however look at certain DCS tenders to
determine if the process and awarding(of tenders) were regular. We
are still busy with this process. .. But at this stage there are no
allegations of specific criminal or unethical behaviour that we

investigate against any specific person, official or company.”

94. Prior to that in November 20086, in an article annexed as part of CO3

the Beeld had reported that an investigation by Beeld revealed that:

‘Employees of the Bosasa group knew of the tender long before ft

was advertised on February 4 20005;

- Large parts of the tender’s technical specifications were written on

Bosasa computers in December 2004"

Ad paragraph 30 thereof:
95. I annex the letter addressed to the SIU marked “CO4”,

Ad paragraph 35 thereof:

. 986. I deny that the notices limited the extent of the investigation insofar as
it relates to the second to fifth applicants in any manner. The notices
merely limited the time period in respect of such questioning fo the

period 1 August 2004 to 28 November 2007.
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Ad paragraph 36 thereof:

97. | deny that the documents requested in the notices were provided to
the SiU on t4 November 2008. Alihough some requested documents
/ were made available, others were not, for example the requested

bank statements were not furnished to the S,

VK() Ad paragraphs 37 to 39 thereof:

v
Q\ 98. I refer to the affidavit of Malan, who states that the retrieval process
- " was planned for the first week of December 2008 and delayed by the
h first applicant till the second week of December. He also states that
“\\\& he was initially denied access to certain servers. | consequently deny ;
that the first applicant's co-operation as tendered was consistently

N
@ (\(\\ given effect to.

99. To the contrary it seems that the Applicant desires and seeks to
control the direction and result of the investigation. This holds true in
that they directed and limited Malan’s access to only certain servers
and is further manifested in Annexure FA 17.2 to Leshabane’s
affidavit requested that their cyber forensic expert bs present when

analysing the information.
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Malan aiso states that he has discovered that a data deletion utility

was placed on the Bosasa servers — and he found destroyed files -

consistent with that application. He states that it Is apparent that the
utility was installed and the files were deleted shortly prior to the

imaging process. &

101. | have no knowledge of the alleged computer server failure that
occurred on 8 November 2007, or the subsequent events, or whethsr
that meant that the applicants were unable to furnish the electronic
information referred to in the SIU notices..

102. Malan states that there are a number of forensic experts in South
Africa who could conduct the information refrieval exerciss.(at
paragraph 30)

Ad paragi'aph 40 thersof:

103. | have already addressed the question of the cooperation of the
applicants with the SIU, which has been limited in certain instances.

104.  For the reasons advanced in paragraphs 21 o 37 above, | deny that

the SIU leaked information to the media about its investigation of the
first applicant, or permitted such leaking of information or that it was

within the power of the SIU to put an immediate stop to such feaking

of information.
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Ad paragraph 41 thereof:

105. | have no knowledge of whether first applicant has been subjected to

unbalanced media reporting. =

106. | deny that the articles published in the Mail & Guardian on 23 and 30
January 2009, written by Adrian Basson lead %o the inescapable

conclusion that ons or more members of the SIU wsre leaking

information to the media.”

Ad paragraph 42 thereof:

107. | admit that the article dated 23 January 2009, annexed as “FA18”

contains the following statements:

“The M&G was relfably told that the SIU executed search and
seizure operafions at Bosasa Krugersdorp premises in early
December and also raided the Centurion home of the
suspended regional commissioner for North West,

Mpumalanga and Limpopo, Patrick Gilingham, towards the

end of year.”

108. I have no knowiedge as to whether or not this information was in the

public domain.
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Ad paragraph 45 thereof:

108. | have no'knowledge as to whether the article relies “entirely out of -
context, on certain e-mail correspondence between the department’s
employee, Mr Palrick Gillingham and the second applicant, copies of

which e-mails are attached to the articles, annexurs “FA19” hereto”

110. I note that Gillingham does not confirm the accuracy of paragraph 45

in his confirmatory affidavit.

Ad paragraph 46 thereof:

111. I note that the applicants contest the authenticity of these e-mails. Itis
respectfully submitted that the applicants cannot, on the one hand
contend that the emails being avallable in the public domair; has
tainted the investigation by the SIU, and on the other hand contend

that the e-mails are not authentic.

112.  As | explain above, the SIU has also not been able to determine the

authenticity of these e-mails.

113. I note that Gillingham does not confirm the averment in paragraph 46

of Leshabane’s affidavit contesting the authenticity of these emails.

F
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Ad paragraph 47 thereof:

114.  For the reasons advanced in paragraph 21 to 36, | deny that “an
irresistible inference is to be drawn that Basson’s source is one-or

more members of the SIU, who discloses information unlawfully”,

Ad paragraph 47.1 thereof:

- 115, Only 13 of the SIU investigators and employees were aware of the
raid on Gillingham’s premises prior to its océurence, namely:
Faiek Davids
Suad Jacobs
Jerome Wells
" Clinton Oellermann
Pranesh Mahara}
Prudence Mahlokoane
Corrie du Toit
Smile Ndlovu
Jacqui Lynn Mcintyre
Janine Louw
Deidre Viljoen
Thuli Skosana
Baden Wiggill

Hannes Senekal
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They are all subject to the confidentiality requirements of the SIU.

Nevertheless they have all stated on affidavit under oath that they did

not disclose the fact of this search and seizure to Basson or to anyone

else. : : : Y

It is an indication of how well the SIU maintained confidentiality about
the search and seizure exercise in their determination to preserve the
integrity of the Information to be obtained in the search, that there was
no prior knowledge of the raid by the press. Basson does not suggest

that he had prior knowledge of the raid - he only published

information conceming the raid some time after it ocourred — by which

stage it was not only known to members of the SIU.

By then officials at the Magistrate’s Court where the application for the
warrant was sought would also have been aware thereof, as were the
security officers at the Qo{f estate where the Glliingham’s resides. And

of course Gillingham himself was aware of it.

Gillngham has deposed to a confirmatory affidavit in sﬁpport of the
application, in which he confirms under oath that he did not disclose

the fact of the raid to Basson or anyone elsa.

This seems improbable In light of his longstanding relationship with

certain of the applicants, as is confirmed by their attomeys of record,

<t
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which would suggest that he may well have passed on to employees

or directors of the first applicant the fact that his home was raided.

122.  In any event ! respectfully éubmit that the SIU did not disclose the raid

on Gillingham's premises to the media. %

Ad paragraph 47.2 thereof:

123, | deny that the suggested source of this information is far fetched.
Several SIU employses have gone under oath to describe the
meetings with the whistle blower who was the source of certain
electronic information. if necessary, the SIU has tendered to release
the identity of the source to a Judge in Chambers, in order that his

identity may be otherwise protected.

Ad paragraph 47.3 thereof:

124. | deny that it is likely to have been one or more members of the SiU
who are the source of the information in relation to the so-called

‘search and seizure operation’ as it is termed by Basson in his article,

annexure “FA18”,
125. It is equally improbable that members of the SIU would have told the

Mail & Guardian that they had executed a search and seizure

operation at first applicant's premises, knowing that this was not so

~ Y
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and that the SIU acquired certain electronic information from first

applicant’s premises pursuant to an agreement with first applicant.

I deny that the confidentiality agreement concluded with the SIU in
relation to' this exercise was breached: | refer above to Maian's
affidavit in which he confirms that the confidentiality agreement was in
no way breached. He sets out the trail of the electronic evidence and

significantly, states that the evidence has neither been released to the

SIU, nor o other persons.

Ad paragraph 47.4 thereof:

I respectfully submit that the SIU's answer to this contention does shift

127.
the balance of the above probability.

Ad paragraph 47.5 thereof-

128, [ deny that the allegations in the article of 30 January 2009 relate to
the precise investigation being conducted and questioning fo be
undertaken by the SIU as appears from paragraphs 2 and 3 of the
notices (Annexure “FA16.1 to 16.3” to Leshabane's affidavit).

129.  The article details information obtained from the annexed e-mail

correspondence but does not set out the nature of the investigation

being conducted by the SIU other than in the broadest terms.

A
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The notices forming annexure “FA16.1 to FA 16.3” were only ever

forwarded by the SIU to the attorneys of record for the applicants.

Ad-paragraph 47.7 thereof:

131.

132.

I again note that the applicants dispute the authenticity of the e-malls

in question and refer to my response in paragraphs 86 to 88 above.

| deny that the e-mail correspondence accompanied as annexures to
the Mail & Guardian article were sourced from any data obtained by
the SIU from Mr Gillingham's or Mr Agrizzi's computers. | refer to the
affidavits of Malan and Jordaan who confirm this. The only document
that was sourced from Gillingham's computer was the letter of
concern addressed to Dennis Bloem. As Jordaan explains, the e-mail
correspondence annexed to the Mail & Guardian article was only
located as a result of a search conducted by him under instruction
from Jacobs in the week after the article was published, in the

electronic information obtained from the source.

Ad paragraphs 49 to 49.4.3 thereof:

133.

The content of the letter addressed to the SIU is noted, The

applicants deny the contentions advanced in the various

N

subparagraphs. | have already addressed those issues.

=
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Ad paragraph 49.5.1 thereof:

134. | deny that section 4 of the Act was contravened by the SIU, as the
SIU did not furnish any information obtained during the course of its

Investigation into the applicant to the press.
Ad paragraph 49.5.2 thereof:

135. | deny that sections 5(3) or 6 of the Act were infringed, or that the

privacy rights of the first applicant were infringed by the SIU.
Ad paragraph 49.5.3 thereof:

136. | deny that sections 6(3)(f) of the SIU was ignored by the SIU.
Receipts were furnished to the applicant by Malan. Insofar as the First
Applicant requires a further receipt, a further recelpt will be has been
forwarded to the First Applicant by the SIU prior to the hearing of the

matter.

137. | have already addressed the data analysis process that is underway,
and that Malan has not yet completed his search or furnished the

information to the SIU.
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Malan confirms that he is not recovering all the data lost by Bosasa,
as a result of the alleged server crash in 2007 and that he is only
conducting a data search relating to specific documents that are
relevant to the terms of the section 5(2)(b} and (c) notices issued

during the SIU investigation, (at paragraph 24)

He also confirms that as a result of mirror imaging the Bosasz
servers, the search is conducted in respect of all the data on the
servers, and he is not yst in a position to determine what data is
irrelevant to the investigation and does-not fall within the section 5(2)
notices. He states that it is not possible to separate parts or

documents from a forensic image and preserve the integrity of the

relevant data. (at paragraph 26).

He further confirms that all of the data that he has access to on the

two forensic copies is also physically present on Bosasa's system,
and if need be they could undertake the same forensic exercise in
analysing their own data.  Accordingly, it Is not correct for them fo

complain that they do not have access to the data.(at paragraph 27)

However, in order that Bosasa may conduct a forensic process on the
data, without having to retrieve and re-image the data from the
Bosasa servers, Malan has undertaken to furish Bosasa with a copy
of the forensic discs in his possession, alternatively, to copy the

forensic disc onto a hard drive in their presence. (at paragraph 28)

) &ﬂﬂ
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142. The SIU hereby tenders to furnish a copy of the forensic disc on the
basls described above.
- Ad paragraph 50 thereof: =
143. The conclusion of the letter is noted.

Ad paragraph 52.1 thereof:

144,

1486,

146,

The SIU’s response contained in “FA28", is fo assure the applicants
that no information concerning their client’s business activities with the
Départment was leaked to the press. They also advise that they have
consistently declined to supply any information to the press despite

numerous requests.

I consequently deny that the SIU resorts to a strangely equivocal

response, rather it simply offers an assurance that no information has

been leaked to the media.

| refer to paragraphs 21 to 37 which address the facts relating to the

relevant electronic information In the possession of the SIU.

Ad paragraph 52.2 thereof:
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147. In terms of an agreement with the first applicant, the SiU obtained
electronic information by mirror imaging the data contained on hard

drives and servers on the first applicant's premises.

148. The SIU did not remove any books, documents or objects found on
the first applicant’s premises but downloaded the information as
aforesaid. A receipt was issued by Malan to applicants’

representative, Leon van Tonder, in respect of the aforesaid. The SiU

CO-167

has issued a further receipt annexed herete. — W W ‘

149. |have already addressed this issue at paragraphs 109 to 115 above.

Ad paragraph §2.3 thersof:

150. | have already addressed the question of an access to information

request in terms of PAIA.

Ad paragraph 52.4 thereof:

151. ldeny that Faiek Davids, the acting projects diractor of the SIU, is not

involved in the investigation underway.

Ad paragraph 53 thersof:
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162. | deny that the SIU's response establishes or c;anfirm's the first
applicant's contention that the SIU is abusing the powers bestowed
upon it in terms of the SIU Act, or that the investigation curreritly
underway is not bona fids. | have already addressed the basis for the
investigation. It is simply not the case that the investigation has been
undertaken “at the behest of one or more parties playing out an
agenda intended to discredit the first a,bpiicant in the eyes of the \}
media and the public generally, utilising the powers bestowed upon

the SiU as their instrument to do so.”

Ad paragraph 54.1 thereof:

183. | have already addressed in paragraphs 21 to 37 the denial by the

SlU that one or more of its members is the source of the leak of the

information to the media.

Ad paragraph 54.2 thereof:

164. | have already denied that the article of 30 January 2009 deals with
precisely the same issues as those referred to the in the notices

served on the second fo fifth applicants, annexure “FA16" hereto.

Ad paragraph 54.3 thereof:

F & %gy
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" As | have explained above, the source furnished certain slectronic

information to the SIU. The SIU has no powers or cbligations in terms

of the SIU Act to address or investigate whether the source offering
the information to the SIU is the source of the leaks to the media.
Furthermore, the integrity of the information furnished to the SIU by
he source is questionable. As | have explained above, the
respondent is not in a position to disclose the identity of the source of

the leak to the first applicant, but has undertaken to do so to a Judge

in Chambers.

Ad paragraph 54.4 thereof:

l*%\ 156.

\

158,

| again deny the first applicant’s contention that the inference is to be
drawn that the SIU has itseif leaked the information to the media, or
alternatively has been supine in permitting such conduct bearing in

mind its rights, powers and obligations in terms of the SIU Act.

I deny too that the SIU has acquiesced to the leaking of information to
the media, or acquiesced with the media itself in permitting the

continued publication of the information.

As | mentioned above, with the exception of the letter addressed to
Dennis Bloem, the e-mail correspondence published by the Mail &
Guardian had not been retrieved or accessed by the SIU prior to its

publication. Although the e-mail correspondence, if authentic, may be

ai &, Iy
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relevant to the investigation, it is not the primary evidence upon which
A e N T e e,

189. [ deny that the SIU has permitted any leaks of information to the /

media in relation to its investigation. The e-mail correspondence was

the investigation is based.

Ad paragraph 54.5 thereof:

published by the Mail & Guardian prior the SIU retrieving such

correspondence.

160. | also deny the further contentions advanced in this paragraph.

Ad paragraph 54.6 thereof:

161. | have no knowledge of the alleged coincidence in respect of the
timing of the publication of Basson’s allegations' to coincide with the
award of the department's tender HK14/2008 published in the
Government Gazetie on 16 January 2008. | note that the applicants
contend that the information published by Bas#on was “speculative
half truths published out of context in the media”. It is not apparent
ﬁow such information that is alleged to be “speculative half truths” can

in‘any way impact on the integrity of the SIU investigation.

Ad paragraph 54.7 thereof:
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162. | again deny that the source of the leaked information is the SIU,
particularly as such information obtained from first appiicant's
computer's servers In early December 2008 has not yet been given to

the SIU by Malan, and only Malén has had access to such

information.

&4

Ad paragraphs 54.8 to 54.10 thereof:

. 163. | have already addressed the SIU’s compliance with section 6(3)(f) of

the SIU Act. That will, however, be addressed in legal argument, to

the extent necessary.

Ad paragraph 54.11 thereof:

164. | have already addressed the application of the PAIA. | deny that
requiring the first applicant to comply with PAIA evidences the SIU's

lack of bona fide’s in relation to the investigation in question.

Ad paragraph 54.12 thereof:

165. | have already addressed the issue of return of data. | deny that the
SlU's statement evidences any lack of bona fide’s in dealing with the

first applicant and its investigation into the first applicant. | have also
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already addressed the knowledge of the author of the letter of the

investigation above.

Ad paragraph 54.13 thereof:

166. Malan has not completed his analysis, he anticipates that it -will be

completed within a month.

167. | have already addressed and refuted the possible consequences of
the lack of availability of the electronic data by the SIU's tendering of a

copy of the forensic disk.

168. I deny that this ‘results in an abuse of the SIU's powers in terms of the

Act”.

Ad paragraph 54.14 thereof:

169. | deny that the' Sl is conducting a fishing expedition.

170. i refer to Malan's supporting affidavit in which he confirms that he is
only conducting a data search reiating to specific documents that gre

relevant to the terms of the section 5(2)(b) and (c) notices issued

during the SIU investigation.

Ad paragraph 56 thereof:
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171. [ again deny that the SIU has publicly disseminated any information
obtained during its investigation into the first applicant’s dealing with
the department to the media or to anyone else. I also deny that the

SIU has'in any way permitted the ongoing leaking of such information.

Ad paragraph 57 thereof:
172.  The contents of the paragraph are noted.

Ad paragraph 58 thereof:

173. The contents of this paragraph are noted. The SIU unequivocally

denies that it has tipped off the medla about details of its investigation.

Ad paragraph 58 (including 59.1 and 59.2) thereof:

174. | again deny the allegation that the leaks of the information ouflined in
Leshabane's affidavit came from within the SIU or that the SIU has in
any manner rendered Itself culpable by acquiescing with such conduct
by a known source. I deny the conteﬁtions advanced in the various

subparagraphs which are made in support of the averment that the
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'SIU has abused its powers fo investigate the applicants, which too is

denied.

Ad paragraph 59.3 thereof:

175.

176.

-

| deny that the SIU has abused its powers or that it has denied the
applicants the right to apply for the hearings of the potential special
tribunal to be held behind closed doors in accordance with section
10(2} of the SIU Act, should the tribunal be satisfied that it will be in
the interest of justice to do so, and find that there is a likslihood that

harm may ensue to any person as a result of the proceedings being

open.

| deny that the majority of the information and aliegations that would
form part of such a special tribunal, were it to be held, are in the pubiic
domain. | have already stated that the SIU has not yet established the
authenticity of the e-mails published by the Mail & Guardian and only
acquired access fo those e-mails after publication. The significant

evidence and allegations to be relied upon by the SIU are not in the

public dornain.

Ad paragraph 60 thereof:

177.

For the reasons advanced above, | deny the contentions advanced in

this paragraph. ( '
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Ad paragraph 61 thereof:

178. | deny that the information leaked was obtained as a result of the
SIU's investigation of the applicants. | further deny that the SIU has
acquiesced in such conduct, or in any way abused the powers

afforded to the SIU by the SIU Act.

Ad paragraph 62 thereof:

178. | again deny that the SIU's conduct in lts investigation constitutes an

-abuse of power, in that it failed to comply with section 3(f) of the SIU

Act.
Ad paragraphs 64 to 66 thereof:

180.  The terms of referencs of the data retrieval process were agréed to by
the first applicant and the respondent. The respondents were aware
that Malan, employed by Facts Consulting (Pty) Ltd would be
conducting the data imaging process. The first applicant consented to
such a process as is apparent from FA 17.1 to FA 17.3 annexed to
Leshabane's affidavit. The first applicant was also aware that Malan
would be responsible for the data retrieval, As only Malan would have

the data within his possession, it is logical that he would on behaif of

= Xd
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the SIU issue a receipt for the iwo forensic copies of each drive that

was made.

181.  The further receipt is annexed as CO3.

-
.

Ad paragraphs 67 fo 68 thereof:

182. | reiterate that there is as yet no outcome to the data retrieval process

conducted at first applicant's premises.

Ad paragraph 70 thereof:

183. | have already answered these paragraphs.

Ad paragraphs 71 to 77 thereof:

184.  Thave already addressed the basis for the SIU's investigation, and the
tender in respect of the applicants requesting access to infarmation in
terms of PAIA. [ deny that the SIU’s failure to furnish the complaint in

any way leads to the conclusion that the SIU’s investigation is not

bona fide.
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Ad paragraph 78 thereof:

185. | deny that the applicants have established, even on a prima facie
basis, any infringement of their constitutional right to privacy or a fair
hearing, as well as the related rights contained in sections 5(3),
B6(2)(c) and 10(2) of the SIU Act. The SIU was not responsible for the
leak to the Mail & Guardian and each of the contentions concerning
the rights contained in the Act have already been addressed.

186. | again deny that the SIU has abused their powers.

187. | refer to the tender made by the SIU in paragraph 55 hereof,

188. I deny that the relief sought is competent.

Ad paragraph 79 thereof:

189.  The first applicant has not sought to interdict the SIU from the alleged
feaking, but has rather sought to interdict the investigation as a whole.

190.  The SiU has not conducted itself in the manner complained of by the

applicant's. The alleged harm already experienced by the first

applicant is not as a result of any conduct on the part of the SIU.




191.

192,

193.

194.

195.

198.

64

The SIU has denied any leaks and hereby undertakes to continue
enforcing its confidentiality requirements in respect of such

information.

In any event, the applicants make out no case in respect of future

harm.

In the event that the investigation into the first applicant results in
further irreparable harm to its reputation, that will be its own doing and

based oﬁ the evidence obtained during the investigation.

The SIU is not responsible for any harm caused to the first applicant
due o the alleged violation of its constitutional rights by “being unfairly
and unjustly placed on trial by the media as a resuft of false or

misleading reports about the investigation being published”,

The applicant has a range of remedies available to it to address the

alleged trial by the media, such as an actior: for damages.

The reports published have not been about the investigation itself, but
rather about e-mail correspondence that may be relevant to the
investigation. Prior to their publication, the emails were not being

utilised as evidence by the SIU, as they were not yet aware of their

existence.
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Ad paragraph 80 thereof;

197. | deny that the balance of convenience favours granting the interim

interdict.

4
198. The SIU has not leaked information to the media, nor has it
acquiesced with such conduct. The applicants have made out no

case in respect of future harm.

199. The prejudice to the public if the SIU is required to indefinitely

postpone the continuation of its investigation is immense:

The investigation concerns serious procurement iregularities. It has
produced evidence that suggests strong indications of irregularity pertalning o

the procurement processes under consideration;

The investigation concerns corruption and maladministration, which are
inconsistent with the rule of law and the fundamenta.! values of the

Constitution. The public interest requires that these issues are properly and

speedily addressed in order that the primary object of the Act is met, namely

to enable the State to recover money it had Iost as a result of unlawful or

corrupt action by its employees or other persons.

It is anticipated that the SIU will have finalise the investigation shortly and

will report to the President within the next three months.
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200. The SIU has tendered fo Postpone the formal questioning of the

second to fifth applicants pending the determination of an application

for access to information to be submitted under PAIA.

Ad paragraphs 81 to 84 thereof:

201. | deny that this application ought to be dealt with on an urgent basis,

The urgency is entirely self created:

The notices to attend the formal questioning were served on the applicants

on or about 29 October 2008; and

the questioning sessions were initially set down for hearing on 14

November 2008; and

the questioning sessions were postponed a day or so befors 14 November
2008, at the behest of the applicants, to great wasted expense of the Unit,

who had to pay the neutral counsel that would have acted as presiding officer
in the questioning process;

“r

a new date was agreed with the applicants (i.e. 24 and 26 March 2009)
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The applicants had ampie time to bring this appiication, which would not

have necessitated any urgent application proceedings. The fact that the

applicants elected to wait until March 2009 to bring the application was a

voluntary decision on their part.

Furthermore, if one has regard to paragraph 25 in which the applicant's
say that they suspected the SIU of leaking info with the first newspaper report

of 22 February 2008, they have waited some 12 months to bring the

application.

THE AFFIDAVIT OF PATRICK CONNELL GILLINGHAM

Ad paragraph 3

202. | have already taken issue with the contents of paragraph 47.1 in

Leshabane's affidavit.

203. | note that Gillingham does not confim the correctness of the

averment that the emall correspondence published by the Mail and

Guardian is not authentic.

Conclusion

204. A number of confirmatory affidavits are required to confirm certain

averments in this affidavit and the affidavits of Malan and Jordaan.

~F
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Because of the time po.nstraints in filing these affidavits and the fact
th;at many of the deponents are in various parts of the country, some
of the affidavits filed are unsigned or faxed copies, and other
confirmatory affidavits will be filed in due course. The original signed

copies will be made available prior to the hearing of the matter.

205. | accordingly pray that the application is dismissed with costs,

including the costs of two counsal.

,, //3 // ,
77 L AR

CLINTON OELLERMANN

| certify that;

1. the deponent acknowledged to me that:
1.1 hefshe knows and understands the contents of this declaration;
1.2 hefshe has no objection to taking the prescribed oath:;

1.3  hefshe considers the prescribed oath to be binding on his/her

conscience;
2. the deponent thereafter yttered the words, “I swear that the contents of
this declaration are true, so help me God™;
3| the deponent éigned this deciaration in my presence at the address set
ouf hereunder on this day of MARCH 2009 .

lllll ll.l'III. "_"_‘-‘ / f MJ
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DEPARTMENT: CORRECTIONAL SERVICES

REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

Privata bag X138, Preloria, 0001, Tel. 012 - 307 - 2883, Facsimile 012 - 323 8784
124 Church Siraet, Payntons Building (Wes), , Praloria

ENQ: Mz, J Schreiner
TEL: 012 307 2602
DATE: 30 May 2005

The Honourable Minister of Justice and Canstitutional Davelopment
Ms B.S. MBANDLA '

Bear Colleague
MOTIVATION FOR AN EXTENSION 7O THE INVESTIGATION MANDATE/PERIOD OF
THE SPECIAL INVESTIGATING UNIT, AS AUTHORISED BY PROCLAMATION R.66 OF
08 AUGUST 2002

| refer to the abovementioned matter,

At the request and instance of my department, the Speciaf Investigating Unit ("SIU™ is In
the pracess of applying far a further extension to its terms of reference, as stipulated in
Praclamation R.66 of 08 August 2002 (as amended).

1of4
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(8] NSION TO THE INVESTIGATION MANDATE/PERIOD OF

MOTIVATION FOR AN EXTE H TIGA
THE SPECIAL INVESTIGATING UNIT, AS AUTHORISED BY PROCLAMATION R.66 OF
8 AUGUST 2002

0

The relsvant terms of refersnce targetsd the period between January 1988 and the date of
publication of the Proclamation, which was 8 August 2002. Subsequent to the said
publication and during the course of the SIU's investigation, i discoverad improper conduct
faling within the ambit of the matters mentioned in the Schedule to Praclamation R.66 of
2002, which had ocecurred and was stil occumring after 8 August 2002, in the result, the
period of investigation was extended by:

1, Praclamation R.55 of 18 July 2003; and

2. Proclamation R.58 of 19 November 2004,

thus mandating the SIU to investigate the matters mentioned In the Schedule to
Proclamation R.66 of 2002 between January 1988 and 19 Navember 2004,

Further hereto, the Scheduls of Proclamation R.66 of 2003 was extended by Proclamation
R.69 of 18 November 2004, to nclude Fraud committed by employees of the Department to
the detriment of the Department.

Subseguent fo the sald publications and during the course of the SIU's investigation, it
discovered mproper conduct falling within the ambit of the matters mentionad in the
Schedules to Proclamation R.85 of 2002 and Proclamation R.58 of 2004, which had
ocaurred and was stlll occurring aftsr 19 November 2004. In the result, my department
requested the SIU to do the necessary to have the perod of its investigation again
extended o authorise its further investigations,

A #
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MOTIVATION FOR AN EXTENSION TO THE INVESTIGATION MANDATE/PERIOD OF
e e I AT SATERSION TO THE INVESTIGATION MANDATE/PERIOD OF
THE SPECIAL INVESTIGATING UNIT. AS AUTHORISED BY PROCLAMATION R.86 OF

08 AUGUST 200

I confirm that the SIU has prepared a draft motivation requesting an amendment to
Preclamation R.66 of 2002, which was submitted to my department for scrutiny and we

concur with its content.

In view of the aforegoing, | appeal to you as a matier of urgency ta facilitate the issulng of a
praciamation by the President, authorising the SIU to investigata the further matters, fo
exposa the impropriety and the individuals Involved in It, and to take the necessary steps to

recaver the losses.

I reacord my full and unconditional support for such an Investigation In the natfonal Interast
and my department has already expressed its willlngness to do averything within Its power
to bolster up the SiU's capacity to undertake such an Investigation,

The discuasion_s that | have had with Willle Hofmeyer have included a scheme for & real and
effeclive skills transfer from the SIU to officials in my departmsnt to take place, thereby
capacitating the departmaent to address futurg Impropriety of this nature at g very early

stage.

I shall ba pleased to discuss any concems you may have regarding this matter.

3oia
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MOTIVATION FOR AN EXTENTION TO THE INVESTIGATION
MANDATE/PERIOD OF THE SPECIAL INVESTIGATING UNIT, AS
AUTHORSED BY PROCLAMATION R.86 OF 08 AUGUST 2002

! take this opportunity to thank you In advance for your urgent co-aperation.

Yours faithfully

AL
/ Mp/BYVN BALFOUR
wih ER OF CORRECTIONAL SERVICES

4ot
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Date 07 November 2008

SPECYAL INVESTIGATING UNIT Your raf

g Our ref &rian Blebuydk/gmy/T18901
Fax No, (D12) B43-8813 Ofvect dief (27 21) 523,020
Attention: MR. 3 WELLS Diract fax  086~573-59%53

MR, C. OELLERMANN sandrafressefeversheds.co.on
Oocex 7 Sandlon Squere
By Fax .
CONFIDENTIALTTY CAUTION
ressed and contains information that

responsible for dativering the document to the Intended seet you are hereby notifled thas any dizsemination,
distribistion or eopying of this document: iy strictly prohljtad, If You have receiver this document I error, pleasa notify s
mmediately by tetephone and rstam the eriginal documant te us at the abave address at our cost,

Deay Skry .

RE:; NOTICES TO APPEAR BEFORE THE SPECIAL INVESTIGATIN G UNIT

We refer to the above Notices served on the writer In respei:t of Mr Gavip Watson, mr
Angelo Agrizzi, Mr Andries van Tonder and Mr Frans Vastar, for whom we act and on whozeg

behalf we accapt such potices,

Please note that we do not act far Mr Willlam Danle! Mansel, nor do we accept service of
the Naticz on his behalf. In this regard, mr Maneell Is not an employes of elther Bosasa
Oparations (Pty) Ld ("Bosasa") or Sondelo IT (Pty} Ltd ("Sondola™), and as such, it will be
fiecassary for you to make arrangements to serve your ngtice on him personally.

On Thursday the 6™ instant we consulted with our cilents in order ta obtain Instructions In
anticipation of thejr interrcgation on Friday 14 November zg0a. In consuiting with our

clients, it became apparent to us that the matters in fssue In respsct of which you Intend
ars at first blush from the questions

n referred to In your Notices, It was aiso apparent to us that for us to
property fulfit our mandate to our clients, it will be nacessary for us to have regard to more
documentation than that referred to by you in your Natices, and that it is going to taka us
some time In order to properly prepare oursalves in order to place oursejves in o pasition to
properly and adequately advise our cllents In regard thereto, -

22 Fredman Drive Routledgay Incorporates trading ns Routledge Modise and Evarshods LLp
Sar:dtnna Johannesburg are hoth memberg of Evarsheds International Limited
# O Box 78333
Sandbon City 2148 :m:ﬁ:";TE%imm?“uwmwm repkinlon aumier DSI0I0LT
Tei  +27 11 288 6000 R0 Lo J:"mmammmwmmmmu
fax 427 11 286 5901 Www.eversheds.co.za
e T e e '?wﬂ@.%mgmmm.ﬁm‘%mwﬁ@mﬂmy fg“
mhfmm lllimﬂlilll:'t. ﬂllllsll:ﬂ. ll:lll‘l.h.-= vy lﬂmm Jllh.l Lty Hodie, mnmﬁm m-;mmmga
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!mmnn:mtmm Richand Auty, Catnds Fyria, Tren fouria, Katsie

Piekie Hrausy, Cdern Kupern,
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1t appears further that the relationship between the Gillingham fami

clleats whom we represent goes back In ime a lot further than we initlally understocd the
position to be, and It is accordingly nececsary for us to fully Inves
matter to enable us to prepare oyr clients for your Intendead questioning,

Morgover, the obtyining of the documentation referred to by you In your Notices is proving
mare challengtng than Initlally anticipated. In this regard we annex hereto the Bosasa IT
disaster Log dated 8 November 2007 fram which it Is apparent that Bosasa's server crashed
on that date with a catastvophic loss of Information. This I confirmed by tha note from
Dstacentrfx (Pty) Ltd dated 9 November 2007 which is also attached. In the light of the
aforegoing, we have advised our cllents that in order to comply with your Notices, It js
necessary for them to employ tha services of an appropriate expert in an endeavour to
retrieve the information which has been lost from our clients' servar, You will appreciate

that this exarcise will take some time to complete,

Having regard to the aforegoing, It Is clear to us that our clients intended questioning on 14
November 2008 cannot Proceed on that date as further time Is required both to prepars our
cllenta far such exam Ination and to obtain further relevant documentation which s not

currently avallable,

We accordingly request that oy clients' interrogation be postponed Lo a mutiaily
convenlent date in Jan uary or February 2009 (but not 26 to 29 Jan uary 2009 as the writer
already has an existing commitment on those days)} and we would appreciate your responss

to this request as a matter of urgancy.

With regard to the documentation which s currently avallable, we nota that your notices by
and large refer to a request for documents over the perlod 1 August 2004 and 28 November
2007, Our clients are amenable to furnish 1o You, on ar before 14 November 2008, with
coples of those documents referred to in the Notlcas which ara currently In their possession,
and which accord with the period referted to above, This will put Yol in a position to
commence consldering such documentation prior to the Interrogation of cur clients in
January or February 2p09, Having sald this, and subject to our cijents belng granted the
requested postponemant of the interrogation, our cllents wil also make avallable to you
furthar relevant documentation outslde of the pariod 1 August 2004 to 28 November 2007

prior to thelr Interrogation in January/February 2009,
Kindly acknowledge fecelpt hereof and confirm that given the circumstances you ara
amenable to postponing eur clients* Interrogation as suggested, and in this regerd, you are
requested to talephone the writer on his cell phone 082 567 9074, as he will be in Cape
Town on the 10 and 11 November 2008, ,

We look forward to your résponse as a matter of urgency,

Yours falthfully

e

BRIAN BIEBUYCK

For ROUTLEDGE MODISE
% EVERSHEDS
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Did Belfour lie about Mti?

Date: 25/04/2007
Adriaan Basson and Carien du Plassis, Beeld

Johannesburg - Did Naconde Balfour and his deputy mislead the country about
invastigations into Linda Mti, the former national prisons commissioner?

This question was being asked after the Public Service Commission{PSC) and the
special Investigating unit (SIU) indicated that they had not yet decided about Mi's guilt.

In contrast, Balfour, minister of correctionzl services, issued a statement on March 2,
saying Mti was "cleared” by both these bodies.

Lorelta Jacobus, Balfaur's deputy, in February told Pariiament during an information
session: "Nothing in the PSC report implicated the commissioner.”

Tenders worth billions

The investigations followed after Beeld and Die Burger revealed the relationship
between Mti and the Bosasa group of companies.

Companies in the Bosasa group received tenders worth R1.87bn from the departmentof -
correctional services over two years,

Mii resigned in November last year - eight months before his contract with the DCS
would have expired.

He was then appuinted as sacurity chief for the local organising committoe for the 2010

Woild Cup soceer tournament. ;

The PSC was Investigating 2 possible conflict of interest and the SIU was looking &t the
process followed duwring the allocation of the Bosasa tenders.

The March 2 statement read: “"He {Balfour) further also announced that the investigation
by the Public Service Commission and the Special Investigation Unit on the alleged
tender irregularities related to the Sondolo IT tender for the installation of the bio-metric
security system in correctional centres, has respactively clearad the former
commissioner, Linda M of any confiict of Interest, unethicai or criminal conduct.”

Sondolo [T, a company in the Bosasa group, was aliocated the R237m contract to install
access control systems at 66 prisons countrywide.

According to Humphrey Ramafoko, a spok'espersnn far the PSC, they had given Balfour
only a preliminary report, as fusther investigation was required by the SIU.

T s
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The PSC was waiting for a final answer from the SIU before a final report would be
compiled for Baifour's attention. '

"The PSC has not made any findings relating to Mr Mt at this stage,” Ramafoko said.

According to Faiek Davids, dapu'iy chief of the SIU, they had "at no stage launched any

formal or informal investigation” info M.

"Tha S|U did however lock at certain DCS ienders to determine If the process and
awarding (of tenders) were regular. We are still busy with this process.p> "But at this
stage there are no allegations of specific criminal or unethical behaviour that we
investigate against any specific parson, official of company.”

At the end of last year, Besld and Die Burger revealed that Bosasa had written large
parts of the tender document for tha access control system, even before the tender was

officiallly advertised.

Luphumzo Kebenl, Balfour's spokesperson, feiied ta react to Beeld's enquirles after
initiafly saying these wera "easy questions".

- Beedld

Scandal rocks prison services
16/11/2006 07:37 - (SA)

Adriaar Basson and Carien du Plessis, Besid

Johannesburg ~ A company with links to Commissicner Linda Mti, the outgoing prisons
chief, wrote a large part of a multi-million rand security tender that was subsaquently
awarded to them by the Department of Correctional Services (DCS).

Sendelo IT, an "unknown player” in the IT sector which is part of the Bosasa group of
companies, was [ast year awarded one of the biggest contracts in the history of this

sector (R237 million) for the installation and maintenance of modem aceess control
systems at 66 prisons countrywide.

An investigation by Bee!d ravealed:

- Employees of the Bosasa group knew of the tender long before it was advertised on
February 4 2005;

- Large parts of the tendar's technical specifications were written on Bosasa computers
in December 2004;

=t
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- Mti and Gavin Watson, CEO of Bosasa, have a long-standing refationship since the
16808 whan Mti was the commander of Mihonto waSizwe (MK}, tha ANC's armed wing,
and later became chairperson of the ANC in the Eastern Cape, and

- Patrick Glilingham, financial chief of the DCS, is regularly seen at Bosasa's office in
Krugersdorp.

Denial

The DCS iast night denied that any "extemal organisation” participated in the
compltation of the tender document.

DCS spakesperson Manelisf Wolela said a technical committee drew up the tender
specifications by "improving old specifications” with the "fatest technalogy".

Bosasa group spokesperson Papa Leshabane, denied that his group "consults” with
clients on ofiicial tender documents or that Bosasa recsived special freatment by the

- DCS. »

About Gillingham's visits to Bosasa, Leshabane said a number of senior DCS and
govemment officials have visited Bosasa "from time to time". The DCS officials did
allegedly visit Bosasa to inspect the premises and receive “training and development

sessions”.

According to Walela, Gillingham last visited Bosasa in Qctober 2004 as partofa
"delegation” who received training for the implementation of a catering system,

According to Beeld's sources Bosasa already knew at the end of 2004 that a tender for
aceess control systems was going to be advertised by the DCS in the new year.

But the most damning preof of wangling on a high level between the DCS and Bosasa,
prior to the tender being advertised, is a 28-page document in Beeld's possession
containing fechnical specifications for the tender. .

A farensic investigation was done Into this document, which showed that the document
was created on December 17 2004 on a Bosasa computer - almost twe months before
the fender was officially advertised.

Mti rasigned last week

Professor Basle von Solms, head of the University of Johannesburg's academy for
information technology, compared the Bosasa document with the official tender
specifications and found that almost 33% of the technical specifications for the tender
were “efther taken directly (word for word) or agreed very closely” with the Bosasa
document. The awarding of this and other multi-million rand tenders by the DCS 1o
Bossasa companies has been in the news since Beeld revealed Mii's link to Bosasa six

months ago.




Apait from his relationship of many years' standing with Watson, the prisons chief is also
a director of a private company - Liancrah Investment Consuitancy - which was
ragisterad for him by Tony Perry, Bosasa's group secretary. '

According to the registrar of companies' records Lianorgh is In the process of E;eing
deregisterad. . '

The special investigative unit {the Cobras) recently launched an Investigation into the
awarding of the Bosasa-tenders and others confracts by the DCS.

Mti's resignation was last week accepted by cabinet.
Miti has always denied any impropriety.
- Beeld

#.
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ROUTLEDGE MODISE

In agtoclation with

& EVERSHEDS

DEPUTY HEAD SPECYAL INVESTIGATING UNIT Date 03 September 2008
Yourref  Falal Davids
Urgent attention: Mr Falek Davids Ourrsf  Bpjan Blebuyck/gm/T15091
Direct dial (27 11) 5235027
Diretfax  DBG-674-375),
brianblabuyck@evershads.co.za
Docex 7 Sandton Square

By fax 012 843 0113
CONFIDERTIALYITY CAUYSON
This document Iz intend=d only for the use of the individual or antity to which it Is addressed and contalns Informatian that
I priviteged and confidentral, If the reader of thig tocument i3 not the Intended recipient, or the ampioyee or agent
responstble for dsilvering the document 0 the Intended reciplent, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
d distribustion or mpvlnﬁoorthl: document Is strictly prohtbloed, H you hava recelvar this document In
. immediataly by talzphone snd return the origine) dga:mm. b0 un at the above eddress st our cosk.

ARTICLE PUBLISHED IN THE MAIL B GUARDIAN NEWSPAPER oOpN FRIDAY

20 AUGUST 2008,

We address you at the instance of our client Bosssa Operations (Pty) Litd ("Bosasa") in
previously wrj

respact of whom we have v written to you iIn relation to articles published i tha
Malt & Guardian Newspaper under the avthorzhip of Mr Adrlaan Basson,

Services procurement dlivision was adhering to its Procurement polley, In a clear raference
to our client, the Mal| & Guardian has again on the 2% August 2008 published a statament
with tha effect that the SIU are currantly Involved In a fraud investigation pertalning, inter

In this regard we attach hereto a copy of the articie which appearad I the Mail & Guardian
on 29 August 2008 and refer You to the sixth paragraph thereof wherein it Is stateg thate

e "In 2001 President Thabo Mpei appointed Mt head of prisons, & position he vacatad
eatly and under a cloud in 2008 after baing linksd o companies whosa multimitiion-

22 Fredman Driva Ruittiedges Incorparated trading as Rowtledye Moetise and Eversheds L1p
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Sondior, 248 v.nﬁnm"iui-m: ,,,:'{,"W SiFaiacsd I ERglond snd Wiales, reywirwon cember OCIONLES
Teb 27 11 286 Ggon T smecivtien Sou ner BIPrOwrelip ae say racish shadng of stipatians
Fax  +27 11 288 5903 Wwiv.averzheds,co.za
l'lmu". 'Ml?!lhlv? Pury Che g'm wm%:.m' ﬁmm Antyrs ¢ m"ﬁ"mm d:mmﬂlh m:';ﬁ..mu'h MI":
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Sairuntnbane, Leboging e Siphd
Eity Chy Maks Qpaise, MarkCatts, ik Disivd, mnmmm Hajudy,
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15238161 Toutledge MODISE Reutladge Inc

2
rand confracts with the department of correctional services form part of a fraud
investigation by the Spectal In vastigation Unft®,

These ongalng and substantiated allegations on the part of the Mall & Guardian contlnue to
cause harm to our client in_Its day to day commercial activities. As such, our cllent has

requested us to seek an urgent fneating with you to discuss thege ongalng allegations, and
to discuss with you our client's stated offer of cooperation In relation o whatever

To thls end, you pieasa ba goaod enaugh to advisa the writer as to when and where |t would
be convenlent to maet to disctss these mattars with curselves and our cilant,

We await your response at your earlies_t convenlence,

Yours fajthfully
g
ck

Brian Blabuy
l; for ROUTLEDGE MODISE
b EVERSHEDS
,."

ni\brian blebuycid\bosaza\iL 5591~ mall & 9uardimkmmpondenne\faxes\daputv head spacial Investigating ynit 03
0% 08.dsc
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*h* FAY TH REDORE #4a
B et e e e e e ek e o o e B
TRANGMEIBSION OK
JOB RO. 983
DESTINATION ADDRESS 300014#90224247554
PSWD/ SUBADDRESS
DESTIRATION ID ’ .
ST. TIME 1B/709 14:21
USAGE T | 01 15
PGS. i q
REBULT OK
NS\ rautiadge MODISE Routladge Inc 12:00:046  03-09-2008 1/3
n associatfon with
_ % EVERSHEDS
DEPUYY HEAD SPECIAL INVESTIBATING UNIT Dare 03 September 2008
Yoursef  palels Davids
Urgent attention? Mr Fajek Davids turest  Brian Blebuyck/gm/I15891
Ditectelal (27 11) 523-5027
Oirectfox 088-674-2751
briantiabuyek@avarshads,co,zn
Docex 7 Sandton Square
By fax 012 843 0113
CONFIDENTTALTTY CAUTION
Thiz docoment s Intendag onfy for the uze of the Individual ar entity o which 1 Is addressed and Gontaing Information that
& peivileged and confidentisl, 3f the mader of thie documiane It not tha Intendad reciplent, or the amp) or agent
rasponsible for degvarny the docurnent to the Intended eaciplent, you are hetaby aotified thay any dissemination,
distribution or copylng of this documant Is strictly prohbiked, [f you hava recalved this docuptant tn &uTar, pisase notsy us
Immediately by telephonz and refum the origlnel doctrnent to us at the above address at pur cast,
. Dear Sir
i ARTICLE PUBLISHED IN THE MAIL & GUARDIAN NEWSPAPER DN FRIDAY
o 28 AUGUST 2008,

We addrass you at the instance of aur eflent Bosasa Operations (PLy) Ltd ("Basasa®) in
regpect of whom we have praviousty writtan to vau in relation to articlas published In the
Mall & Guardian Newspaper under tha authorship of Mr Adrisan Basgon,

Pespite yaur ativicas ag contalned in your jetter of 13 March 2608 that the s was nok
trgeting any spacific COmPRny I s audit as to ascartain If the Deparpent of Correctional

Sarvicas procurement diviston was adhering o its procurament policy, In & clear referancs
to our cllent, the Majl & Guardlen has sgain on the 28 August 2008 published i statement

with the efect that the S1U are eurrently Involved In a fraud Investipation pertaining, fnter
lia, Into our cllent, 4 o

In this regard we attach Herete a copy of the article which appeared in the Mall & Guardian
0n 22 August 2008 ehd refay Yau to the sixth parsgraph theraof whereln 1t is skated that

It 2601 Precident Thaba Mbekf appointed M) heag of prisons, a porlﬂén fie vacated
carly and under & cloud fn 2008 after being linkad to companies wiose multimiifan-
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IN THE HIGH COURT OF SOUTH AFRICA
(NORTH GAUTENG, HIGH COURT)

In the matter between:

BOSASA OPERATIONS (PTY) LTD
AGRIZZ], ANGELO

VAN TONDER, ANDRIES JOHANNES
VORSTER, FRANS HENDRIK STEYN
WATSON, GAVIN JOSEPH

And

SPECIAL INVESTIGATING UNIT

CASE NO: 11068/09

First Applicant

Second Applicant

Third Applicant

Fourth Applicant

Fifth Applicant

Respondent

CONFIRMATORY AFFIDAVIT

|, the undersigned,

JEROME WELLS

do hereby make oath and state:

kp

5
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| am employed as a Senior Manager Legal at the Special Investigations

Unit (“SIUY.

The contents of this affidavit are within my personal knowledge and are

true and correct.

I have read the affidavit of Jacques Malan and confirm the correctness of

the contents of paragraph 10 thereof.

| have read paragraph 116 and 117 of the affidavit of Clinton Qellermann
and confirm that | am subject to the confidentiality requirements of the
SIU. I did not disclose the fact of the Gillingham search and seizure to

Basson or to anyone ealse.

{-‘g\- @»w
EEY%OME WELLS

| certify that:

1.

the deponent acknowledged to me that:
1.1 he/she knows and understands the contents of this declaration;
1.2 he/she has no objection to taking the prescribed oath;

1.3 helshe considers the presciibed oath to be binding on his/her

L
77
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2. the deponent thereafter uttered the words, *| swear that the contents of
this declaration are true, so help me God™:

3 the deponent signed this declaration in my presence at the address set
out hereunder on this  jOY  day of MARCH 2009 .

sfsasvsinanan LALRL L LT TT T Ty P Ty

COMMISSIONER OF OATHS

7IONA JANE GORDON - TURNER

Designation and Area PRACTISING ADVOGATE
Full Names 5€ KEEROM STREET
Street Address CAPE TOWN
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Postal

Tl:ae Stata Attorney address/Posadres
Die Staatsprokursur Private Bag
iGgweta likaRhulumente Privaatsak X 9001
w ) , CAPE TOWN :
4™ FLOOR / 4°® VERDIEPING KAAPSTAD |
22 Long Street 8000 !
Langstraat 22 TEL (021) 441- 9200 i
gggf TOWN/KAAPSTAD FAX (021} 421-9364 ’
Docax: 158
My Refily Verwilsalathiso sam: Your RefiJ Verw/lzaiathiso sakho
0729/09/P10 Bobby Walser
10 March 2009
FAX: (012) 843 0113
Corporute Lawyer

Special Investigating Unit
74 Watermeyer Street
MEYERS PARK

0184

m BOSASA OPERATIONS (PTY) LTD & O 'HERS / SPECIAL INVESTIGATING UNIT i

Please tind attached a copy of a self-explanat¢ ry correspondence from the Applicants’
attorneys for your urgent attention and further instructions.

Mr Qellermann has just advised the writer tha: he is on his way to the Commissianer of Oaths

CC: MrBotes
State Attorney Pretoria

Fax; 086 629 1077
CC:  Adv A Albertus (3C)
Fax: (021) 424 7554 > @

CC:  Adv M O7Sullivan
Fax: (021) 426 1612
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ROUTLEDGE MODIE

Q;ZRWERSHEDS Jjw/;‘f e

Hs

THE STATE ATTORNEY Data 10 March 2009
. Your ref  (3729/09/P10
FAX NUMBER: 321 421 9364 Ourref  Brian Biebuyck/gmy 118901

Direct dial (27 11) 523-6027
Direct fax  035-674-2751
briandlebuyck@evershads.co.za
Docex 7 Sandton Square

Attention: M R BIKO

By fax
CONFID SNTIALITY CAUTION

CO-200

112

This docursent is inkended oniy for the use of the [ndv dual ar entity to which It Is addressed and contains information that
is privikegud and confidential, [f the reader of this lecument is not the intended reciplent, or the employee or agent
respansible for deilvering ths document to bhe inte ndad redpient, yeu are hereby natified that any dissemination,
distribution or copying of this document Is strictly prak: bited. 1F you have recelved this docliment in error, please notify us

immerliately by talephone and return the orlginal docw Yent to us at the above addrass at our cost.

Dear Sir

RE: BOSASA OPERATIONS (PTY) LTD & )THERS / SPECIAL INVESTIGATING UNIT

Your fax of evan date refers. Please note th it the writer's fax number is 0BG 674 2751 and
not 088 674 1351. Pleass address future cor -espondence to the correct fax number.

We decdling your request for a further extens ion to the deadline, already extended to 15h00
today, 10 March 2009, granted to you yeste: day,

The natlce of motion and founding affidavit in the above matter was served on yaur client
on 27 February 2009. You have now had 11 days within which to fila an answar, It is
unreasonable to expect our cllent to grant yiu a further axtenslon, albeit that the deponent
to your affidavit is allegedly unavailable toc ay. All concerned hava known of the relevant
time perinds for the last eleven days,

In this regard we place on record that yoir client's failure to fle its answering affidavit
timeously severaly prejudices our client as w= are obliged in terms of TPD practise to fite all
papers, index stc by no later than 12h00 The raday 12 March 2009 for a hearing In the weak
commencing 17 March 2009, Our cliemts are now faced with severe time constralnts within
which to prepare replying papers. Should w: be unable to meet the deadline due to your
client's tardiness, the matter will not ba capa ile of set down untll 24 March 2009,

22 Fredman Drive Routledges Incorpol ated trading as Routiedge Modise and Evarsheds LLP
Sandton, Johanneshurg are both members o ! Eversheds International Limited

P O Bux 78333 st ] is3ared 9 ENglANA DG Waths, rERBAMIoh umbar SCALANGS

Sandton City 2146 %*awﬁﬁim"’"w; PRI 704 SN RS (R by o

Tel #2711 286 6500 The Rijeciitlbn U D¢ KWOVE & | sinevshp or any iesl whiring of shiigations

Fax +27 11 286 6901 www.evarsheds.co.za
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All aur client's In this regard are hereby re sarved,

Yours falthfutly

A

M)

BRIAN BIEBUYCK
DIRECTOR
For ROUTLEDGE MODISE

g .

‘ EVERSHEDS

15:50:49

10-03-2009
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Yeiande Byrd

IN THE HIGH COURT OF SOUTH .\FRICA

(NORTH GAUTENG, HIGH COUR1)

In the matter between:

BOSASA OPERATIONS (PTY) LTD
AGRIZZ], ANGELO

VAN TONDER, ANDRIES JOHAN? ES
VORSTER, FRANS HENDRIK STEYN
WATSON, GAVIN JOSEPH

And

SPECIAL INVESTIGATING UNIT

12 348 1232 p.1

CASE NO: 11068/09

First Applicant

Second Applicant

Third Applicant

Fourth Apphlicant

Fifth Applicant

Respondent

SUPPQRTING AFFIDAVIT

|, the undersigned,

JACQUE! RIEL MALAN

do hereby make oath and state:

(
y
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[ am adult male director of Facls Cansulting, and a forensic

technology expart.

The contents of this affidavi are within my perscnal knowledge where
that is apparent from the cor text, and are true and correct.

Facts Consulting is a techr logy service provider who are consultants
to the Special Invesfigations Unit ("SIL in the technology compoanent

of their investigations.

Prior to acting as consuitait for the SIU, in December 2008 | was
required o sign a confide ntiality agreement, a copy of which is
annexed as “FA17.3" to the founding affidavit of Mr Fapa Festus

Leshabane (“Mr Leshabane'). The agreement reads as follows:

*l, Jacques Rial M: lan declare under oath/affirm thal, except
in 80 far as is nect ssary in the performance of my duties in
connection with the funclions of the Speciaf Investigating
Unit or with the wr tien leave of the Head of the Unit or by
crder of the Special Tribunal or High Court | shall not
communicate (o an s person any matier or information which
may come o mr knowledge in connection with any
investigation by th: Special Investigating Unit, or allow or
permit any person to have access (o any records or the

Special Investigath ¢ Unit, including any nopte, mecord ar

y

p.2
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transcription of the proceedings of the said Unil, in my
possession or custo Ty orin the possession or custogdy of the

said Unit or any meinber thersol.

Having regard o the role and purpose of the Special
Investigating Unit, declare that I have disclosed anything
that may materially ‘nfiuence the decision to appoinf me as a

mermber of the Spe: sal Investigating Unit”

5. | am bound by the agreem:nt and adhere to it at all times in my

cansultancy wark perfarmed for the StU.
The data retrieval and restoration process at Bosasa

& | was requested by the SIU o conduct a data refrieval and restoration
process at the offices of the first applicant, Bosasa Operations (Pty),

Ltd ("Bosasa’).

7. The protocol agreed betwern the SIU and Bosasa was that | would
creata forsnsic images and : ubsequently filter and extract specific and
relevant information fram tie images obtained. The systems that

were accessed by the proce:s included:

The file server environment where users sfore files and back up

information;
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Yolande Byrd 012 348 1232 p4

Domain coniroller system conta ning user privilege profiles and audit lags

af IP ownership;

Mail server containing e-maf

Financlal system and related sy porting databases;

Personal computers used by he individuals summonsed in terms of

section 5(2)(b) and (¢).

8. It was agreed between Bos: sa and the SIU that the servers described
above waould be shut dowr after hours and two foransic copies of
each drive would be made However, it transpired that it was not
necessary to shut the syster1s down, and the pracess of ‘live’ forensic
imaging was ultimately the f rocess agreed to by Bosasa's expert, Mr

Johnny Wilkinsen ("Wilkinso:r*), and impiernented by myself,

9, Although the data retrieval and imaging process was scheduled to
commeancy in the first week .f December, it was delayed by EQSASA
and ultimately conducted btween a8 and 16 December 2008. Mr
Wilkinson was present on 8 December 2008 to aversee the agreed

process but was not present hereafter.
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Yolande Byrd 012 348 1232

10. During the process | was cenied access to cerain servers for 16
hours. It was ohly through the intervention of Jerome Wells, who
amanged access through Bian Bieybuyck, that such access was

granted.

The safekesping of the two farens c copies and recovery of the data

11. During the data retrieval prccess two forensic copies were made of

each drive:

At present, one of the coples i3 efill sealed and Is In my possession,
securely stored at my office. Mobocy has had access to that copy (including

myself).

| am prasertly utilising tha other copy o recover data for purpeses of the
SIU investigation. Nobody apart § 'om myself has had acoess to that copy,

which is also securely stored at my c ffice.

12,  The process of racaovery of (1@ data is underway but incomplets. It is
a time consuming and comalex process. | anficipate that it will be

completed within a month,

13. ! have discovered that a dat: deletion utility was placed on the Bosasa

servers — and found destroy :d files consistent with that application. It

p.5

o/
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14.

18.

16.

17.

6

is apparent that the utiity vas installed and the flles were deleted

shortly prior to the imaging ¢ rocess.

As | have not completed tte data recavery process, | have not yet
transferred any of the data 1 etrieved from the Bosasa servers or user

laptops to the SIU.

The data retrieved from Bosasa is within my possession and
safckeeping. | have not disclosed the data to the SIU or agnyone else,

In the data from Basasa thi t | have recovered and analysed, | have
not come across the e-mai comespondence annexed to the Mail &
Guardian article published 01 30 January 2009, (Annexure “FA19” to

applicant’s founding affidavit ,

I read the alleaged e-majl comespondence between Gillingham angd

Agrizzi for the first time wher it was published in the Mz & Guardian,

Agrizzi's laptop

1a.

Agrizzi’s iaptop was forensie ally imaged during the data retrieval and
restoration pracess. | have ¢ Jmmenced the process of daty recovery
but | have not yet faund any documents that are relevant to tha

investigation, nor have | four & any e-mail comespondence, (including

peé
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the correspandence publisivd by the Mail & Guardian) that is of any

relevance to the investigatiol,

18, The data retrieved from Ayizzi's laptop is within my possession.
Nobody else has had acces:to it. | have not forwarded such data to
the SIU or anyons else,

Gillingham's computers

20, | have not had any acciss to the data obtained from Patrick

Gilinghan's {*Giflingham”) ¢ »mputers.

The SiU's source

21.

23,

Jason Jardaan {“Jordaan"), who is employed by the SiU as a cyber
farensic lead furnished me \/ith a DVD on 15 January 2003, advising

that it contained information ibtained from a SIU source,

The DVD has been in safe 1 torage at my office and in my care since
obtaining it from Jordaan. tiobody else has had access to it. 1 have
never discussed the DVD wi h anyons else from the SiU or outside of

the SiU.

I have not analysed or reiries ed any of the data on the disk.

(

CO-208
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Yolarnde Byrd 012 348 1232

Ad paragraphs 54 and 62 to 70 of | .eshabane’s affidavit

26,

27,

{ have read the averments (nade at paragraphs 54 and 82 fo 70 of

Leshabane's affidavit.

In response thereto, | confirn) that | am not recovering all the data lost
by Bosasa, as a result of tha alleged server crash in 2007. It is simply
not feasible to recover all the data that was lost and | am only
conducting a data search ‘elating to specific documents that are
relevant to the terms of tha: seclion 5(2)(b) and (¢) notfices issued

during the SIL investigation.

However, as a result of miror imaging the search is conducted in
respect of all the data on 11e Bosasa servers. | am naot yetin a
pasition to determine what 1lata is irralevant to the Investigation and
does not fall within the sedtion 5(2) nolices. It is not possible to
separate parts or document:: from a forensic image and preserve the

integrity of the relevant data.

All of the data that | have aztess to on the two forensic copies is also
physically present on Bosaia's system, and if need be they could
undertake the same forensc exarcise in analysing their own data.
Accordingly, it is not correct for them to complain that they do not

have access to the data.

p8
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28, However, in order that they can conducet a forensic process on the
data If they so wish, without having to image the servers again, | can
fumish them with a copy of the forensic disc in my possassion. An
expert can readily confirm he integrity of the copy because of the
hash value of the data. Alts natively, | could copy the forensic images

onto a hard drive in their presence.

29.  Afthough the procsss of dat: recovery is compiex, there are a number
of experts In this forensic finld in South Africa who would be able to
conduct the process of restaring the data with which | am presently

undearway.

30. I have already explained that 1 have not disclosed any of the
information obtained from te Bosasa data refrieval and restoration

process to the SIU yet.

| certify that

1. the deponent acknewledged t > me that
1.1 hefshe knows and und xrstands the contents of this declaration;
1.2 heishe has na objectin 1 to taking the prescribed oath:

1.3 helshg cansiders the rescribed oath to be binding on his/her
conscienca;

p.8
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2, the deponent theraafter uttered the words, “f swear that the contents of
this dsclaration are true, sa help me God™,

3. the deponent signed this declar ation in my presence at the address set
out hersunder on this 72 &4  ay of MARCGH 2009 .

Designation and Area
Full Mames
Street Address

----- SO LT Appaasy; ey

COMMISSIONER OF OATHS

MARD BNOBLOREEHT
CHARTE EE0 AGCOUNTANTS OF =00
B

PRETORIA
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IN THE COURT FOR THE REGIONAL DIVISION OF NORTH GAUTENG
HELD IN PRETORIA

CASE NUMBER:

THE STATE
versus

LINDA MORRIS MTI | ‘ ACCUSED 1
PATRICK O'CONNELL GILLINGHAM \ ACCUSED 2
ANGELO AGRIZZI ACCUSED 3
ANDRIES JOHANNES JACOBUS VAN TONDER ACCUSED 4

AFRICAN GLOBAL OPERATIONS

(formerly known as BOSASA OPERATIONS (PTY) LTD) ACCUSED 5
SONDOLO IT (PTY)LTD ACCUSED 6
PHEZULU FENCING (PTY) LTD ACCUSED 7

4
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COUNT 1 -6 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY)

A CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 86(1) READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 38(1)(a)(iii),
38(1)(b), 38(1)(c)(ii), 38(1)(n), 44(2) AND 76(2)(c) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE
MANAGEMENT ACT 1 OF 1999, FURTHER READ WITH SECTION 217 OF THE

CONSTITUTION.

COUNT 7 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY)

MAIN COUNT: CORRUPTION - CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4(1)(a)(i)-{iv)
READ WITH sEéTlous 1, 2, 24, 25, 2&("%)(a).os THE PREVENTION AND
COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ

WITH SECTION 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 OF 1977.

ALTERNATIVE COUNT TO COUNT 7: CORRUPTION — CONTRAVENTION OF
SECTION 10(a) READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE
PREVENTION AND COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004,

FURTHER READ WITH SECTION 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT

51 OF 1977.

y



COUNT 8 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 3, 4, 5.6 AND 7 ONLY)

MAIN COUNT: CORRUPTION - CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4(1)(b){i)-{iv)
READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND
COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ
WITH SECTION 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 OF 1977.

ALTERNATIVE COUNT TO COUNT 8: CORRUPTION CONTRAVENTION OF

SECTION 10(b) READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2 24 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE
PREVENTION AND COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004,
FURTHER READ WITH SECTEON 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT,

51 -OF 1977.

COUNT 9 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 2 ONLY)

MAIN COUNT: CORRUPTION — CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4(1)(a)(i)-(iv)
READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND
COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ

WITH SECTION 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 OF 1977.

CO-215
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ALTERNATIVE COUNT TO COUNT 9 — CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 10(a)
READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND
COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ

WITH SECTION 263A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT, 51 OF 1977.

COUNT 10 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 3. 4. 5, 6 AND 7 ONLY)

MAIN COUNT: CORRUPTION — CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4(1)(b)(|) (lv)
READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24 25, 26(1)(A) OF THE PREVENTION AND
COMBATING QF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ
WITH SECTION 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51.0F 1977.

ALTERNATNE COUNT TO COUNT 10" CORRUF‘TIQN CONTRAVENTION OF
SECTION 10(b) READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25 26(1)(a) OF THE

PREVENTION AND COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004,
FURTHER READ WITH SECTION 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT,

51 OF 1977.
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COUNT 11 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 2, 3, 5. 6 AND 7 ONLY)

MAIN COUNT: MONEY LAUNDERING — CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4
READ WITH SECTION 1, 7A AND 8 OF THE PREVENTION OF ORGANISED

CRIME ACT 121 OF 1998, FURTHER READ SECTION 51(2) OF ACT 105 OF

1997.

COUNT 12 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 2, 3, 5.6 AND 7 ONLY)

MAIN COUNT: MONEY LAUNDERING — CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4
READ WITH SECTION 1, 7A AND 8 OF THE PREVENTION OF ORGANISED
CRIME ACT 121 OF 1998, FURTHER READ SECTION 51(2) OF ACT 105 OF

1997.

COUNT 13 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 2, 3,4, 6 AND 7 ONLY)

MAIN COUNT: MONEY LAUNDERING — CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4
READ WITH SECTION 1, 7A AND 8 OF THE PREVENTION OF ORGANISED

CRIME ACT 121 OF 1998, FURTHER READ SECTION 51(2) OF ACT 105 OF

1997.
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COUNT 14 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 2, 3, 5, 6 AND 7 ONLY)

MAIN COUNT: MONEY LAUNDERING — CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4
READ WITH SECTION 1, 7A AND 8 OF THE PREVENTION OF ORGANISED
CRIME ACT 121 OF 1998, FURTHER READ SECTION 51(2) OF ACT 105 OF

1997.

COUNT 15 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 2, 3,5, 6 AND 7 ONLY)

MAIN COUNT: MONE’Y LAUNBERING CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4"
READ WITH SECTION 1, 7A AND 8 OF THE PREVENTIQN OF ORGANISEEI
CRIME ACT 121 OF 1998 FURTHER READ SECTEON 51(2) OF ACT 105 GF

1 997
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COUNT 1 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED IS GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 86(1) READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 36, 38(1)(a)(ii), 38(1)(b), 38(1)(c)(ii), 38(1)(n), 44(2)(d) AND
76(4) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 1 OF 1999, AND FURTHER

READ WITH SECTION 217 OF THE CONSTITUTION, 1996.

1. IN that during the period between May 2004 and July 2004 and at or near
Pretoria in the regional division of Gagﬁéﬁg, the Accused, being the -
Accounting Officer of the Departmenj ‘101.‘ éqrrectional' Services, did unlawfully,
wilfuily 'dr%jn a grossly negligent manner falf to complyfwith the foliowing

provisions of the Public Finance Manageméqt Act;

1.1 The-duiy to ensure that the Department has'ah.d ma’iiﬁtains an appropriate
b}oéurement and provisioning's"ystem which is'“'fair, eauitable, transparent,

competitive and cost effective (Section 38(1)(a)(iii)); or

1.2 The duty to take responsibility for the effective, economical and transparent

use of the resources of the Department (Section 38(1)(b)); or

1.3 The duty to take effective and appropriate steps to prevent irregular

expenditure {Section 38(1)(c)(ii)); or

1.4 The duty to comply and ensure compliance by the Department, with the

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (Section 38(1)(n)), & @
7
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. In that Accused 1 failed to ensure compliance with the prescribed
procurement processes of the Department of Correctional Services during the
conclusion of TENDER NUMBER HK2/2004: RENDERING OF CATERING
AND TRAINING SERVICES AT THE VARIOUS MANAGEMENT AREAS, in
the amount of R 718 283 084, 07 (seven hundred and eighteen million two

hundred and eighty three thousand and eighty four rand, seven cents),

. Accused 1 appointed Accused 2 to serve as the chairperson of the Bid
Evaluation Committee in TENDER HK2/2004, and also appointed him to take
part in the National Bid Adjudication Committee on an “advisory capacity”,
resulting in Accused 2 taking part in both the Bid Evaluation Committee and

the National Bid Adjudication Committee.

4. There wgz-é no proper financial planning for this tender in that there was no

f&aéiﬁlqi}ity study or needs assessment conducted.

. The end-user Department was not involved in the drafting of the specifications

to ensure that value for money is achieved.

Accused 1 did not ensure that the specifications were written in an unbiased

manner to altow all potential bidders to offer their services.

. The Bid Evaluation Committee did not compose of Supply Chain Practitioners
or officials from the end-user Department requiring the rendering of catering

and training services to ensure competitiveness and cost effectiveness. g
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8. No formal Bid Specifications Committee existed. The specifications for
TENDER HK2/2004 were drafted by the employees of Accused 5 who

included Accused 3 and Mr William Daniel Mansell, to the disadvantage of

other bidders,

COUNT 2 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY)

THAT"THE'ACCUSEE’)-JS GUILTY OF CONTF\;'A;VENING SECTION 86(1) READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 36, 38(1)(a){iii), 38(1 )_(t}i), 38(1)(c)i), 38(1)(n), 44(2)(d) AND
76(4) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 1 OF 1999, AND FURTHER

READ WITH SECTION 217 OF THE CONSTITUTION, 1996,

P

: 9, l-ln that upon or about 17 May 2005 and at or near Prei;bria in the regional
division of Gauteng, the Accused, being the Accounting Officer of the
Department of Correctional Services, did untawfully, wilfully or in a grossly

negligent manner, fail to comply with the following provisions of the Public

Finance Management Act;

9.1 The duty to ensure that the Department has and maintains an appropriate
procurement and provisioning system which is fair, equitable, transparent,

competitive and cost effective (Section 38(1)(a)(iii)); or
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9.2 The duty to take responsibility for the effective, economical and transparent

use of the resources of the Department (Section 38(1)(b)); or

9.3 The duty to take effective and appropriate steps to prevent irregular

expenditure (Section 38(1)(c)(ii)); or

9.4 The duty to comply and ensure compliance by the Department, with the

provisions of the Publiic Finance Management Act (Section 38(1)(n)),

10.In that Accused 1 failed to ensure compliance with the prescribed -
procurement processes of the Departnﬂenf.of' Correctional Services by
extending TENDER NUMBER HK2/2004: RENDERING OF CATERING AND
TRAINING SERVICES AT THE VARIOUS MANAGEMENT AREAS without

'referrirtg'tEe said service out to t@ﬁdér. -

11.The sa'i'd irregular extension included the adding of additional kitchens to the
contract and that caused the contract value to increase by an extra

R 82 000 000, 00 (eighty two million rand).

A
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COUNT 3 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED IS GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 86(1) READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 36, 38(1)(@)(ii), 38(1)(b), 38(1)(c)(ii), 38(1)(n), 44(2)(d) AND
76(4) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 1 OF 1999, AND FURTHER

READ WITH SECTION 217 OF THE CONSTITUTION, 1996.

12.IN THAT during the period between November 2004 and April 2005 and at or
near Pretoria in the regional division of Gauteng, the Ac_cuse_.q, being the
Accounting Officer of the Department of Conjectionall.sgérvicés, did unfawfully,
wilfully or"in a grossly negligent manner, fail to éompl&with the following

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act;

12.1 The duty to ensure that the Department has and maintains an
appropriate procurement and provisioning system which is fair, equitabie,

transparent, competitive and cost effective (Section 38(1)(a)iii)); or

12.2 The duty to take responsibility for the effective, economical and

transparent use of the resources of the Department (Section 38(1)(b)); or
12.3 The duty to take effective and appropriate steps to prevent irregular &

. |

expenditure (Section 38(1)(c)(ii)); or
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12.4 The duty to comply and ensure compliance by the Department, with the

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (Section 38(1)(n)).

13.1n that Accused 1 failed to ensure compliance with the prescribed
procurement processes of the Department of Correctional Services during the
conclusion of TENDER HK2/2005: SUPPLY AND DELIVERY,
INSTALLATION, COMMISSIONING, SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE OF A
COMPREHENSIVE ACCESS CONTROL AND BODY SCANNING SYSTEM
WITH CCTV COVERAGE OF CORRECTIONAL SERVICES STAFF AND -
INMATES AT SIXTY SiX (66) MAX!QMUM_SECURIW FACILITIES/CENTRES
OF EXCELLENCE, in the amount ofR 23;6""9.97 351, 31 (two hundred and
thirty six million-nine hundred anQﬁinety seven thousand three hundred,énd

fity one rand, thirty one cents). =

14. Despite it being a bid requirement that bidders should have five years’
experience, Sondolo IT (Pty) Ltd (Accused 6) was only registered seven (7)

days before the closing of bids but was not disqualified.

15. Accused 1 appointed Accused 2 to serve as the chairperson of the Bid
Evaluation Committee in TENDER HK2/2005, and also appointed him to take
part in the National Bid Adjudication Committee on an “advisory capacity”,

resulting in Accused 2 taking part in both the Bid Evaluation Committee and

the National Bid Adjudication Committee. &
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18. There was no proper financial planning for this tender in that there was no
feasibility study or needs assessment conducted which resulted in the initial

budget being significantly exceeded.

17. The end-user Department was not involved in the drafting of the specifications

to ensure that value for money is achieved.

18. Accused 1 did not ensure that the specifications were written in an unbiased

manner to allow all potential bidders to offer their services.

19. No formal Bid Specifications Committee existed. The specifications for
TENDER HK2/2005 were drafted by the employees of Accused 5 who

included Accused 3 and Mr William Daniel Mansell, to the disadvantage of

otherj_a_iidders.
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COUNT 4 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED IS GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 86(1) READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 36, 38(1)(a)(ii), 38(1)(b), 38(1)(c)(ii), 38(1)(n), 44(2)(d) AND
76(4) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 1 OF 1999, AND FURTHER

READ WITH SECTION 217 OF THE CONSTITUTION, 1996.

20.IN THAT during the period between 10 August 2005 and December 2005 and
at or near Pretoria in the regional division of Gauteng, the Accused, being the
Accoun,tin_g Officer of the Department of:'Correctionai Services, did unlawfully,
wilfully or in a grossly negligent manner, fail to comply with the following

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act:

20.1 The duty to ensure that the Departmé'ﬁt has and maintains an
appropriate procurement and provisioning system which is fair, equitable,
fransparent, competitive and cost effective (Section 38(1)(a)(iii)); or

20.2 The duty to take responsibility for the effective, economical and

transparent use of the resources of the Department (Section 38(1)(b)); or

20.3 The duty to take effective and appropriate steps to prevent irregular

expenditure (38(1)(c)(ii)); or

20.4 The duty to comply and ensure compliance by the Department, with the

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (38(1)(n)). E

14
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21.In that Accused 1 approved the conclusion of a Service Level Agreement with
Accused 6 in the amount of R 208 739 700, 00 (two hundred and eight million
seven hundred and thirty nine thousand seven hundred rand) for Accused 6 to
provide staff (human resources) to operate the approved access control
system which formed part of TENDER HK2/2005 without referring the said

service for provision of human resources to public tender since it constituted a

new contract.

22.Accused 1's conduct as aforesaid, resul_ted in irregulgr expenditure in the .
amoung_ of R 208 739 700, 00 being mcurred by the Department since the said
expens_‘éA(was na{-budget_edf for. The::é;jvei;fised bid, TENDER HK2/2005, did
not make provisién,for the staffing 6{ fhe C6htrol roomé and the ex post facto
conclusion of the Service Level Agrgement between the Department and
Accused 6 as afaresaidi,_:}elsuited; sn the ﬁepéﬂ_ment incurring extra costs

which were not budgeted for.

.0
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COUNT 5 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED IS GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 86(1} READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 36, 38(1)(a)(il), 38(1)(b), 38(1)(c)(ii). 38(1)(n), 44(2)(d) AND
76(4) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 1 OF 1999, AND FURTHER

READ WITH SECTION 217 OF THE CONSTITUTION, 1996.

23.IN THAT during the period between August 2005 and November 2005 and at
of near Pretoria in the regional division of Gauteng, the Accused, being the
Accounting Officer of the Departmerit: ._of Correctiona:!:' Services, did unlawfuliy,
wilfully or in a grossly negligent manner, faii to com ply with the following

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act;

Pdxla The duty to ensure that the Department has and maintains an
appropriate procurement and provisioning syétem which is fair, equitable,

transparent, competitive and cost effective (Section 38(1)(a)(iii}); or

23.2 The duty to take responsibility for the effective, economicail and

transparent use of the resources of the Department {Section 38(1)(b)); or

23.3 The duty to take effective and appropriate steps to prevent irregular

expenditure (Section 38(1)(c)(ii)); or
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234 The duty to comply and ensure compliance by the Department, with the

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (Section 38(1)(n)).

24.In that Accused 1 failed to ensure compliance with the prescribed
procurement processes of the Department of Correctional Services during the
conclusion of TENDER HK24/2005: SUPPLY, DELIVERY, INSTALLATION
AND COMMISSIONING OF SECURITY OUTER PERIMETER FENCES
WITH OR WITHOUT TAUT WIRE DETECTION INNER FENCES AND CCTV
SURVEILLANCE CAMERAS AT VARIOUS CENTRES OF THE
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONAL SERVICES, in the-amount of
R 486 937 910, 35 (four hundred and eighty six mil!i.(.:i‘ﬁ nine hundred and thirty

seven thousand nine hundred and ten rand and thir't_'y-‘five cents).

25. Accused 1 appointed Accused 2 to serve as the chairperson of the Bid
Evaluation Committee in TENDER HK24/2005, and also appointed him to
take part in the Natioﬁal Bid Adjudication Committee on an “advisory
capacity”, resulting in Accused 2 taking part in both the Bid Evaluation

Committee and the National Bid Adjudication Committee.

26. There was no proper financial planning for this tender in that there was no
feasibility study or needs assessment conducted which resulted in the initial
budget of R 340 000 000, 00 (three hundred and forty million rand) being
significantly exceeded and in addition being further increased by variation

orders valued at about R 100 000 000, 00, (one hundred million rand).
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27.The end-user Department was not involved in the drafting of the specifications

to ensure that value for money is achieved.

28. Accused 1 did not ensure that the specifications were written in an unbiased

manner to allow all potential bidders to offer their services.

29.No formal Bid Specifications Committee existed. The specifications for
TENDER HK24/2005 were drafted by the employees of Accused 5 who

included Accused 3 and Mr William Mansell, to the disadvantage of other

bidders.

COUNT 6 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY]

THAT THE ACCUSED IS GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 86(1) READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 36, 38(1)(a)(ii), 38(1)(b), 38(1)(c){i), 38(1)(n), 44(2)(d) AND
76(4) OF THE PUBLIC FINANCE MANAGEMENT ACT 1 OF 1999, AND FURTHER

READ WITH SECTION 217 OF THE CONSTITUTION, 1996.

30.IN THAT during the period between September 2005 and March 2006 and at
or near Pretoria in the regional division of Gauteng, the Accused, being the
Accounting Officer of the Department of Correctional Services, did unfawfully,
wilfully or in a grossly negligent manner, fail to comply with the following

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act;

18 @
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30.1 The duty to ensure that the Department has and maintains an
appropriate procurement and provisioning system which is fair, equitable,

transparent, competitive and cost effective (Section 38(1)(a)(ii)); or

30.2 The duty to take responsibility for the effective, economical and

transparent use of the resources of the Department (Section 38(1)(b)): or

30.3 The duty to take effective and appropriate steps to prevent irregular

expenditure (Section 38(1)(c)(ii)); or

30.4 The duty to comply and ensure compliance b?y the Department, with the

provisions of the Public Finance Management Act (Sec':tibn: 38(1)(n)).

31.In that Accused 1 failed to ensure compliance with the prescribed
procurement processes of the'Department of Correctional Services during the
conclusion of TENDER HK25/2005: SUPPLY, DELIVERY, INSTALLATION,
COMMISSIONING AND MAINTENANCE OF TELEVISION SYSTEMS AND
MONITORS TO ALL CORRECTIONAL CENTRES WITHIN THE
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONAL SERVICES, in the amount of

R 224 364 480, 00 (two hundred and twenty four million three hundred and

sixty four thousand four hundred and eighty rand).
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32. Accused 1 appointed Accused 2 to serve as the chairperson of the Bid
Evaluation Committee in TENDER HK25/2005, and also appointed him to
take part in the National Bid Adjudication Committee on an “advisory
capacity”, resulting in Accused 2 taking part in both the Bid Evaluation

Committee and the National Bid Adjudication Committee.

33.There was no proper financial planning for this tender in that there was no

feasibility study or needs assessment conducted which resulted in the initial

budget being significantly exceeded.

34.The end-user Department was not involved in the drafting of the specifications

to ensure that value for money is achieved.

35. Accused 1 did not ensure that the specifications were written in an unbiased

manner to allow all potential bidders to offer their services.

36. No formal Bid Specifications Committee existed. The specifications for
TENDER HK25/2005 were drafted by the employees of Accused 5 who

included Accused 3 and Mr William Daniel Mansell, to the disadvantage of

other bidders.
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COUNT 7 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED IS GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 4(1)(a)i) - (iv)
READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND
COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ
WITH SECTION 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 of 1977.

37.1n that during the period between May 2004 to July 2015, particularly on the
dates as indicated on Column B of Schedule 1, and at or near Pretoria and or
Johannesburg in the regional dmsron of Gauteng, Accused 1, who was a
public officer in the employ of the Depanment of Correctional Services, did
directly or mdlrecﬂy accept or agree or offer to accept from Accused 3, 4, 5, 6,
and 7 unauthorised gratlﬁc:atlons mdtcated m Column C of Schedule 1 in the
amqunts indicated in Column Dto wit, fllght tickets, car rental services and
‘accommodation were paid for him and his family members and or for other
persons known to him, and Accused 1 further, on the dates as indicated on

Column B of Schedule 2 received cash payments as indicated in Column D of

Schedule 2,

38. for the benefit of himself (Accused 1) and or for the benefit of his family

members and or other persons known to him, in order for Accused 1 to

personally act in a manner-

(i That amounts to the — &
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(aa) illegal, dishonest, unauthorised, incomplete, or biased exercise, carrying
out or performance of any powers, duties or functions arising out of a

constitutional, statutory, contractual or any other legal obligation; or

(ii) That amounts to —

(aa) the abuse of a position of authority;
(bb) a breach of trust; or

(cc) the violation of a legal duty or set of rules; or
(iii)  Designed to achieve an unjustified resuit; or

{iv}  that amounts to any other unauthoriséd or impro[der inducement to do or

notto do anything,

100. to wit, failing to ensure compliance with the procurement processes of the
Department of Correctional Services and Treasury Regulations in relation to
Tenders HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005 resulting in the

BOSASA Group of companies (Accused 5, 6 and 7) being awarded the said

tenders.
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ALTERNATIVE COUNT TO COUNT 7 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 1 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED IS GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 10(a) READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND COMBATING
OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ WITH SECTION

269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 of 1977,

101. In that during the period between May 2004 to April _2_015, particularly
on the dates as-indicated on Column B of Schedule“_li, and at or near Pretoria
or Johannesburg or Midrand or Krugersdorp or Roodepoort or Alberton in the
regionfal. divisi_oﬁn' of Gauteng, Accused 1, who was party to.an employment
re!atioln'sl.ﬁip with the Department of Correctignal Services, did directly or
indire_’étly accept or agree or offer to accept from Acgused 3,4,5,6and 7,
un}aqiuthorised gratifioations’ind_icated in Column C of Schedule 1 in the
amounts indicated in Columnzl_‘-), to wit, flight tickets.,”car rental services and
accommodation were paid for him and his family members and or for other
persons known to him, and Accused 1 further, on the dates as indicated on

Column B of Schedule 2 received cash payments as indicated in Column D

of Schedule 2,

102. for the benefit of himself (Accused 1) and or for the benefit of his family
members and or other persons known to him, in respect of Accused 1 doing
any act in relation to the exercise, carrying out or performance of his powers, &

duties or functions within the scope of his employment relationship
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COUNT 8 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 3, 4.5.6 AND 7 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED ARE GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 4(1)(b)(i}-(iv)
READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND
COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ

WITH SECTION 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 of 1977.

103. In that during the period between May 2004 to April 2015,
particularly on the dates as indicated&gflr-_-'(':o!umn B of. Schédule 1, at or near
Pretoria or Johannesburg or Midrand olerugersdorp or Roodepoort or
Alberton in the regional division oftGauteng,, the Acc.:t.;sed,r did directly or
indirectly give or agree ar offer to give to Accused 1, who was party to'an
employment refationship with théf.lbepéﬁrﬁént of Correctional Services,
unauthorised gratificationsindicated in Column C of Schedule 1 in the
amounts indicated in Column D, to wit, flight tickets, car rental services and
accommodation were paid for him and his family members and or for other
persons known to him, and the Accused further, on the dates as indicated on
Column B of Schedule 2 paid cash payments as indicated in Column D of

Schedule 2 to Accused 1,

39.for the benefit of himself (Accused 1) and or for the benefit of his family

members and or other persons known to him, in order for Accused 1 to

personally act in a manner- (
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(i) That amounts fo the -
(aa) illegal, dishonest, unauthorised, incomplete, or biased exercise, carrying
out or performance of any powers, duties or functions arising out of a

constitutional, statutory, contractual or any other legal obligation; or

(i) That amounts to ~

(aa) the abuse of a position of authority;
(bb) a breach of trust; or

{cc) the violation of a legal duty or set of rules; or

(i)  Designed to achieve an unjustified result: or

(iv)  that amounts to any other unauthorised or improper inducement to do or

not to do anything,

100. to wit, failing to ensure compliance with the procurement processes of the
Department of Correctional Services and Treasury Regulations in relation to
Tenders HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005 resulting in the
BOSASA Group of companies (Accused 5, 6 and 7) being awarded the said

tenders.
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ALTERNATIVE COUNT TO COUNT 8 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 3, 4, 5, 6 AND

7 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED ARE GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 10(b) READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND COMBATING
OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ WITH SECTION

269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 of 1977.

: _'140‘8. '. In that during" the period betwe-e»'n 'May 2004 te April 20f 9, particularly
on the dates as indicated on Cofumn B of Schedule 1, at or near Pretoria or
Johannesburg or Mldl'&ﬁd or Krugersdorp or Roodepoort or Alberton in the
reglonal dmsmn of Gasuteng the Accused dld dlrectly or |nd|rectly give or
agree or offer to give te Accused T who was party to an employment
relatlonshlp w;th the Department of Correctlonal Serwces the following
unauthorised gratifications indicated in Column C of Schedule 1 in the
amounts indicated in Column D, to wit, flight tickets, car rental services and
accommodation were paid for him and his family members and or for other
persons known to him, and the Accused further, on the dates as indicated on

Column B of Schedule 2 paid cash payments as indicated in Column D of

Schedule 2 to Accused 1,

109. for his own benefit and or for the benefit of his family members in

respect of Accused 1 doing any act in relation to the exercise, carrying out or

§
« )
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performance of his powers, duties or functions within the scope of his

employment relationship.

COUNT 9 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 2 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED IS GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 4(1)(a)(i) - (iv)
READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND
COMBATING OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ
WITH SECTION 269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 of 1977.

109, In'that during the period between April 2004 and April 2007, partioularly
on the dates_ indicated in Schedule 3, at or near Pretoria or Johannesburg or
M id_r-aﬁ'd ror anéersdorp or Roodepoort or Alberton in the regional divigion of
G:auté.ng, Accused 2, who was a public officé_r in the employ of the
Department of Correctional Services, did directly or indirectly accept or agree
or offer to accept from Accused 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 the gratifications indicated in

Schedule 3, for his own benefit and or for the benefit of his family members,
110. in order for Accused 2 to personally act in a manner-

(i) That amounts to the —

(aa) illegal, dishonest, unauthorised, incomplete, or biased exercise, carrying ‘E

out or performance of any powers, duties or functions arising out of a
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constitutional, statutory, contractuat or any other legal obligation; or

(ii) That amounts to —
(aa) the abuse of a position of authority;
(bb) a breach of trust; or

(cc) the violation of a legal duty or set of rules; or

(i) ~ Designed to achieve an unjustified result; or

(iv)  that amounts to any other unauthorised or improper inducement to do

or not to do anything,

111. to wit, Accused 2, colluded with Accused 3 and a certain Mr
William Daniel Mansell, who were employees of and or associated with
Accused 5, to draft or compile the bid specifications which were used as part
of the invitation to bid for tenders, HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and
HK25/2005, resulting in the BOSASA Group of companies {Accused 5, 6 and
7) being advantaged over other bidders and being awarded the said tenders

since they had knowledge of the bid specifications before the said tenders

were advertised.
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112. In the Bid Evaluation Committee dealing with the evaluation of
tender HK24/2005, Accused 2 favoured Phezulu Fencing (Pty) Ltd {Accused
7) by allocating a score of 6 (six) points to Accused 7 despite the fact that its
projected plan did not comply with the stipulated timelines as per the bid
conditions. On the other hand, he gave a score of 0 out of 6 for the other two

service providers whose projected plans complied with the deadline.

113. In the Bid Evaluation Committee dealing with the evaluation of
tender HK2/2005, Accused 2, as the Chairperson of the Bid Evaluation
Committee, did not disqualify Sondqlq iT (Pty) Ltd (Ag:cused 6) which was
registered only éeven (7). f.;iays bef_dré tﬁe_ closing of bids despite it being a

bid requirement that bidders should have five years' experience.

ALTERNATIVE COUNT TO COUNT 9 (IN RESPECT OF AGCUSED 2 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED IS GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 10(a) READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND COMBATING
OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ WITH SECTION

269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 of 1977.

particularly on the dates as indicated in Schedule 3, at or near Pretoria or

114. In that during the period between April 2004 and April 2007, g
Johannesburg or Midrand or Krugersdorp or Roodepoort or Alberton in the
2 @
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regional division of Gauteng, Accused 2, who was party to an employment
relationship with the Department of Correctional Services, did directly or
indirectly accept or agree or offer to accept from Accused 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7 the
unauthorised gratifications indicated in Schedule 3, for his own benefit and or
for the benefit of his family members in respect of Accused 2 doing any act in
retation to the exercise, carrying out or performance of his powers, duties or

functions within the scope of his employment relationship.

COUNT 10 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 3.4, 5,6 AND 7)

THAT THE ACCUSED ARE GUILTY OF:éONTéAVENJNGsEQT__@N 4(1)(bX) - (iv)
READ WITH SECTIONS 1 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND
COMBATING QF CO@R’;‘RUPT ACTIVI'ITI_.;E;S:-ACT 120F 20(';14;_.5FURTHER READ
WITH SECTION 269A OF THE dRIMi:NAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 of 1977.

115. In that during the period between April 2004 and April 2007, particularly
on the dates indicated in Schedule 3, at or near Pretoria or Johannesburg or
Midrand or Krugersdorp or Roodepoort or Aiberton in the regional division of
Gauteng, the Accused, did directly or indirectly give or agree or offer to give
the gratifications indicated in Schedule 3, to Accused 2 who was a public

officer in the employ of the Department of Correctional Services, for his own

y

benefit and or for the benefit of his family members,
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1186. in order for Accused 2 to personally act in a manner-

(i) That amounts to the —

(aa) illegal, dishonest, unauthorised, incomplete, or biased exercise, carrying
out or performance of any powers, duties or functions arising out of a

constitutional, statutory, contractual or any other legal obligation; or
(ii) That amounts to —

(aa) the abuse of a position of authority;
(bb) a breach of trust; or

(cc) the violation of a legal duty or set of rules; or

(lify Designed to achieve an unjustified result; or

(iv)  that amounts to any other unauthorised or improper inducement to do or

not to do anything,

117. to wit, Accused 2, colluded with Accused 3 and a certain Mr
Wiiliam Daniel Manselll, who were employees of and or associated with
Accused 5, to draft or compile the bid specifications which were used as part
of the invitation to bid for tenders, HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and g

HK25/2005, resulting in the BOSASA Group of companies (Accused 5, 6 and

.
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7) being advantaged over other bidders and being awarded the said tenders
since they had knowledge of the bid specifications before the said tenders

were advertised.

118. In the Bid Evaluation Committee dealing with the evaluation of
tender HK24/2005, Accused 2 favoured Phezulu Fencing (Pty) Ltd {Accused
7) by allocating a score of 6 (six) points to Accused 7 despite the fact that its
projected plan did not comply with the stipulated timelines as per the bid
conditions. On the other hand, he gave a score of 0 out of & for the other two

se,fvicj:e providers whose projected plans-complied with the deadline.

- 119. it the Bid Evaluatio_h 'Corﬁﬁiittee dealing with the evaluation of
tender H.K2/2005; Accused 2, as the Chéil‘ﬁ)erson of théﬂ_l}?idb Evaluation
Commi_ttée, did not disqualify Sot;tf.d[gi.iff" (Pty) Ltd (A;;é:cu‘sed 6) which was
registered only seven (?} qays‘ before the clﬁiéing of bfids despite it being.a

bid requirement that bidders s_héuld have five years’ experience.
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ALTERNATIVE COUNT TO COUNT 10 (IN RESPECT OF ACCUSED 3.4.5 6

AND 7 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED ARE GUILTY OF CONTRAVENING SECTION 10(b) READ
WITH SECTIONS 1, 2, 24, 25, 26(1)(a) OF THE PREVENTION AND COMBATING
OF CORRUPT ACTIVITIES ACT 12 OF 2004, FURTHER READ WITH SECTION

269A OF THE CRIMINAL PROCEDURE ACT 51 of 1977.

120. i that during the period ':between April 2004 and April 2007,
particularly on the dates as indicated in Schedule 3; at or near Pretoria and
Johannesburg in &he regional division of Gauteng, the Accused, did directly
or indi_rect!y grve or agrée or offefr,tO Q_ive_:‘t_';'.)_Accused 2, who was party to an
employment reiétionship‘ with thébepartment of Correctional Services, the
unauthorised gratifications jndiéated in Schetjule 3, for Accused 2's own
benefit and or for the benefit c;f His family merh‘bers, in respect of Accused 2
doing any act in relation to the exercise, carrying out or performance of his

powers, duties or functions within the scope of his employment relationship.
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COUNT 11 (iN RELATION TO ACCUSED 2, 3, 4 AND 5 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED ARE GUILTY OF MONEY LAUNDERING -
CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4 READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 8(1) OF ACT 121

OF 1998, AND FURTHER READ WITH SECTION 51(2) OF ACT 105 OF 1997.

121. IN THAT during the period between April 2004 and September 2004
and at or near Pretoria and or Johannesburg in the regional division of
Gauteng, the Accused, unlawfully, whilst they knew or ought reasonably to
have known that certain properties to wit, monies derived by Accused 5 from
the National Department of Correctional Services as payment for services
rendered in connection with tenders HK2/2004, E!_;{élzoos, HK24/2005 and
HK25/2005, were proceeds of unlawful activities or that it formed part of the
praceeds of unlawful activities-_to wit Corruption, agreed and arranged that
cash in the amount of R 196 958, 97 (one hundred and ninety six thousand
hine hundred and fifty nine rand and ninety seven cents) be paid from
Accused 5's FNB bank account number, 62053736743, to a certain Dr J
Smith’s Nedbank account number, 1928031803, who in turn paid it into
Accused 2's ABSA bank account number, 9062273466, for the benefit of

Accused 2 towards the sale of a Volkswagen Golf 1.6 valued at R 196 959,

97.

\
A
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122. And the aforesaid agreement had the effect of concealing or disguising
the nature, source, location, disposition or movement of the said amount of
R 196 959, 97 or the ownership thereof and/or removing or diminishing such

cash which was acquired as a result of the commission of an offence of

Corruption.

COUNT 12 (IN RELATION TO ACCUSED 2, 3,4 AND 5 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED ARE GUILTY OF MONEY LAUNDERING -
CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4 REAG WITH SECTIONS 1, 8(1) OF ACT 121
OF 1998, AND FURTH%ER READ WITH SECTIO_N‘51 (2) OF ACT 105 OF 1997.

E'1_‘2:*-}_-. AN THAT during tha penod between Apr:l 2004 and 13 October 2004
: énd at or near Pretoria and or Johannesburg in the regional division of
Gauteng, the Accused, and a certain Mr Frans Hendrik Steyn Vorster,
unlawfully, whilst they knew or ought reasonably to have known that certain
properties to wit, monies derived by Accused 5 from the National Department

of Correctional Services as payment for services rendered in connection with
tenders HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005, were proceeds of
uniawful activities or that it formed part of the proceeds of unlawful activities

to wit Corruption, agreed and arranged that cash in the amount of R 155 000,

00 (one hundred and fifty thousand rand) be paid from Accused 5's FNB

bank account number, 62053736743, to Dr J Smith's Nedbank account
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number, 1928031803, and that Dr J Smith should issue a cheque in the
amount of R 155 000, 00 which was deposited into Accused 2's ABSA bank
account number, 9062273466, to purchase a motor vehicle, to wit a

Mercedes Benz E270 CDI.

124. And the said agreement had the effect of concealing or disguising the
nature, source, location, disposition or movement of the said amount of
R 155 000, 00 or the ownership thereof and/or removing or diminishing such
cash which was acquired as a result of the commission of an offence of

i

Corruption.

COUNT 13 (IN RELATION TO ACCUSED 2, 3, 4 AND 5 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED ARE GUILTY OF MONEY LAUNDERING -
CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION-4 READ WITH SECTIONS 1, §(1) OF ACT 121
OF 1998, AND FURTHER READ WITH SECTION 51(2) OF ACT 105 OF 1997.

125. IN that during the period July 2006 and at or near Pretoria and or
Johannesburg in the regional division of Gauteng, the Accused, unlawfully,
whilst they knew or ought reasonably to have known that certain properties
to wit, monies derived by Accused 5 from the National Department of
Correctional Services as payment for services rendered in connection with
tenders HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005, were proceeds of &

unlawfut activities or that it formed part of the proceeds of unlawful activities
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to wit Corruption, agreed and arranged that cash in the amount of R 62 796,
00 (sixty two thousand seven hundred and ninety six rand) be paid from
Accused 5's FNB bank account number, 62053735290, to the Standard bank
cheque account number, 080010571, belonging to Mr William Daniel
Mansell's family trust, Grande Four Property Trust. In turn, Grande Four
Property Trust paid the said amount for the three invoices issued by Blakes
Travel Agency (Pty) Ltd against the Customer Detailed Ledger Account,
“G00009: Mr P Gillingham”, to the tota! of value R 62 796, 00, for travel

expenses relating to a European trip undertaken by Accused 2 and Theresa

Gillingham.

126. And the said agreement had the effect of cqﬁcéé-!i'ng or disguising the
nature, source, location, disposition ar-’ifhbvemeét of the said amount of
R 62 ?96, 00 or the ownership thereof andfor rerﬁéving or diminishing such
cash which was acquired as a result of the com'rﬁission of an offence of

Corruption.
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COUNT 14 (IN RELATION TO ACCUSED 2, 3, 4 AND 5 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED ARE GUILTY OF MONEY LAUNDERING -
CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4 READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 8(1) OF ACT 121

OF 1998, AND FURTHER READ WITH SECTION 51(2) OF ACT 105 OF 1997.

127. IN THAT during the period between April 2004 and December 2006
and at or near Pretoria and or Johannesburg in the regional division of
Gauteng, the Accused, L,tnla\nffuily,r‘ﬁf\(ﬁiilét they knew: or ought reasonably to
have kff\_qwn that certain p}opertiesf "tci wit, monies derived by Accused 5 from
the National Department of Correctional Services as payment for services
rendere;c_g- in connection with tenders HK2/2004, HK2/2005, HK24/2008 and
HK2512005, were proce;ec}s of gQﬂléWf'U; .act:i_viitiies or that it formed part of the
p._rqceéds of untawful acﬁﬁti@ ‘to wit Corrup_tipn, agreed and arranged that
amounts of monies be pai;d from Accused 5's FNB bank account number,

62053736743, into the two Nedbank account numbers, 1928031803 and

19280354286, of Dr J Smith.

128. On 21 December 2006 Dr J Smith transferred an amount of R 130 000,
00 (one hundred and thirty thousand) from his Nedbank account number,
1928035426, to his Nedbank account number, 1928031803. On the very
same day, he issued and deposited a “Not Transferrable” cheque in the
amount of R 140 000, 00 (one hundred and forty thousand) into Accused 4’s

FNB bank account number, 62105004634, and referenced it as a “loan”. g

'
¢

38



CO-251

129. On 21 December 2006 Accused 4 paid the amount of R 131 367, 99
into the Standard Bank account number, 021004188, of the Glen
Volkswagen, Glenvista, towards the purchase of a motor vehicle, to wit, a

VW POLO, Accused 2’s daughter, Megan Gillingham.

130. And the aforesaid agreement had the effect of concealing or disguising
the nature, source, location, disposition or movement of the said amount of
R 196 958, 97 or the ownership thereof and/or removing or diminishing such
cash which was acquired as a result of the commission of an offence of

Corruption.

COUNT 15 (IN RELATION TO ACCUSED 2, 3, 4 AND 5 ONLY)

THAT THE ACCUSED ARE GUILTY OF MONEY LAUNDERING -
CONTRAVENTION OF SECTION 4 READ WITH SECTIONS 1, 8(1) OF ACT 121

OF 1998, AND FURTHER READ WITH SECTION 51(2) OF ACT 105 OF 1997,

131. IN that during the period between April 2004 and 11 April 2007 and at
or near Pretoria and or Johannesburg in the regional division of Gauteng, the
Accused, and a certain Mr JDCM Bonifacio, unlawfully, whilst they knew or
ought reasonabiy to have known that certain properties to wit, monies
derived by Accused 5 from the National Department of Correctional Services
as payment for services rendered in connection with tenders HK2/2004,

HK2/2005, HK24/2005 and HK25/2005, were proceeds of unlawful activities
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or that it formed part of the proceeds of unlawful activities to wit Corruption,
agreed and arranged that cash in the amount of R 180 000, 00 (one hundred
and eighty thousand rand) be paid from Accused 5's FNB bank account

number, 62053736743, to Accused 3's FNB bank account number,

62091005217.

132. In turn, Accused 3 transferred the same amount of R 180 000, 00 to Mr
JDCM Bonifacio’s FNB bank account number, 62012712411. On the same
day, 11 April 2007, Mr JDCM Bonifacio issued a cheque from the said FNB
account payable to C J Bonifacio in the amoun?__ of R 180 000, 00 (one
hundredt‘ and eighty thousand rancj) and deposited the said cheque into his
Nedbank Current account number, 1988251273. Mr JDCM Bonifacio then
instructed Nedbank to transfer the said amount of R 186 000, 00 to the
Nedbank account number, 145404833, belongi.ng to Sandown Motar
Hoidings, with reference, “GILLINGHAM”, as part payment towards the

purchase of a Mercedes Benz E320 CD!I for the behéfit of Accused 2.

133. And the said agreement had the effect of concealing or disguising the
nature, source, focation, disposition or movement of the said amount of
R 180 000, 00 or the ownership thereof and/or removing or diminishing such

cash which was acquired as a resuit of the commission of an offence of

Corruption.
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SCHEDULE 1

CAR RENTAL, AIR FLIGHT TICKETS AND ACCOMMODATION PAID FOR

ACCUSED 1
COLUMN A COLUMN B COLUMN C COLUMN D
TRANSACTION DATE SERVICE/BENEFIT VALUE
NUMBER
1. 068 May 2005 Car rental from R4 022,49
Imperial
2. 09 May2005 | Accommodation in R 1 300.90
Paxton Hotel

3. 08 June 2005 | Air flight tickets R 2 651.00

a. 08 June 2005 | Air fiight tickets R 2 651.00

5, 15 June 2005 | Accommodation in R 6 446.00

k- Hemingways Hotel

6. 28 June 2005 | Car rental from Avis R 3701.10

7. 19 July 2005 Air flight tickets R 3 030.00

8. 23 July 2005 Air flight tickets R 1 560.00

Qs 27 July 2005 Air flight tickets R 6 624.00

10. 15 September | Air flight tickets R 2 868.00
2005

11. 21 September Accommodation in R 1 599.50
2005 Paxton Hotel

12. 23 September Air flight tickets R 6 176.00
2005

13. 27 September Car rental from Avis R 2413.80
2005

-
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14, 11 October 2005 | Air flight tickets R 3 088.00
15. 20 October 2005 | Accommodation in R 2 959.15
Paxton Hotel
16. 20 October 2005 | Car rental from Avis R 443225
17. 24 Qctober 2005 | Accommodation in R 1 062.50
Paxton Hotel
18. 25 QOctober 2005 | Car rental from Avis R 4 445.21
19. 17 January 2005 | Car rental from Avis R 861.81
20. 26 October 2005 Air flight tickets R 3 026.00
L 21, 16 November Accommodation in R 484.00
2005 - Paxton Hotel
22. 16 November A’ccoinmodation in R 425.00
2005 Paxton Hotel
23. 17 November | Air flight tickets R 3 138.00
2005
24, 04 January 2006 | Air flight tickets R 2788.00
25, 09 January 2006 | Accommodation in R1717.00
‘ The Beach Hotel 3
26. 09 January 2006 | Accommodation in R 1972.00
The Beach Hotel
27. 09 January 2006 | Accommodation in R 2 403.00
The Beach Hotel
28. 09 January 2006 | Accommodation in R 858.50
The Beach Hotel
29. 10 January 2006 | Accommodation in R 1 302.90
The Beach Hotel
30. 17 January 2006 | Car rental from Avis R 796.12
31. 18 January 2006 | Accommodation in R 1161.50 4‘
Garden Court Hotel
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32. 23 January 2006 Accommodation R 930.50
The Beach Hotel

33. 23 January 2006 | Accommodation in R 1 607.40
The Beach Hotel

34. 06 February 2006 Air flight tickets R 3 122.00

35. 10 February 2006 | Car rental from Avis R1027.71

36. 16 February 2006 Air flight tickets R1674.00

37. 16 February 2006 | Accommodation in R 1002.50
The Beach Hotel

38. 02 March 2006 Air flight tickets R 5 568.00

39. 13 March 2006 | Car rental from Avis "R 6533.54

40. 16 March 2006 Air flight tickefs R4 925.00

41. 28 March 2006 Accommodation.in R 6 208.00
Hemingways Hotel

42, 31 March 2006 | Car rental from Avis | R 1 431.15

43. 30 June 2006 Alir flight ticke{t_s 4 R 2 641.00

44, 28 July 2006 Air flight tickets R 6 216.00

45. 31 July 2006 Car rental from R 3 219.70

Budget

46. 31 July 2006 Car rental from Avis R2744.15

47. 20 August 2006 | Accommodation in R 3 733.80
The Beach Hotel

48. 22 September Air flight tickets R 3 133.00

2006

49, 18 October 2006 Air flight tickets R 3228.00

50. 20 October 2006 | Car rental from Avis R 2 341.66

51. 31 October 2006 | Accommodation in R 2 135.60

Hemingways Hotel
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52. 02 November Air flight tickets R 4 301.00
2006

53. 27 November Air flight tickets R 2 763.00
2006

54, 29 November Alr flight tickets R 6 974.00
2006

55. 04 December Air flights tickets R 3 601.00
2006

56. 12 December Car rental from Avis R 1903.18
2006

57. 14 December Air flight tickets R 3 943.00
2006

58. 29 December Air flight tickets R 1 503.00
2006

59, - 29 December | ' Accommodation. R2312.60
2006 ‘Hemingways Hotel

60. 29 December Car rental from- R 3 53450
2006 National Car -

61. 29 December | Accommodationin | R 1021.00
2006 - Paxton Hotel

62. 06 January 2007 |  Air fiight tickets- R 6 546.00

63. 50 January 2007 | Air flight fickets " R 3 235.00

64. 31 January 2007 | Car rental from Avis R 660.28

65. 26 January 2007 | Car rental from Avis 'R 1806.77

66. 26 January 2007 Accommodation R 1310.20

The Beach Hotel

67. 26 January 2007 | Car rental from Avis R 6 272.09

68. 29 January 2007 Air flight tickets R 1 849.00

69. 31 January 2007 | Accommodation in R 5929.40

Hemingways Hotel
70. 31 January 2007 | Accommodation in R 1350.10
The Beach Hotel
44
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71. 07 February 2007 | Accommodation in R 537.00
Paxton Hotei

72. 07 February 2007 Air flight tickets R 3 169.00

73. 16 February 2007 Air flight tickets R 5 245.00

74. 07 February 2007 Air flight tickets R 5 245.00

75. 16 February 2007 Air flight tickets R 370.00

786. February 2007 | Accommodation in R 150.00

The Court Yard

77. February 2007 | Accommodation in R2617.95
-The Court Yard

78, 23 February 2007 | Air flights tickets R 3220.00

79. 27 February 2007 | Car rental from Avis R 709.38

80. 28 February 2007 | Car rental from - R 250.0%
Doliar Thrifty Car

81. 28 February 2007 | Car rental from R 188461
Doilar Thrifty Car

82. 27 April 2007 | Car rental from Avis R 2 863.56

83. 04 May 2007 Car rental from Avis R 146507

84. 23 May 2007 Car rental from Avis R 793.62

85. 20 June 2007 Car rental from Avis R 329272

86. 30 June 2007 Accommodation in R 3231.87
Arabella Sheraton

87. 01 July 2007 Air flight tickets R 2802.00

88. 01 July 2007 Air flight tickets R 2 802.00

89. 01 July 2007 Air flight tickets R 3 146.00

90. 04 July 2007 Accommodation in R 1072.00

Paxton Hotel
91. 06 July 2007 Accommodation R 4 942.76

Garden Court
Marine Parade
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92. 10 July 2007 Car rental from Avis R 4 351.54
g3. 10 July 2007 Car rental from Avis R 1 355.07
94. 16 July 2007 Air flight tickets R 7 §70.00
95, 25 July 2007 Car rental from Avis R 738.94
96. 25 July 2007 Car rental from Avis R 1 228.88
97. 27 Juiy 2007 Accommodation in R1015.12
Garden Court Els
98. 06 August 2007 Accommaodation in R 2 044.00
Paxton Hotel
99. 06 August 2007 Accommaodation in R 1 338.00
Paxton Hotel
100. 24 August 2007 | Car rental from Avis R1779.87
101, 31 August 2007 | Accommodation in R1073.95
Paxton Hotel
102. 29 September | Car rental from Avis R 1 328.58
2007 '
103. 10 October 2007 | Accommadation in R4211.10
Garden Court Hotel
104. 24 October 2007 | Car rental from Avis R1237.19
105. 17 October 2007 Alr flight tickets R3121.80
106. 19 October 2007 Air flight tickets R 3473.20
107. 24 Qctober 2007 | Car rental from Avis R1814.31
108. 24 October 2007 | Car rental from Avis R 755.64
109. 25 March 2008 Air flight tickets R 3473.20
110. 31 October 2007 | Accommodation in R 658.00
Paxton Hotel
111. 31 October 2007 | Accommodation in R 1890.00
Paxton Hotel
112. 03 November Car rental from Avis R 1085.88

2007
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113. | 07 November | Accommodation in R 588.19
2007 Paxton Hotel
114, 20 December Car rental from Avis R 801.67
2007
115. 04 January 2008 | Accommodation in R1571.35
Garden Court Kings
Beach
116. 18 January 2008 Air flight tickets R 2 328.40
117. 23 January 2008 | Car rental from Avis R 830.10
118. 11 February 2008 | Car rental from Avis R 1868.77
119, 25 February 2008 | Accommodation in R 3 263.88
The Beach Hotel
120. .25 March 2008 - Air flight tickets™ R 12 415.20
121. 25 March 2008 Ai‘fﬁfi_ight tickets R 2 389.60
122. 07 April2008 | Car rental from Avis | R 3 964.04
123. 07 Aprit2008 | Accommodation in R1830.70
- Paxton Hotel
124. 07 April 2008 | Accommodation in R 1443.00
Paxton Hotel
125. 07 April 2008 Accommodation in R 528.00
Paxton Hotel
126. 25 March 2008 Air flight tickets R 2'389.60
127. 03 October 2008 Air flight tickets R 10 037.52
128. 07 October 2008 | Car rental from Avis R 342853
129. 20 October 2008 | Accommodation in R 1802.75
Paxton Hotel
130. 14 July 2009 Car rental from Avis R 1320.93
131. 28 July 2009 Air flight tickets R 5 382.64
132. 27 July 2009 Accommodation in R 1892.71

Southern Sun - The
Cullinan
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133. 03 August 2011 Car rental from R511280 |
Budget ‘
134. 12 September Accommadation in R 6 067.50
2011 Paxton Hotel
135. 29 September Air flight tickets R 4 452.20
2011
136. 07 October 2011 | Car rental from Avis R3011.40
137. 13 October 2011 | Accommodation in R 3778.80
Paxton Hotel
138. 10 November | Car rental from Avis R 3 903.26
2011
139. 04 February 2012 Air flight tickets R 7 261.60
140. 08 February 2012 Air flight tickets R 7 951.00
141. 06 March 2012 Accommodation R 3 805.59
Paxton Hotel
142. 23March 2012 | Car rental from Avis | R 1 818.29
143. 10 April 2012 Car rental from R3613.65
Budget -
144. 12 April 2012 | Accommodation in R 5 406.81
Hemingways Hotel
145. 30 April 2012 Air flight tickets R 13 881.20
146. 04 May 2012 Air flight tickets R 4 409.40
147. 14 May 2012 Car rental from Avis R 3 069.28
148. 30 June 2012 Air flight tickets R 6 516.30
149, 06 July 2012 Car rental from R 4 087.85
Budget
150. 11 July 2012 Accommodation in R1778.40
FPaxton Hotel
151. 11 July 2012 Accommodation in R 2592.40
Paxton Hotel
152. 11 July 2012 Accommodation in R 890.20

Paxton Hotel
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153. 31July2012 |  Air flight tickets R 5675.20
154. 07 August 2012 Accommodation in R 4 734.50
Paxton Hotel
155. 19 September Car rental from Avis R 2 444 .41
2012
156. 05 October 2012 Car rental from R 9 522.67
Budget
157. 07 November Car rental from R 277.00
2012 Budget
158. 29 October 2012 | Air flight tickets R4 111.50
159. 10 October 2012 | Car rental from Avis R 4 983.87
160 29 October 2012 | Accommodationin | R 1 181.90
~ Southern Sun ~
__ Emnotweni
161. 18 October 2012 | Accommodation in R 2 021.57
Southern Sun Hotel
162. 18 QOctober 2012 Accoﬁamodatior}: in - R 3351.79
Southern Sun -
Emnotweni .
163. 30 October 2012 Car reﬁfal froi;h'_" R 585747
Heriz
164. 30 October 2012 | Air flight tickets R 9100.40
165. 27 November Accommodation in R 1980.40
2012 Paxton Hotel
166. 27 November Accommodation in R 2018.40
2012 Paxton Hotel
167. 27 November Air flight tickets R 4 768.30
2012
168. 27 November Air flight tickets R 4 039.80
2012
169. 27 November Air flight tickets R 5910.80
2012
170. 14 December Accommodation in R 1220.40
2012 Paxton Hotel
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171. 31 December Accommodation in R 1762.50
2012 Royal Paim Hotel
172. 31 December Accommodation in R4 184.10
2012 City Lodge
Bloemfontein
173. 31 December Air flight tickets R4 572.20
2012
174. 31 December Air flight tickets R 3 926.00
2012
175. 31 December Air flight tickets R4 019.80
2012
176. 31 December Car rental from R 2 769.00
2012 - Budget
177. 31 December | Accommodation in R 10 471.60
2012 - -Ushaka Manor
Guest House -
178. 23 January 2013 Car rental from R 9753.25
;  Budget
170, 23 January 2013 | Accommodation in R 3 142.96
- | Garden Court East "
lLondon
180. 31 January 2013 Air flight tickets R 6 367.60
181. 31 January 2013 Air flight tickets R 6 037.00
182. 27 February 2013 Air flight tickets R 4 057.80
183. 28 February 2013 Car rental from R 2 381.50
Budget
184, 28 February 2013 Car rental from R 3 058.51
Budget
185. 28 February 2013 | Accommodation in R 651240
Radisson Blu Hotel
PE
186. 29 March 2013 Air flight tickets R 11 637.60
187. 18 April 2013 Accommodation in R 5 882.81

Paxton Hotel

\
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188. 18 April 2013 Car rental from RS 143.45
Budget
189. 18 April 2013 Air flight tickets R 7 356.60
190. 22 April 2013 | Accommodation in R 9 068.00
Hemingways Hotel
191. 22 April 2013 Car rental from Avis R6911.84
192, 29 April 2013 Accommodation in R 5 686.81
Paxton Hotel
193. 30 April 2013 Air flight tickets R 4 748.70
194, 30 April 2013 Car rental from R 1620.32
Dollar Thrifty
195, 07 June 2013 | Carrental from Avis | R 4 873.76
196. 19 June 2013 Accommodation in R 14 757.00
Boardwalk Hotel PE
197. 03 June 2013 Accommodation in R 618.50
Broadwalk Hotel PE
- Extra’s
198. 20 June 2013 Accommodation in R 1975.20
Royal Paim Hotel
199, 27 June 2013 Car rental from R 3 960.86
Budget
200. 28 June 2013 Air flight tickets R 5 669.60
201. 28 June 2013 Accommodation in R 10751.40
Paxton Hotel
202, 10 July 2013 Car rental from Avis R 142543
203. 16 July 2013 Accommodation in R 3144.20
Radisson Blu Hotel
PE
204. 29 July 2013 Air flight tickets R 4 502.40
205. 13 August 2013 Car rental from R 4 962.58
Budget
206. 24 August 2013 Air flight tickets R 6 030.40

(
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207, 14 August 2013 Alir flight tickets R5483.20 |

208. 14 August 2013 Air flight tickets R 5 483.20

209. 24 August 2013 Accommodation in R 5 753.80

Paxton Hotel

210. 24 August 2013 | Car rental from Avis R 6 296.29

211. 24 August 2013 Air flight tickets R 5780.30

212. 25 September Air flight tickets R 4 698.80
2013

213. 25 September Accommodation in R 4 558.70
2013 Southern Sun Hotel

214, 25 September Car rental from "R 2 565.24
2013 Budget

215. 22 October 2013 | Car rental from Avis R 5 302.55

216. 22 October 2013 Car rental from R 627.20

Budget
217. 25 October 2013 | Car rental from Avis R 4 891.89
218. 25 Qctober 2013 Car rental from"': R 2 297.47
Hertz

219. 25 November Air flight tickets R 6 270.00
2013

220. 25 November Accommodation in R 1870.85
2013 Southern Sun

Hemingways

221. 25 November Air flight tickets R 10 625.80
2013

222, 28 November Air flight tickets R 5 060.80
2013

223. 28 November Accommodation in R 1 346.00
2013 Queens Casino &

Hotel

224. 05 December Car rental from R 1882.54
2013 Budget

225, 11 December Car rental from Avis R 2 544.71
2013
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2286. 19 December Air flight tickets R 7 436.40
2013
227. 19 December Air flight tickets R 8 750.60
2013
228. 20 December Car rental from R1021.20
2013 Budget
229 20 December Car rental from R1021.20
2013 Budget
230. 20 December Car rental from R 627.20
2013 Budget
231. 31 December Car rental from R 4 406.63
2013 Budget
232. 27 January 2014 | Accommodationin | R 13 162.79
i - City Lodge
‘Waterfront
233. 28 January 2014 | Car rental from Avis R 12 204.82
234, 28 January 2014 | Air flight tickets - R705.00
235. 19 February 2014 | Air fiight tickets R 73000
236 28 January 2014 | Air flight tickets R7968.70
237. 19 February 2014 Air flight tickets R 7565.00
238. 28 February 2014 Air flight tickets R 4 674.70
239. 26 March 2014 Car rental from Avis R 5 264.04
240. 27 March 2014 Accommodation in R 1 875.45
Southern Sun
Hemingways
241. 27 March 2014 Air flight tickets R 7 695.80
242. 27 March 2014 Air flight tickets R 7 695.80
243. 17 April 2014 Car rental from Avis R 7 598.22
244, 25 April 2014 Accommeodation in R 14 762.51

Paxton Hotel
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Mti (Accused 1)in
PE el

245. 22 May 2014 | Carrental from Avis | R 8 527.94
248. 23 May 2014 Air flight tickets R 10931.20
247, 27 May 2014 Accommodaticn in R 5212.41
Hemingways Hotel
248. 23 June 2014 Air flight tickets R6724.10
249, 23 June 2014 Car rental from Avis R 8 009.41
250. 23 June 2014 Air flight tickets R 5 323.50
251. 24 July 2014 Car rental from R 7 739.21
Budget
252. 29 July 2014 Car rentai from R 5 088.32
. Budget
253, 20 August 2014 | Car rental from Avis R 1379.26
254, 07 July 2015 | Traffic Fine paid for R 322.00

TOTAL VALUE: R975 637.22
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CO-267

COLUMN A COLUMNB COLUMNC COLUMND
TRANSACTION DATE SERVICE/BENEFIT VALUE
NUMBER & BANK IN RAND
STATEMENT.
DESCRIPTION

255, 04 March 2004 Cash Deposit Key R 2 500.00
West Mti

256. 19 Aprit 2004 | Cash Deposit Key R 2 500.00
West Mti

255. 04 May 2004 Cheque Deposit R 2 500.00

Key Wés-t'-Bosé-"sa

256. 08 June 2004 | Cash Deposit Key R 2 500.00
West 1111

257. 05 July 2004 Cash Deposit Key R 4 234.60
West Mti

258. 05 August 2004 Cash Deposit Key R 4 234.60
West Mti

259. 02 September Cash Deposit Key R 4 234.60
2004 West Mti

260. 04 October 2004 Cash Deposit Key R 4 234.60

West Mti
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2005

Waestgate Dep

261. 03 November | Cash Deposit Key R 4 234.60
2004 West Sal
262, 03 December Cash Deposit Key R 4 234.60
2004 West Mii.

263, 03 January 2005 Cheque Deposit R4 234.60
Key West Mti

264, 08 February 2005 Cheque Deposit R 4 234.60
Key West Mti

265. 02 March 2005 Cash Deposit Key R 4 234.60
~ West Mti

266. 06 April 2005 Cash Deposit R 4 234.60

--;Westggﬁe 665-2266 ,
267. 26 April 2005 | Cash .E'Dréposit Key R4 234.60
West Mti |

268. 02 June 2005 |  Cash Deposit R 4 234.60

| Woestgate M T i

269. 04 July 2005 Cash Deposit Key R 4 234.60

West Dep

270. 29 July 2005 Cash Deposit Key R 4 234.60
West 6652256

271. 23 August 2005 Cash Deposit Key R4 234.60
West 665.2256

272. 28 September Cash Deposit R 7 250.00
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273. 03 December Cash Deposit- R 5 000.00
2005 Thank You
Vods020Kd Q90
274. 09 December Cash Deposit R 5 000.00
2005 Eastgate
0829081549
275. 06 January 2006 Cash Deposit R 5 000.00
Pretoria
il 0829081549
276, 12 March 2007 | Cash Deposit _ R 4 500,00
Calswald -
0824554908
277. 06 July 2007 Cash Deposit R 9 000.00
Mbeki—Pe
0832010106
278. 03 December Cash Deposit—r R 4 500.00
2007 Thank You
Vodscltd9 RHB
279. 06 December Cash Deposit- R 6 000.00

2007

Thank You

Vodsjfnfz SHB




CO-270

SCHEDULE 3

GRATIFICATIONS GIVEN TO ACCUSED 2 (GILLINGHAM)

Ts

On 28 April 2004 an invoice to the amount of R 1 653, 00 (one thousand six
hundred and fifty three rand) for the costs of Accused 2’s air travel from
Johannesburg to Port Elizabeth and back to Johannesburg was issued by
Blakes Travel Agency (Pty) Ltd to Bosasa’s (Accused 5) Customer Detailed

Ledger Account number, BOO087, in the ledger account of Blakes Travel.

On 17 July 2006 Blakes Travel Ageh'éy (Pty) Ltd issued three invoices against
the Customer Detailed Ledger Accégnt, ""'('3__;0_0009: Mr P Gillingham”, to the
total of vq[ue R 62 796 00, fora E;'_a‘opeari} trip unde-rfa'kenby Accused 2 and
Theresa Gillingham. On 27 July 2006 Blakes Travel Agency (Pty) Ltd received
payment in the amount of R 62 810 00 from Mr William Daniel Mansell and or
his irust, Grande Four Property""l‘:'.rust’s Standard Bank account number,
080010571. The funds from Grande Four Property Trust emanated from

Accused 5’s FNB account number, 62053735290.

During the period 15 February 2007 to 18 March 2007, Accused 2 hired a
motor vehicle at Avis. In March 2007, Biakes Travel Agency (Pty) Ltd issued

an invoice against the customer account, “A00031: Agrizzi Mr A” to the total

vaiue of R 15 202, 63.

§
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4. During the period 18 March 2007 to 12 April 2007, Accused 2 hired a motor
vehicle at Avis. In April 2007, Biakes Travel Agency (Pty) Ltd issued an
invoice against the customer account, “A00031: Agrizzi Mr A” to the total

value of R 24 971, 98.

5. During the period 22 June 2007 to 24 June 2007, Accused 2 hired a motor
vehicle at Avis. In June 2007, Blakes Travel Agency (Pty) Ltd issued an

invoice against the customer account, “A00031: Agrizzi Mr A” to the total

value of R 2 042, 90.

6. On 30 August 2004 the amount of R 196 959, 97 (one hundred and ninety six
thousand, nine _hﬁndred and fifty niri§ rand ninety seven cents) was paid into
Accused 2's ABSA bank account n'u,mber‘i. .1'012851592 from Dr J Smith's
Nedbank account numb&r 192803180 The sald amount of R 196 959, 97
orlglnated from Accused 5 sF NB account number 62053735290. Accused 2
used the said funds to purchasa— _a Volkswagen- Golf 1.6, registration number,

RMD 413 GP, from the Glen Vélkswagen, Johannesburg.

7. On 21 September 2004 mud flaps and a CD shuttle in the amount of R 4 050,
04 (four thousand and fifty rand four cents) were ordered as additional extras
from the same dealership and paid for the benefit of Accused 2 with funds

from Accused 5’s FNB account number, 62053735290.

8. On 12 October 2004 the amount of R 155 000, 00 (one hundred and fifty five

thousand rand) was paid into Accused 2's ABSA bank account number,

1012851592, from Dr J Smith’s Nedbank account number, 192803180, and g



CO-272

Accused 2 utilised a portion of the said funds as deposit towards the sale of a

Mercedez Benz E Class E270 CDI, from the Grand Central Motors, Midrand.

On 30 January 2005 the amount of R 16 410, 00 (sixteen thousand four
hundred and ten rand) was paid from the Standard Bank account of Mr
William Danie! Mansell to Travel Showcase to enable Accused 2's daughter,
Megan, to participate in a school tour to Europe during 2005. The funds from
Mr Witliam Daniel Mansell emanated from Accused 5's FNB account number,

62053735290.

10.0n 15 February 2005, a cheque in the amount of R 52 027, 00 (fifty two

11.

thousand-and twenty seven rand) was cas-hed from'thg bank account of

Accused 5 and the same amount was deposited into ‘.the ABSA bank account
number, 1013481845, belonging to Van Der Mentve‘:_-.‘bd.' Toit Incorporated, to
settle the transfer costs to the amoﬁnt of R 52 027, O’G_(ﬁfty two thousand and
twenty seven rand) for a personal residence qf’Accgsed 2, Erf 106 Midstream

Estate.

On 10 June 2005 the amount of R 41 075, 00 (forty one thousand and
seventy five rand) was paid from the FNB account number, 62053735290, of
Accused 5, into the bank account of HMZ Architects and Developers for the
benefit of Accused 2 for architectural services rendered by HMZ Architects

and Developers at Accused 2’s residence, Erf 106 Midstream Estate.

12. Between 30 June 2006 and 05 October 20086, the total amount of R 81. 141, g

12 (eighty one thousand one hundred and forty one rand twelve cents) was

paid by R Hoeksma of Riekele Konstruksie into the bank account of HMZ
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Architects and Developers for the benefit of Accused 2’s son (P Gillingham
Jnr) for architectural services rendered by HMZ Architects and Developers at
the residence of P Gillingham Jnr, Erf 971 Midstream Estate. The funds from

Riekele Konstruksie emanated from Accused 5's FNB account number,

62053735290.

13.Between 12 August 2005 and 14 January 2007, Accused 2's costs to the
value of R 185 810, 41 (one hundred and eighty five thousand eight hundred
and ten rand and forty one cents) towards Sterlings Living (Pty) Ltd for the
~.design and fitting of a riew kitchen and other appliances at his private
residence, 6 Marlboro Place, Midstréé?ﬁ Estate, were paid for with funds

coming from the bank accounts of Mr William Daniel Mansell and Accused 5.

"~ 14.0n 15 September 2005 the amot,_uh-t ‘of‘ R 50 é_OO, 00 (fifty thousand rand) was
paid by Mr William Daniel Mansélk ﬁ'bm the .b.ank account of Grande Four
‘-Prdpér'ty Trust, to Amazirjg‘ Soufr;gis CC for thig;credét' of Accused 2. The funds
frc;m Grande Four Property Trust emanated from Accused 5's FNB account

number, 62053735290,

15.0n 22 September 2005 the amount of R 29 545, 00 (twenty nine thousand
five hundred and forty five rand) was paid by Mr William Daniel Mansell from
his Standard Bank Account to Weylandts Homestore's Nedbank Account,
1232107492, for the credit of Accused 2. The funds from Mr William Daniel

Mansell emanated from Accused 5’s FNB account number, 62053735290,
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16.0n 26 September 2005 the amount of R 30 095, 00 (thirty thousand and
ninety five rand) was paid by Mr William Daniel Manseli from his Standard
Bank Account to Studio Blue (Pty) Ltd's Standard Bank Account, 021217661,
for the credit of Accused 2. The funds from Mr William Daniel Mansell

emanated from Accused 5's FNB account number, 62053735290.

17.0n 26 September 2005 a total amount of R 18 723, 79 (eighteen thousand
seven hundréd and twenty three rand seventy nine cents) was paid by
Mr William Daniel Mansell rom his Standard Bank Account to Wetherly Stores’
for the credit of Accused 2. The funds from Mr William Daniel Manselt

emanated from Accused 5's FNB accourt number, 62053735290,

18.0n 03 66fobef 2005 the amount of""R 19 1 52 00 (nineteen thousand one
hundred and flfty two rand) was pald by Mr Wllnam Daniel Mansell from his
Standard Bank Account to RSA Stone s ABSA Bank Account 4047809611,
for the credlt of Accused 2 The funds from Mr W|Illam Daniel Mansell

emanated from Accused 5's FNB account number, 62053735290

19. During October 2005 the total amount of R 62 100, 00 (sixty two thousand
one hundred rand) was paid by Mr William Daniel Mansell from his Standard
Bank Account to DP Botha's ABSA Bank Account, 9147515527 , for the
building services rendered for Accused 2 at his residence in Marlborough
Drive, Midstream Estate. The funds from Mr William Daniel Mansell emanated

from Accused 5's FNB account number, 62053735290.
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20.0n 10 October 2005 the amount of R 8000, 00 (eight thousand rand) was
paid by Mr William Daniel Mansell from the bank account of Grande Four
Property Trust to Baksons (Pty) Ltd, for the sale of a television set for the
benefit of Accused 2. The funds from Grande Four Property Trust emanated

from Accused 5's FNB account number, 62053735290.

21.0n 07 November 2005 the amount of R 43 000, 00 (forty three thousand
rand) was paid-by Mr William Daniel Mansell to American Shutters:CC'’s
Standard Bank Account, 277060346, towards the sale of shutters (blinds) for
the benefit of Accused 2. The funds from Mr William Daniel Mansell émanatéd

from-Accused 5's FNB account number, 62053735290.

22. Accused 2 bought property situated at 971 Midstream Estate, Ext 8, Midrand
for R 645-,':060;- 00. The purchase price waé‘tgpen. reduced ;by' way of a bond for
R 300 000, 00. On 24 February 2006 Accused 2 transferred the amount of
R 350 000, 00 into the bank account of Grande Four Property Trust. On 27
February 2006 the amount of R 392 000, 00 was paid into the frust account of
L CViljoen Attorneys by Grande Four Property Trust to cover the balance of
R 345000, 00 plus transfer duties of R 46 163, 00. Thus, Mr William Daniel
Mansell through Grande Four Property Trust, paid a gratification of R 42 000,

00 for the benefit of Accused 2,

23.0n 07 November 2005 the amount of R 25 600, 00 (twenty five thousand six g

hundred rand) was paid by Mr William Daniel Mansell to Bundu Blind's
Standard Bank Account number, 226053776, for instaliation of blinds at

Accused 2's residence situated at Marlborough Place, Midstream Estate,
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Midrand, for the benefit of Accused 2. The funds from Mr William Daniel

Mansell emanated from Accused 5’s FNB account number, 62053735290.

24.0n 08 December 2005 the amount of R 7 884, 24 (seven thousand eight
hundred and eighty four rand twenty four cents) was paid by Mr William
Daniel Mansell to Spire Technology CC'’s Standard Bank Account number,
023110317, for supplying and installing glass at Accused 2's residence
situated at 6 Marlboro Road, Midstream Estate, Midrand, for the benefit of
Accused 2. The funds from Mr William Daniel Mansell emanated from

Accused 5’s FNB account number, 62053735290,

25, During April 2008, a motor Vehicle, l?dlo Voalkswagen 1.6, in the amount of
R 123 269, 28 was purchased from -Linds-éy:Saker dealership, Krugersdorp,
by Mr Wiiliam Daniel Mansell andj_d{ Accuéeid 5 and-or its employee

(F Vorster), for the benefit of Accused 2 énc_i;:c_ir his son , Ryan Gillingham.

26.0n 26 April 20086 the amount of R 10 000, 00 {ten thousand rand) was paid by
Mr William Daniel Mansell to Gert van der Merwe Couturier's ABSA Bank
Account number, 4050979932, for the matric dance dress of Accused 2’s

daughter, Megan. The funds from Mr William Daniel Mansell emanated from

Accused 5's FNB account number, 62053735290.

27.0n 21 August 2006 and 10 October 2006 respectively, the amounts of

R 80 000, 00 (eighty thousand rand) and R 8 046, 00 (eight thousand and

forty six rand) were paid by Mr William Daniel Mansell to Booysen, Dreyer &
Nolte Attorneys and Conveyancers’ ABSA Bank Account number, &

4052904991, as initial down payment and additional bond costs of a property
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situated at Section 105 Protea Aftree — Oord, Heuwelsig, purchased by
Accused 2. The funds from Mr William Daniel Mansell emanated from

Accused 5's FNB account number, 62053735290.

28.0n 16 September 2006 the amount of R 27 600 (twenty seven thousand six
hundred rand) was paid by Mr William Daniel Mansell and or Accused 5 to
Inscapé Design Colleges’ Standard Bank Account number, 0016684417, as

tuition fees for the daughter of Accused 2, Megan Gillingham.

29.0n 21 December 2006 a mofor vehlcle a white Polo Volkswagen 1 6 in the
amount of R 131 367, 99 was purchased from The Glen Volkswagen
dealership, Alberton, by Accused 4 and or Dr J Smith and or Accused 5, for

the benefit of Accused 2 and or h,is.ﬁ-giaught}er_, Megan Gilfingham.

30. During Apnl 20!)? Accused 2 purchased a motor vehicle, Mercedes Benz

E320 CDI, in the amount of R 555 150, 02 (ﬁve hundred and fifty five

:‘ thousand one hindred and.ﬁfty. rand and two cents), from Mercedes Benz
Constantia Kloof dealership in Roodepoort, and he applied for a motor vehicle
finance of R 375 150, 02 from Stannic. The balance of R 180 000, 00 was
settled by an electronic transfer into the bank account of Sandown Motor
Holdings (Pty) Ltd by an employee of Accused 5, CJ Bonifacio. The said
amount of R 180 000, 00 had been paid by Accused 5 into the bank account

(
)

of Accused 3 who in turn transferred it to CJ Bonifacio.



31.Between February 2005 and December 2005, Accused 2 received a
gratification in the form of a house situated at 106 Midstream Estate, to the
estimated value of R 1 885 500, 00, constructed by Riekele Konstruksie. The

costs of the house were paid by Accused 5.
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